
Page 1 
 

IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT, IF YOU NEED SPECIAL ASSISTANCE TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS MEETING, 

PLEASE CONTACT THE CLERK DEPARTMENT AT (408) 354-6834.  NOTIFICATION 48 HOURS BEFORE THE MEETING WILL ENABLE THE TOWN 

TO MAKE REASONABLE ARRANGEMENTS TO ENSURE ACCESSIBILITY TO THIS MEETING [28 CFR §35.102-35.104] 

                     

TOWN OF LOS GATOS 
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 

SEPTEMBER 09, 2020 
110 EAST MAIN STREET 

LOS GATOS, CA 
7:00 PM 

Melanie Hanssen, Chair 
Kathryn Janoff, Vice Chair 

Mary Badame, Commissioner 
Jeffrey Barnett, Commissioner 
Kendra Burch, Commissioner 

Matthew Hudes, Commissioner 
Reza Tavana, Commissioner 

 

 
PARTICIPATION IN THE PUBLIC PROCESS 

 
How to participate:  The Town of Los Gatos strongly encourages your active participation in the 

public process, which is the cornerstone of democracy.  If you wish to speak to an item on the 

agenda, please complete a “speaker’s card” and return it to the Staff Liaison.  If you wish to speak 

to an item NOT on the agenda, you may do so during the “verbal communications” period. The 

time allocated to speakers may change to better facilitate the Planning Commission meeting.  

 

Effective Proceedings:  The purpose of the Planning Commission meeting is to conduct the 

business of the community in an effective and efficient manner.  For the benefit of the 

community, the Town of Los Gatos asks that you follow the Town’s meeting guidelines while 

attending Planning Commission meetings and treat everyone with respect and dignity.  This is 

done by following meeting guidelines set forth in State law and in the Town Code. Disruptive 

conduct is not tolerated, including but not limited to: addressing the Commissioners without first 

being recognized; interrupting speakers, Commissioners or Town staff; continuing to speak after 

the allotted time has expired; failing to relinquish the podium when directed to do so; and 

repetitiously addressing the same subject. 

Deadlines for Public Comment and Presentations are as follows: 

 Persons wishing to make an audio/visual presentation on any agenda item must submit the 
presentation electronically, either in person or via email, to the Planning Department by 1 
p.m. or the Clerk’s Office no later than 3:00 p.m. on the day of the Planning Commission 
meeting. 

 Persons wishing to submit written comments to be included in the materials provided to the 
Planning Commission must provide the comments to the Planning Department as follows: 
o For inclusion in the regular packet: by 11:00 a.m. the Friday before the meeting 
o For inclusion in any Addendum: by 11:00 a.m. the Monday before the meeting 
o For inclusion in any Desk Item: by 11:00 a.m. on the day of the meeting 

 
 

 

 

  

Planning Commission meetings are broadcast Live on KCAT, Channel 15 (on Comcast) on the 2nd and 4th Wednesdays at 7:00 p.m. 
Live and Archived Planning Commission meetings can be viewed by going to: 

https://www.kcat.org/government-meetings 

Page 1

https://www.kcat.org/government-meetings


Page 2 
 

 
 

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING SEPTEMBER 9, 2020 PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
 

This meeting is being conducted utilizing teleconferencing and electronic means consistent 
with State of California Executive Order N-29-20 dated March 17, 2020, regarding the COVID-
19 pandemic.  The live stream of the meeting may be viewed on television and/or online at: 
https://meetings.municode.com/PublishPage/index?cid=LOSGATOS&ppid=4bc370fb-3064-
458e-a11a-78e0c0e5d161&p=0.  In accordance with Executive Order N-29-20, the public 
may only view the meeting on television and/or online and not in the Council Chamber. 
 

PARTICIPATION 
If you are not interested in providing oral comments real-time during the meeting, you can 
view the live stream of the meeting on television (Comcast Channel 15) and/or online at 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCFh35XRBWer1DPx-F7vvhcg.  
 
If you are interested in providing oral comments real-time during the meeting, you must join 
the Zoom webinar at: 
https://losgatosca-
gov.zoom.us/j/96262147642?pwd=cE91NDJTYVVZbEtDNm15dFdyRlkyQT09 
Passcode: 584103. 
 
During the meeting:  

 When the Chair announces the item for which you wish to speak, click the “raise 
hand” feature in Zoom. If you are participating by phone on the Zoom app, press *9 
on your telephone keypad to raise your hand. If you are participating by calling in, 
press #2 on your telephone keypad to raise your hand.  

 When called to speak, please limit your comments to three (3) minutes, or such other 
time as the Chair may decide, consistent with the time limit for speakers at a Council 
meeting.  

 
If you are unable to participate in real-time, you may send an email to 
PlanningComment@losgatosca.gov with the subject line “Public Comment Item #  ” (insert 
the item number relevant to your comment) or “Verbal Communications – Non Agenda 
Item.” Comments will be reviewed and distributed before the meeting if received by 11:00 
a.m. on the day of the meeting. All comments received will become part of the record. The 
Chair has the option to modify this action on items based on comments received. 

REMOTE LOCATION PARTICIPANTS 

The following Planning Commissioners are listed to permit them to appear electronically or 
telephonically at the Planning Commission meeting: CHAIR MELANIE HANSSEN, VICE CHAIR 
JANOFF, COMMISSIONER BADAME, COMMISSIONER BARNETT, COMMISSIONER BURCH, 
COMMISSIONER HUDES, AND COMMISSIONER TEVANA.  All votes during the teleconferencing 
session will be conducted by roll call vote. 

  

Page 2

https://meetings.municode.com/PublishPage/index?cid=LOSGATOS&ppid=4bc370fb-3064-458e-a11a-78e0c0e5d161&p=0
https://meetings.municode.com/PublishPage/index?cid=LOSGATOS&ppid=4bc370fb-3064-458e-a11a-78e0c0e5d161&p=0
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCFh35XRBWer1DPx-F7vvhcg
https://losgatosca-gov.zoom.us/j/96262147642?pwd=cE91NDJTYVVZbEtDNm15dFdyRlkyQT09
https://losgatosca-gov.zoom.us/j/96262147642?pwd=cE91NDJTYVVZbEtDNm15dFdyRlkyQT09
mailto:PlanningComment@losgatosca.gov


Page 3 
 

 

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL 

VERBAL COMMUNICATIONS (Members of the public may address the Commission on any matter 
that is not listed on the agenda. Unless additional time is authorized by the Commission, remarks 
shall be limited to three minutes.) 

CONSENT ITEMS (TO BE ACTED UPON BY A SINGLE MOTION) (Before the Planning Commission 
acts on the consent agenda, any member of the public or Commission may request that any item 
be removed from the consent agenda.  At the Chair’s discretion, items removed from the consent 
calendar may be considered either before or after the Public Hearings portion of the agenda) 
 

1. Approve Planning Commission Minutes of August 26, 2020 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS (Applicants/Appellants and their representatives may be allotted up to a total 
of five minutes maximum for opening statements.  Members of the public may be allotted up to 
three minutes to comment on any public hearing item.  Applicants/Appellants and their 
representatives may be allotted up to a total of three minutes maximum for closing 
statements.  Items requested/recommended for continuance are subject to the Commission’s 
consent at the meeting.) 
 

2. Consider Approval of a Request for Modification to an Existing Architecture and Site 

Application (S-13-090) to Remove Underground Parking for Construction of a 

Commercial Building (Market Hall) in the North 40 Specific Plan Area. Located at 14225 

Walker Street.  APN 424-56-017.  Architecture and Site Application S-20-012.  Property 

Owner/Applicant: Summerhill N40, LLC.  Project Planner: Jocelyn Shoopman.  

3. Requesting Approval for Demolition of an Existing Single-Family Residence and 
Detached Accessory Dwelling Unit, and Construction of a Two-Story Single-Family 
Residence on Property Zoned HR-1. APN 527-02-007.  Architecture and Site Application 
S-19-012.  Located at 15925 Quail Hill Drive.  Applicant: Gary Kohlsaat.  Property Owner: 
John and Allison Diep.    

 
4. Consider a Request for Approval for a Variance from the Town Code to Exceed the 

Maximum Allowable Sign Area and an Exception from the Commercial Design Guidelines 
to Exceed the Maximum Letter Height for a Wall Sign (Sephora) on Property Zoned C-
2:LHP:PD, Located at 50 University Avenue, Suite B260.  APN 529-02-044.  Variance 
Application V-20-001.  Property Owner: SRI Old Town LLC.  Applicant: Peter Liu.  

 
OTHER BUSINESS (Up to three minutes may be allotted to each speaker on any of the following 
items.) 
 

5. Consider formation of a subcommittee regarding objective standards. 
 

Page 3



Page 4 
 

REPORT FROM THE DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

SUBCOMMITTEE REPORTS / COMMISSION MATTERS 

ADJOURNMENT (Planning Commission policy is to adjourn no later than 11:30 p.m. unless a 
majority of the Planning Commission votes for an extension of time) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Writings related to an item on the Planning Commission meeting agenda distributed to members of the Commission 

within 72 hours of the meeting are available for public inspection at the reference desk of the Los Gatos Town Library, 

located at 100 Villa Avenue; the Community Development Department and Clerk Department, both located at 110 E. 

Main Street; and are also available for review on the official Town of Los Gatos website.  Copies of desk items 

distributed to members of the Commission at the meeting are available for review in the Town Council Chambers. 

 

Note: The Town of Los Gatos has adopted the provisions of Code of Civil Procedure §1094.6; litigation challenging a 

decision of the Town Council must be brought within 90 days after the decision is announced unless a shorter time is 

required by State or Federal law. 

  

Page 4



 

 
  

110 E. Main Street Los Gatos, CA 95030 ● 408-354-6832 
www.losgatosca.gov 

 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS                                          

PLANNING COMMISSION 
REPORT 

MEETING DATE: 09/09/2020 

ITEM NO: 1 

 

   

DRAFT 
MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING  

AUGUST 26, 2020 
 

The Planning Commission of the Town of Los Gatos conducted a Regular Meeting on 
Wednesday, August 26, 2020, at 7:00 p.m. 
 
This meeting was conducted utilizing teleconferencing and electronic means consistent with 
State of California Executive Order N-29-20 dated March 17, 2020, regarding the COVID19 
pandemic and was conducted via Zoom. All planning commissioners and staff participated 
from remote locations and all voting was conducted via roll call vote. 
 
MEETING CALLED TO ORDER AT 7:00 P.M. 
 
ROLL CALL  
Present: Chair Melanie Hanssen, Vice Chair Kathryn Janoff , Commissioner Mary Badame, 
Commissioner Jeffrey Barnett, Commissioner Kendra Burch, Commissioner Matthew Hudes,  
and Commissioner Reza Tavana 
Absent: None. 
 

VERBAL COMMUNICATIONS 
None. 

 
CONSENT ITEMS (TO BE ACTED UPON BY A SINGLE MOTION)  
 

1. Approval of Minutes – August 12, 2020 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Hudes to approve adoption of the Consent 

Calendar. Seconded by Commissioner Burch. 
 

VOTE: Motion passed unanimously 
 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

2. Amendments to the Town Code Regarding Outdoor Lighting and Modifications to the 
Residential Design Guidelines 
Town Code Amendment Application A-20-005 
Location: Town Wide 

Page 5



PAGE 2 OF 4 
MINUTES OF PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING OF AUGUST 26, 2020 
  
 

C:\Users\AzureAdmin\AppData\Local\Temp\tmp8E99.tmp 

Applicant: Town of Los Gatos  
Staff: Jennifer Armer 
 
Forward a Recommendation to the Town Council for Approval of Amendments to 
Chapter 29 (Zoning Regulations) of the Town Code regarding Outdoor Lighting and 
modifications to the Residential Design Guidelines.  

 
Jennifer Armer, Senior Planner, presented the staff report. 
 
Opened and closed Public Comment.  

 
Commissioners discussed the matter. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Badame to forward to Town Council a 

recommendation of approval of Amendments to Town Code Chapter 29 
regarding Outdoor Lighting and modifications to the Residential Design 
Guidelines in consideration of the comments by Commissioner Hudes and 
Commissioner Barnett. Seconded by Commissioner Barnett. 

 

VOTE: Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 

3. Request for Modification to an existing Architecture and Site Application to Remove 
Underground Parking for Construction of a Commercial Building in the North Forty 
Specific Plan 
Architecture and Site Application S-20-012 
APN 424-56-017 
Property Owner/Appt: Summerhill N40, LLC 
Project Planner: Jocelyn Shoopman 
 
Consider approval of a Request for modification to an existing Architecture and Site 
Application (S-13-090) to remove underground parking for construction of a commercial 
building (Market Hall) in the North 40 Specific Plan area.  

 
Commissioner Burch announced that she would recuse herself from the public hearing due to 
proximity of her home to the subject property.  
 
Jocelyn Shoopman, Associate Planner, presented the staff report. 
 
Commissioners discussed the matter. 
 

Page 6



PAGE 3 OF 4 
MINUTES OF PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING OF AUGUST 26, 2020 
  
 

C:\Users\AzureAdmin\AppData\Local\Temp\tmp8E99.tmp 

MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Hudes to continue the public hearing to the 
meeting of September 9, 2020. Seconded by Commissioner Badame. 

 

VOTE: Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS  
 
REPORT FROM THE DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  
 
Joel Paulson, Director of Community Development 

 None. 
 
SUBCOMMITTEE REPORTS/COMMISSION MATTERS 

Historic Preservation Committee 
Commissioner Hudes 
- The HPC met August 26, 2020 and considered four items: 

o 445 Los Gatos Boulevard 
o 411 San Benito Avenue  
o 32 Walnut Avenue  
o Final review of the Historic Preservation portion of the General Plan 

General Plan Advisory Committee 
Commissioner Hanssen 
- The GPAC canceled its August 20, 2020 meeting and rescheduled to September 3, 2020 

where the Committee will do a second review of the Mobility Element.  

Commission Matters 
Commissioner Hanssen 
- It is important when doing the General Plan 20-year update to look for more opportunities 

to insert objective standards which will benefit everyone because there would no longer be 
questions of interpretation or opinion. It would be helpful, especially in the area of land use 
and community design where there is a high need for objective standards, to have a 
subcommittee that would suggest areas where objective standards would be helpful and 
possible. The subject of objective standards in the General Plan will be heard at the 
Planning Commission's September 9, 2020 meeting.  

 
ADJOURNMENT  
The meeting adjourned at 7:47 p.m. 
 

This is to certify that the foregoing is a true 

and correct copy of the minutes of the 

Page 7



PAGE 4 OF 4 
MINUTES OF PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING OF AUGUST 26, 2020 
  
 

C:\Users\AzureAdmin\AppData\Local\Temp\tmp8E99.tmp 

August 26, 2020 meeting as approved by the 

Planning Commission. 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Vicki Blandin 
 

Page 8



 

PREPARED BY: JOCELYN SHOOPMAN 
 Associate Planner 
  
   

Reviewed by:  Planning Manager and Community Development Director   
   
 

110 E. Main Street Los Gatos, CA 95030 ● (408) 354-6872 
www.losgatosca.gov 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
REPORT 

MEETING DATE: 09/09/2020 

ITEM NO: 2   

    

DATE:   September 2, 2020 

TO: Planning Commission 

FROM: Joel Paulson, Community Development Director 

SUBJECT: Consider Approval of a Request for Modification to an Existing Architecture 
and Site Application (S-13-090) to Remove Underground Parking for 
Construction of a Commercial Building (Market Hall) in the North 40 Specific 
Plan Area. Located at 14225 Walker Street.  APN 424-56-017.  Architecture 
and Site Application S-20-012.  Property Owner/Applicant: Summerhill N40, 
LLC.  Project Planner: Jocelyn Shoopman.  

 
REMARKS: 
 
On August 26, 2020, the Planning Commission continued this item to allow Commissioners to 
complete a site visit and to allow for additional public comments to be provided. Attachment 
10 contains public comments received between 11:01 a.m., Wednesday, August 26, 2020 and 
11:00 a.m., Friday, September 4, 2020.   
  
EXHIBITS: 
 
Previously received with August 26, 2020 Staff Report: 
1. Location Map 
2. Required Findings and Considerations 
3. Recommended Conditions of Approval 
4. Project Description 
5. Letter of Justification 
6. Development Plans, received May 18, 2020 
7. Public comments received by 11:00 a.m., Friday, August 21, 2020 
 
Previously received with August 26, 2020 Addendum Report:  
8. Public comments received between 11:01 a.m., Friday, August 21, 2020 and 11:00 a.m., 

Tuesday, August 25, 2020. 
 
 

Page 9



PAGE 2 OF 2 
SUBJECT: 14225 Walker Street/S-20-012 
DATE: September 4, 2020 
 
EXHIBITS (continued): 
 
Previously received with August 26, 2020 Desk Item Report:   
9. Public comments received between 11:01 a.m., Tuesday, August 25, 2020 and 11:00 a.m., 

Wednesday, August 26, 2020. 
 

Received with this Staff Report: 
10. Public comments received between 11:01 a.m., Wednesday August 26, 2020 and 11:00 

a.m., Friday, September 4, 2020 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 10



From: Sheryl Poulson <sheryl.poulson@gmail.com> 
Sent: Friday, September 4, 2020 10:52 AM 
To: Planning Comment <PlanningComment@losgatosca.gov>; jpaulson@losgatos.gov 
Cc: James Poulson <jrpoulson@gmail.com> 
Subject: North 40 parking 
  
Joel, and all at our planning commission, my family and I live in the Highland Oaks neighborhood and like 
the majority, if not all, of our neighbors are vehemently opposed to the proposed elimination of the 
underground parking space. This change, if allowed to go through, will very likely force visitors, shoppers 
& residents to find parking elsewhere ending up creating further degradation to the surrounding 
communities and businesses. This is so typical of large projects like this in where the developers 
interests in reducing their cost, post contractual agreements, begin to eliminate  promised features. We 
must not allow the elimination of the already minimally planned agreed upon parking or another 
changes to the plan. 
  
Your concerned citizens, 
James & Sheryl Poulson and family 
  
Please reply. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
EXHIBIT 10 

Page 11



From: Joan Oloff <lgfootcntr@aol.com> 
Sent: Thursday, September 3, 2020 4:27 PM 
To: Eric Christianson <EChristianson@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: 14225 Walker 
  
Hi Eric, 
  
I hope you are doing well during these crazy times! 
  
I am reaching out to you regarding the proposed modification of 14225 Walker St (removal of 
underground parking). 
  
I apologize, as I could not attend the planning commission meeting. 
  
Eric, this development already under-estimates the parking needs for the development. 
Allowing them to proceed without building out the parking grade would be a huge problem and greatly 
impact the surrounding community. 
  
Please help me express my concerns to the appropriate people on the Planning Commission. 
I am very interested in the outcome of the meeting. 
  
Again, my apologies for not being able to participate on 8/26. 
  
All my best, 
Joan Oloff, D.P.M.,F.A.C.F.A.S. 
lgfootcntr@aol.com 
408-356-2774 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 12

mailto:lgfootcntr@aol.com
mailto:EChristianson@losgatosca.gov
mailto:lgfootcntr@aol.com


Barbara Dodson 
        239 Marchmont Drive 
        Los Gatos, CA 95032 
        September 3, 2020 
 
Dear Members of the Planning Commission:  
SUBJECT: ELIMINATION OF THE UNDERGROUND GARAGE IN THE NORTH 
FORTY  
 
I oppose the elimination of the underground parking garage. I think it will result in an 
insufficient amount of parking, and while looking at the SummerHill proposal I think I’ve 
come across the fact that SummerHill’s provision of parking for the Transition District A, 
B, & C, with the elimination of the garage, will be below the Town’s required number of 
parking stalls. 
 
I think that SummerHill’s proposal has focused on parking for the Market Hall and 
argued that without the underground garage SummerHill would still be fulfilling the 
Town’s requirements for parking. However, the Market Hall parking in the garage is just 
one component of the parking for the entire Transition District A, B & C. With the 
elimination of the parking garage, SummerHill will not meet the Town’s requirements 
for the Transition District A, B & C. 
 
According to Sheet A.11 in SummerHill’s proposal, the Town’s requirement for parking 
stalls in the Transition District A, B, & C is 354. With the elimination of the underground 
garage, SummerHill will be providing only 330 parking spots. 
The bottom line for me is that we can’t approve the SummerHill proposal because it 
provides 24 fewer parking spots than required by the Town. 
 
I hope I have my numbers correct in the explanatory material below. 
Just as a note: SummerHill has provided inconsistent numbers, making it confusing to 

figure out exactly what is being proposed. In some places, SummerHiil says it’s 

providing 330 spaces for the Transition District A, B, & C; in other places it says it’s 

providing 331.  

 

As another example, in the table titled “Market Hall-Parking Requirements,” SummerHill 

gives the required number of parking spaces for the Community Room as 5, but in A.11 

the required number of parking spaces for the Community Room is listed as 4. In the 

table titled “Market Hall-Parking Requirements,” SummerHill gives the required number 

of parking spaces for the Market Hall as 62 as 5, but in A.11 the required number of 

parking spaces for the “Specialty Market” is listed as 55.  

 

1. SUMMERHILL’S NUMBERS SHOW THAT IT IS NOT PROVIDING THE AMOUNT 

OF HOUSING THAT THE TOWN REQUIRES FOR THE TRANSITION DISTRICT 

(Areas A, B, C).  

 

Page 13



• In the adopted Developer’s Phase 1 Plan from 2016: Based on the table titled 

Transition District Area A, B & C Building Area and Parking Tabulations (Table 

3.22, page 58), the required number of parking stalls was 354 for the Transition 

District Area A, B & C (69 residential stalls/residential guest stalls + 285 

commercial stalls). The original developer committed to providing more than that: 

458 (389 commercial stalls (total for the specialty market, retail, restaurant/café, 

bar/tavern, and community room); and 69 residential/residential guest stalls. 

 

TOTAL ADOPTED IN 2016 FOR THE TRANSITION DISTRICT Area A, B & C:  

458 PARKING STALLS 

 

• The SummerHill proposal provides for only 330 parking spaces for the Transition 

District A, B &C. (See A.11: Transition District Building Area and Parking 

Tabulations on page 62 in the Agenda Packet. This is SummerHill’s revised 

version of Table 6.22.) 

• By eliminating the underground garage, SummerHill would provide 24 fewer 

parking spaces than required by the Town for the Transition District A, B & C. 

(354-330=24) 

• Both Table 6.22 in the Developer’s proposal and Table A.11 in SummerHill’s 

proposal show that the Town requirement for commercial stalls is 285. Table 

A.11 shows that under SummerHill’s proposal, SummerHill would provide only 

261 commercial parking stalls. 

• Under its proposal, SummerHill would provide 24 fewer than the required number 

of commercial parking stalls (285-261=24) for the Transition District A, B & C. 

 

THE MATH using numbers from Sheet A.11 

Town required number of parking spaces for the Transition District A, B & C: 
      354 

 285 required commercial spaces + 39 required residential stalls +  
30 required residential guest stalls = 354 required parking spaces 
 

 Number of total spaces proposed by SummerHill: 330  
 261 commercial spaces + 39 residential stalls + 
 30 residential guest stalls = 330 provided parking spaces 
 
OTHER MATH using numbers from Table 6.22 on page 58 of the 
Developer’s Proposal, which is the proposal adopted by the Town 

 Parking spaces in the adopted plan in 2016:   458 
Parking spaces SummerHill wants to eliminate:   127 
Number of total spaces proposed by SummerHill 
    for the Transition District A, B, & C:    331 

 
The Summerhill proposal drops the number of total parking spaces for the 
Transition District A, B & C below the Town’s requirement of 354. SummerHill is 

Page 14



shortchanging the Town by 24 (or 23, depending on which Table you use) parking 
spaces. 

 

2. SUMMERHILL SAYS IT IS PROVIDING EXCESS PARKING. HOW DID 

SUMMERHILL COME UP WITH ITS (I believe, incorrect) NUMBERS?  

SUMMERHILL APPEARS TO HAVE CONFUSED THE REQUIRED NUMBER OF 

COMMERCIAL PARKING SPACES WITH THE REQUIRED NUMBER OF 

TOTAL PARKING SPACES. (See the notes in red in A.11 on the right -- p. 62 

in the Agenda Packet.) 

• In the red notes next to the section outlined in red called Retail, SummerHill 

implies that it will provide a TOTAL OF 330 parking spaces for retail. 

• SummerHill does its math to reach 330 commercial stalls by including 39 

residential stalls and 30 residential guest stalls. 

• SummerHill has a deficit of 24 parking stalls below the requirement of 285 

commercial stalls. It does not have 45 extra commercial stalls as is claimed. 

 

Also note on Sheet A.11 that in the column headed “Total. Required Number of 

Commercial Stalls.” SummerHill lists 285. Then, just 2 columns to the right, under 

“Provided Commercial Stalls,” it lists 261. In its own chart, SummerHill clearly shows 

that there is a deficit of 24 commercial parking stalls. 

 

3. THE PARKING GARAGE ALREADY HAD AN INSUFFICIENT NUMBER OF 

PARKING SPACES. The developer wants to drop the number of parking spaces in 

the garage from 303 to 176. But there was already a lack of parking in the garage in 

the adopted plan. Specifically, the parking for the 50-unit senior complex wasn’t 

realistic. The allotment was 1 space per senior unit for a total of 50 spaces--½ space 

for each resident and ½ space for guests. The developer said most of the seniors 

wouldn’t be able to afford cars. It also assumed each senior unit would have just one 

resident.  

 In fact it’s possible that each senior unit will have two or even more residents. There 
may be one or more cars connected to each unit for a possible total of more than 50 
cars. This uses up all the unit spaces and then some without accounting for guests.  
Suppose the residents of the 50 senior units use their 50 parking spots. 126 spaces 
remain for the Market Hall, Bakery, and Community Room. Let’s say 10 seniors and 
their guests use 30 additional spaces. We’re down to 96 spaces.  
How about employees at the Market Hall and bakery? Let’s say they use 20 spaces. 

We’re down to 76 spaces for shoppers and people using the community room. Is this 

enough??? 

 

How about overflow parking from other areas? There will be 71 one-bedroom units 

with one garage each. Suppose two people live in these units and each person has 

a car. We now have 71 more cars that will be seeking parking. The garage would be 

a logical space for these residents to use. 

Page 15



4. WE NEED AN EXPLANATION FOR WHY THE DEVELOPER THINKS THE NEW 

PARKING ALLOCATIONS ARE ADEQUATE.  The developer claims to be justifying 

the new lowered parking allocations using city code and the specific plan. Logic and 

common sense have clearly not been applied here. For example, the 2,032 square 

foot bakery has 7 spaces. Is this for employees as well as patrons? Will there be 

seating within the bakery?  If yes, 7 parking spaces are hardly enough. How about 

the community room? It gets 4 parking spaces for its 2,772 square feet. Obviously 

more than 5 people can easily attend a meeting in such a space. Where are they 

supposed to park? 

 

5. PARKING WILL STILL BE NEEDED FOR FUTURE DEVELOPMENT. The 

SummerHill proposal states that “The Market Hall was originally designed with a 

basement level by Grosvenor, with the intent to use the excess parking for future 

development in Phase II of North 40. With Grosvenor no longer involved in Phase I 

of the project, SummerHill has no need for parking beyond what is required by Town 

Code and the specific plan.” 

 

But the need for parking for future development has not changed.  There will still be 

future development and thus still a need for parking.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

Barbara Dodson 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 16



From: Fremont Bainbridge <fbainbridge58@gmail.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, September 1, 2020 7:03:43 PM 
To: Joel Paulson <jpaulson@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: North 40 Underground Parking  
  
Joel, 
 
I read on Nextdoor that the developer of the North 40 area wants to eliminate previously agreed upon 
underground parking. I object to this, both on principle and practically. This is not a trivial change, and I 
don’t think there is any reason to believe that parking requirements are now substantially less originally 
planned for. I hope this will be rejected.  
 
Sincerely, 
Fremont Bainbridge  
 
Sent from my mobile phone. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17

mailto:fbainbridge58@gmail.com
mailto:jpaulson@losgatosca.gov


From: awnalee visalli <awnaleevisalli@gmail.com> 
Sent: Monday, August 31, 2020 8:55:50 PM 
To: Joel Paulson <jpaulson@losgatosca.gov> 
Cc: Planning Comment <PlanningComment@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: Parking at North 40  
  
I live across Lark from the North 40 and urge you to make sure that MAXIMUM parking is allocated for. 
Parking is always an issue, especially in such highly populated areas.   
 
Less parking at the North 40 means me and my families health, home and happiness will be affected 
negatively. Please push for as much parking as possible and MORE. 
 
Thank you, 
 
Awnalee Visalli 
LG resident of 13 years. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 18

mailto:awnaleevisalli@gmail.com
mailto:jpaulson@losgatosca.gov
mailto:PlanningComment@losgatosca.gov


From: Henry Richards <hrichards@rxdox.net>  
Sent: Monday, August 31, 2020 3:11 PM 
To: Planning Comment <PlanningComment@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: Underground Parking at "North 40" 
 

Dear Planning Commission, 
 
I was concerned to learn that the current owner/developer of the “North 40” project will 
now seek a waiver from the requirement to provide the additional underground parking 
originally required by the Planning Commission in the permit process. 
Although I understand the argument that “plans have changed”, that was not a part of the 
original agreements. This argument is only valid if the original agreement stipulated some 
sort of “change order” accommodation. 
 
There is already sufficient and reasonable concern regarding the impact on traffic 
congestion at an already busy corridor and intersection. The costs associated with the 
underground parking was “built in” to the original “Grosvenor” proposals by which the 
Planning Commission approved the project. SummerHill would argue that the underground 
parking requirement was part of the Grosvenor plan and that they shouldn’t be responsible 
to live up to it. This does not reflect customary business practices of mergers and 
acquisitions in which the buyer (SummerHill) assumes all debts, obligations, and 
contractual agreements of the seller (Grosvenor). That is to say that costs, profit margins, 
and liabilities were all accommodated by the original agreement. Hence, “they bought it” 
and “they own it” including all original requirements… otherwise they should’ve 
renegotiated with the Town for a waiver or variance. 
 
They are saying that the additional parking is no longer needed… but, what if it is? I would 
argue that building for “excess capacity” (when it should not impact the value of the 
project) far outweighs falling short and letting the rest of us suffer the consequences. 
 
Henry Richards 
Los Gatos Resident 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 19

mailto:hrichards@rxdox.net
mailto:PlanningComment@losgatosca.gov


From: Philippa Alvis <philippaalvis@gmail.com> 
Sent: Sunday, August 30, 2020 5:40:07 PM 
To: Joel Paulson <jpaulson@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: underground parking in North 40  
  
Dear Mr. Paulson 
 
Although I am not a resident of Los Gatos, I do live in the area affected by the North 40 development.   I 
urge you to flatly deny the applicant 's request for elimination of the underground parking.  The planned 
development is totally under allocated for all parking as provided.  Since many of us in the area will  
patronize the commercial sector of this development--bringing tax dollars to Los Gatos-- we need 
convenient parking that will NOT impact  the housing development nor the adjacent local streets.  No 
matter how the current developer  howls and cries about his loss of partnership, or any other excuse,  as 
a reason or cause for his request to omit the underground parking, I strongly urge you to deny this 
request.  The North 40 development is bad enough as it is---no need to make it worse by eliminating 
essential parking !   
 
Philippa and Jack Alvis  
17664 Blanchard  Dr.  
Monte Sereno 95030 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 20

mailto:philippaalvis@gmail.com
mailto:jpaulson@losgatosca.gov


From: Erin Kasenchak <ekasenchak@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Sunday, August 30, 2020 9:02:59 AM 
To: Joel Paulson <jpaulson@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: North 40 parking  
  
Hello -  as a long time LG resident who was not pleased with the handling of the North 40 community 
awareness to begin with, I must adamantly request that the town ensure the developers stick with their 
commitment to underground parking. As everyone is aware, parking is an issue in downtown LG and will 
likely be at the North 40 if it’s as successful as everyone hopes. Part of that success will depend on 
whether people want to visit and feel they can easily find parking. Think of Santa rows terrible parking. 
The need for adequate parking that does not take away from planned open space was agreed to by the 
developer. Please make them honor that.  
 
Erin Kasenchak 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 21

mailto:ekasenchak@yahoo.com
mailto:jpaulson@losgatosca.gov


From: Lou Albert <loua@mac.com> 
Sent: Saturday, August 29, 2020 5:28:04 PM 
To: Joel Paulson <jpaulson@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: Please deny the N40 parking change petition  
  
Hi Joel  
 
I’m a longtime LG resident and I am urging the planning commission to deny the North 40 developer’s 
petition to eliminate the current slated underground parking garage. This project is already going to 
bring many unhelpful issues to our town. Having parking spill over and/or create more surface parking 
once this development is finished is avoidable and not in the best interest of our community.  
 
Thank you 
 
Lou Albert 
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 22

mailto:loua@mac.com
mailto:jpaulson@losgatosca.gov


From: Diane Dreher <ddreher@scu.edu> 
Sent: Friday, August 28, 2020 4:48:19 PM 
To: Joel Paulson <jpaulson@losgatosca.gov>; Laurel Prevetti <LPrevetti@losgatosca.gov>; Planning 
<Planning@losgatosca.gov> 
Cc: Diane Dreher <ddreher@scu.edu> 
Subject: Concern about proposed elimination of 127 parking spaces in North 40  
  

Diane Dreher, Ph.D.  
223 Arroyo Grande Way 
Los Gatos, CA 95032 
 
Dear Planning Commissioners: 

Re: proposed elimination of 127 parking spaces in North 40 underground garage  

I ask you to reject SummerHill’s request to eliminate these 127 parking 

spaces,  maintaining the original contractual agreement for the following reasons: 

1.    Concern for senior residents. Earlier Town Council discussions pointed to 

the lack of adequate parking in the Market Place complex. The original plan was 

for  one-half space per unit, based on the assumption that many low-income 

seniors would not own cars, and one-half space for guests for a total of 50 

spaces devoted to the 71 one-bedroom units of senior housing. The current 

request to reduce the number of available spaces would cause additional 

hardship to those seniors with cars who would need ADA accommodation by 

elevator to accessible parking of their cars in the underground parking garage.   
2.    Concern about the math. The developers also assumed that for the 71 one-

bedroom units there would be only one senior resident per unit, when, in fact, 

there may be quite a few couples in a single unit. It is also possible that there 

would be one car connected to each unit, using all 50 spaces, leaving no room 

for guests to park. These guests might include essential caregivers as well as 

family members. 
3.    Concern about the math re: shoppers. If all 50 resident spaces are used, 

then guests would need to park in the remaining 126 parking spots planned for 

the Market Hall, Bakery, and Community Room. Where, then, would the 

shoppers park? The reduction in parking spaces would likely sabotage the 

Market Hall, discouraging away potential customers.  
4.    Concern about developers keeping their word. The reduction of parking 

places seems like a “bait and switch” to me. During the original hearings, the 

developers sounded reluctant to build the underground parking structure but 

agreed to 303 spaces for the garage. Now they want to reduce the number to 

176. The number of parking spaces was part of the original contractual 

agreement approved by the Town Council. Any change would be a violation of 

that contract. Letting the developers arbitrarily change their plans would set a 

bad precedent, opening the way for further changes by SummerHill  that would 

break their word and betray the interests of the citizens of Los Gatos. 

Page 23

mailto:ddreher@scu.edu
mailto:jpaulson@losgatosca.gov
mailto:LPrevetti@losgatosca.gov
mailto:Planning@losgatosca.gov
mailto:ddreher@scu.edu


I, therefore, urge the Planning Commission to reject the developer’s request to eliminate 

these 127 parking places in the proposed underground garage.  

Sincerely, 

Diane Dreher 

--  
Diane Dreher 
Professor of English 
Associate Director, Applied Spirituality Institute 
https://www.scu.edu/ic/about/affiliated-works/asi/   
Santa Clara University 
500 El Camino Real 
Santa Clara CA 95053 
(408) 554-4954 
ddreher@scu.edu 
Follow my Tao of Inner Peace page https://www.facebook.com/TaoOfInnerPeace/ 
Get the Tao of Inner Peace 
newsletter https://www.facebook.com/TaoOfInnerPeace/app/141428856257/ 
http://www.dianedreher.com 
https://www.northstarpersonalcoaching.com/ 
 
"Our greatest natural resources are our hearts and minds, together with those of the people 
around us."    
                                                                                               The Tao of Personal Leadership   
Check out my blogs:  

http://www.psychologytoday.com/blog/your-personal-renaissance 

https://blogs.scu.edu/writeherewritenow/ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 24

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.scu.edu%2Fic%2Fabout%2Faffiliated-works%2Fasi%2F&data=01%7C01%7Cjpaulson%40losgatosca.gov%7Cb276c1ce1aed473e359d08d84bacdb89%7C6d38cb6747eb4d139e7c523cd7ccecd5%7C1&sdata=Iem%2F9lbwOLB77vCfUronK6tV5bRZosVvGY4Zg9gkvH4%3D&reserved=0
mailto:ddreher@scu.edu
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2FTaoOfInnerPeace%2F&data=01%7C01%7Cjpaulson%40losgatosca.gov%7Cb276c1ce1aed473e359d08d84bacdb89%7C6d38cb6747eb4d139e7c523cd7ccecd5%7C1&sdata=Z23B5yvz8V5Qnl5t9e66LAxIrL9zxsEEbC0GZqRm7Hs%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2FTaoOfInnerPeace%2Fapp%2F141428856257%2F&data=01%7C01%7Cjpaulson%40losgatosca.gov%7Cb276c1ce1aed473e359d08d84bacdb89%7C6d38cb6747eb4d139e7c523cd7ccecd5%7C1&sdata=2Fs2O%2F%2BnXAbeHAQBu%2Fted2wsG7sZ3DCPkmFzIg4lSrI%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.dianedreher.com%2F&data=01%7C01%7Cjpaulson%40losgatosca.gov%7Cb276c1ce1aed473e359d08d84bacdb89%7C6d38cb6747eb4d139e7c523cd7ccecd5%7C1&sdata=LhW0A%2Fs9jBAunE15dFU6E9C5Lk2pYXyf6ZRVyHX3BGY%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.northstarpersonalcoaching.com%2F&data=01%7C01%7Cjpaulson%40losgatosca.gov%7Cb276c1ce1aed473e359d08d84bacdb89%7C6d38cb6747eb4d139e7c523cd7ccecd5%7C1&sdata=qoMXk9QW0NVK3rKRShdFFhfJf4Vgtn1jNOnbzKpA2K4%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.psychologytoday.com%2Fblog%2Fyour-personal-renaissance&data=01%7C01%7Cjpaulson%40losgatosca.gov%7Cb276c1ce1aed473e359d08d84bacdb89%7C6d38cb6747eb4d139e7c523cd7ccecd5%7C1&sdata=4F3SB3NOzYxlO4CId%2BcPWPyg5qdvZvwyheCAzWfD4%2BQ%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fblogs.scu.edu%2Fwriteherewritenow%2F&data=01%7C01%7Cjpaulson%40losgatosca.gov%7Cb276c1ce1aed473e359d08d84bacdb89%7C6d38cb6747eb4d139e7c523cd7ccecd5%7C1&sdata=0y7DNi3%2FQg6eFK%2FtJJCIcbfaKNkqfnztVb4WLyXCDSU%3D&reserved=0


From: Liana Palmer <lianapalm@aol.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, August 26, 2020 7:31 PM 
To: Jocelyn Shoopman <jshoopman@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: Fwd: North 40 don't scratch below garage parking 
 

Hi again,  
This is  
Liana Palmer 
16345 Los Gatos Blvd, #30 
Los Gatos, CA 95032 
408-455-2582 
 
Please do not let Summerhill off the hook for this parking that in original plan provides 
spaces for future Phase II. Grovsner developers made this below surface parking and 
Summerhill just wants to reduce costs despite their stated reasons that are phony. 
 
Thank you, Liana Palmer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 25



From: Liana Palmer <lianapalm@aol.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, August 26, 2020 7:26 PM 
To: Jocelyn Shoopman <jshoopman@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: North 40 don't scratch below garage parking 
 

The justification of SummerHill is weak. It is a bait and switch. This lot was intended to 
provide some parking that would be used by the Phase II structures. Eliminating it would 
put more parking on the surface of Phase II. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 26



From: Suzi Hellwege <sjhellwege@gmail.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, August 26, 2020 5:56:33 PM 
To: Joel Paulson <jpaulson@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: north 40 changes  
  
Hello Joel: 
 
I just heard that underground parking for the North 40 project is being removed from builder plans.  I 
live near 85/17 and about a mile away from the project, and feel strongly that the developer should be 
held to the original plan.  Without adequate parking cars may spill out to neighborhoods or impede 
parking for residents of that project.  Also, the traffic impact will be greater if cars have to circle to find 
parking.   
Please register my opinion as a 30+ year resident of Campbell and soon to be resident of Los Gatos. 
 
Thank you, 
Susan Hellwege  
White Oaks Court, Campbell  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 27

mailto:sjhellwege@gmail.com
mailto:jpaulson@losgatosca.gov


From: Amy Despars <amydespars@hotmail.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, August 26, 2020 4:17 PM 
To: Joel Paulson <jpaulson@losgatosca.gov>; Laurel Prevetti <LPrevetti@losgatosca.gov>; Planning 
<Planning@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: Fw: Just Say No to the North 40 Developers 
 

 
To the Los Gatos Town Council 
Please do not allow Summerhill to change the final agreement between the Town and 
Grosvenor/Summerhill. This agreement was also part of the very lengthy deliberations and 
discussions between Grosvenor, the Planning Committee, Town Council, and the community 
members throughout the process.   
 
Below is how I understand the original plan to work. 
 
The senior housing only has 25 parking spaces for 50 units.  What if a couple has two cars or 
visitors? The bakery only has 7 required parking spaces.  Where do they expect the employees 
to park along with the customers? The community center has 5-7 parking spaces.  Where are all 
of the people going to the community center, going to park? 
 
It is my understanding that residential units that are part of the North 40 project are being 
allotted minimal parking spaces and, therefore, this underground parking lot can potentially 
serve as overflow residential parking when needed. 
  
The 127 spaces of underground parking is needed to provide additional parking for this 
development.  This is much needed parking that will be utilized.  It is common sense to follow 
the plan and put in the underground parking now and have enough spaces for all needs.  Los 
Gatos Blvd. cannot handle more parked cars.  The neighborhoods, who fought against this 
project in the first place, do not want cars from the North 40 in their neighborhoods, including 
ACE Hardware or Office Depot. These neighborhoods already have too many cars parked on 
their streets from medical offices, Trader Joe’s and pre-Covid Google bus commuters. 
 
The PAMF building on Gateway and Los Gatos Blvd. was originally slated to be mixed use with 
medical, retail, restaurant.  To our disappointment the agreed upon plan at the time got 
changed thanks to the developers. Please do not let this happen again.  Developers do not live 
in our neighborhoods and are not looking out for the communities best interest.  They just 
want to make money.   
 
PLEASE DO NOT ALLOW ANY CHANGES TO THE ORIGINAL PLAN.     
 
Thank you for your time. 
Amy Despars 
267 Longridge Rd. 
Los Gatos, Ca 95032 

Page 28

mailto:amydespars@hotmail.com
mailto:jpaulson@losgatosca.gov
mailto:LPrevetti@losgatosca.gov
mailto:Planning@losgatosca.gov


From: Teresa Siguenza <t62siguenza@gmail.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, August 26, 2020 3:54 PM 
To: Joel Paulson <jpaulson@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: North 40 disgrace 
 
Hello, 
I am a 15 year resident of 118 Highland Oaks Way, Los Gatos, CA 95032. We are on the first cul de sac as 
you turn off of Lark Avenue. This means that the cars for the North 40 will be parking on our street and 
along the connecting streets as well. Now, I find out that the developers are changing the parking plan 
to cut the amount of parking. THIS IS UNACCEPTABLE!  
 
There are 6 houses in our cul de sac. All six houses have older children who are drivers themselves which 
means that all of these houses have at least 4 cars.  There are ONLY 6 spaces of parking on our street. 
Therefore, if any one of us has guests, they must take one of those 6 street spaces. But, if the North 40 
has less parking, then those cars will be taking up our guest spaces. This is not fair!  
 
Our children have never felt safe with the amount of cars that pull in just to turn around (and they go 
extremely fast) or to circumvent the long line to turn right at Los Gatos Blvd. Cutting parking in the 
North 40 means more cars to enter Highland Oaks Drive and Highland Oaks Way (and the cul de sacs 
further down). They won't be looking out for kids! They want the closest space to park with the quickest 
way to get to their North 40 residence/ shopping.  
 
The developers of the North 40 made a big deal about "owing the owners of the North 40" and "the 
town already gave the approval to the development in the first place" as an excuse to bring a lawsuit to 
the town for not going through with the development. So, I think it's only fair to discuss what the 
developers OWE us, the townspeople, who they want to shop in their shops and buy their houses. 
Develop the parking structures as was originally planned and do not change it!  We could possibly take 
up a lawsuit to them for going back on their word.  
 
My children MUST stay safe! Adding more cars to our streets because developers want to make more 
money is NOT keeping my kids safe! The potential for children getting hit in our neighborhood increases 
100 fold with every car that is now going to be driving through our streets because of the lack of 
parking! 
 
Please stop their changes to the parking structures on the North 40 and keep our neighborhood safe. 
This practice of changing plans is not in good faith and should be sold out as such! 
 
Sincerely, 
Teresa Siguenza 
Los Gatos resident 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 29

mailto:t62siguenza@gmail.com
mailto:jpaulson@losgatosca.gov


From: Patricia Ernstrom <pernstrom@me.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, August 26, 2020 11:58 AM 
To: Joel Paulson <jpaulson@losgatosca.gov>; Laurel Prevetti <LPrevetti@losgatosca.gov>; Planning 
<Planning@losgatosca.gov>; Council <Council@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: North 40 Parking and Lighting 
 

Dear Los Gatos Town Council Members and Town Staff: 

It has been brought to my attention that the developer of the North 40 has returned to the Town in an 
attempt to change the approved plan for underground parking.   

While I am still very disappointed in the overall outcome and approved plans for the North 40 related to a 
host of considerations including density, traffic and impact on existing downtown businesses, the idea that 
Summerhill is now trying to remove a key element -- the underground parking -- should not be 
allowed.  Even with the parking that is already part of the plan, it may be insufficient.  

Please do not allow Summerhill to change the plan regarding the agreed provision of parking.   

As an additional note (that I have made before Council previously), Los Gatos and the region are 
experiencing the many negative effects of LIGHT POLLUTION.   I would continue to ask the Council and 
Staff to be vigilant in ensuring this major project as well as all new construction and projects, take into 
account and ONLY permit LOW IMPACT LIGHTING.  Our night sky is one of Los Gatos' treasures, and 
slowly but surely, the ability to see stars and enjoy the quietness of the evenings, are now 
getting overshadowed by blaring "city lights", street lights and exterior residential light schemes. 

Thank you for your ongoing commitment to ensuring the TOWN of Los Gatos retains its unique 
charm.  You are the stewards working on the residents behalf, and we are asking for your help. 

Warm Regards, 

 

Patricia Ernstrom 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 30

mailto:pernstrom@me.com
mailto:jpaulson@losgatosca.gov
mailto:LPrevetti@losgatosca.gov
mailto:Planning@losgatosca.gov
mailto:Council@losgatosca.gov


From: Hua Jiang <hua@huajiang.org>  
Sent: Wednesday, August 26, 2020 11:41 AM 
To: Joel Paulson <jpaulson@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: North 40 Underground parking 
 
Dear Mr. Paulson, 
 
My name is Hua Jiang. I am writing to express my opposition to the proposed plan to remove 
underground parking of the North 40 project. The removal would lead to vehicles circling around already 
congested LG/Lark intersection, and force overflow traffic to park in adjacent residential areas. 
 
If the underground parking level was not necessary, why would the builder propose it in the first place? 
Such bait-and-switch strategy deserves a sound defeat. I am respectfully asking the commission to reject 
the proposal. 
 
Thank you for your consideration. 
 
-Hua Jiang 
Linda Ave, Los Gatos 
 

Page 31

mailto:hua@huajiang.org
mailto:jpaulson@losgatosca.gov


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 
 

Page 32



 

PREPARED BY: JOCELYN SHOOPMAN 
 Associate Planner 
  
   

Reviewed by:  Planning Manager and Community Development Director   
   
 

110 E. Main Street Los Gatos, CA 95030 ● (408) 354-6872 
www.losgatosca.gov 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
REPORT 

MEETING DATE: 09/09/2020 

ITEM NO: 2  

DESK ITEM 

 
   

DATE:   September 9, 2020 

TO: Planning Commission 

FROM: Joel Paulson, Community Development Director 

SUBJECT: Consider Approval of a Request for Modification to an Existing Architecture 
and Site Application (S-13-090) to Remove Underground Parking for 
Construction of a Commercial Building (Market Hall) in the North 40 Specific 
Plan Area. Located at 14225 Walker Street. APN 424-56-017.  Architecture 
and Site Application S-20-012.  Property Owner/Applicant: Summerhill N40, 
LLC.     

 
REMARKS: 
 
Exhibit 11 includes additional public comments received between 11:01 a.m., Friday, 
September 4, 2020 and 11:00 a.m., Wednesday, September 9, 2020. 
 
EXHIBITS: 
 
Previously received with August 26, 2020 Staff Report: 
1. Location Map 
2. Required Findings and Considerations 
3. Recommended Conditions of Approval 
4. Project Description 
5. Letter of Justification 
6. Development Plans, received May 18, 2020 
7. Public comments received by 11:00 a.m., Friday, August 21, 2020 
 
Previously received with August 26, 2020 Addendum Report: 
8. Public Comments received between 11:01 a.m., Friday, August 21, 2020 and 11:00 a.m., 

Tuesday, August 25, 2020. 
 
Previously received with August 26, 2020 Desk Item Report: 
9. Public Comments received between 11:01 a.m., Tuesday, August 25, 2020 and 11:00 a.m., 

Wednesday, August 26, 2020 

Page 33



PAGE 2 OF 2 
SUBJECT: 14225 Walker Street/S-20-012 
DATE:  September 9, 2020 
 
EXHIBITS (continued): 
 
Previously received with September 9, 2020 Staff Report: 
10. Public comments received between 11:01 a.m., Wednesday, August 26, 2020 and 11:00 

a.m., Friday, September 4, 2020 
 
Received with this Desk Item Report: 
11. Public comments received between 11:01 a.m., Friday, September 4, 2020 and 11:00 a.m., 

Wednesday, September 9, 2020 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 34



  

From: Robert Gore <robertgore@aol.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, September 8, 2020 6:09 PM 
To: Planning Comment <PlanningComment@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: North 40 underground parking  
 
 
has anything changed with regard to underground north 40 parking? 
 
Robert Gore 
robertgore@aol.com 
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT 11 

Page 35

mailto:robertgore@aol.com
mailto:PlanningComment@losgatosca.gov
mailto:robertgore@aol.com


  

From: Kathy Parker <jandkparker@mindspring.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 9, 2020 6:02 AM 
To: Joel Paulson <jpaulson@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: Re: North 40 Proposed Changes - NO 
 
As long-time residents of Los Gatos my husband and I are emphatically against the proposed elimination 
of the underground parking garage on the North 40 development. This would lead to the adjacent 
neighborhoods having to deal with increased parking on their streets, which they can ill-afford, and also 
increased pedestrian traffic on Lark Ave. and Los Gatos Blvd. as people would have to cross them to get 
to their cars. It is not fair to the adjacent neighborhoods to make them deal with the increase in car and 
foot traffic, nor to have them have to deal with the intricacies of permit parking schemes. 
 
The developers agreed to the parking set-up, it is now up to them to adhere to it. 
 
Joseph and Kathy Parker 
Ferris Ave. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 36

mailto:jandkparker@mindspring.com
mailto:jpaulson@losgatosca.gov


  

From: John Kirsten <johnkirs10@gmail.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, September 9, 2020 5:29 AM 
To: Jocelyn Shoopman <jshoopman@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: North 40 concerns 
 
Hello Joel, 
 

I am writing to you regarding the North 40 development.  The LG planning commission has approved the 
FiINAL plan that includes underground parking.  Please do your job and NOT change this.  This 
development is huge and this parking is a crucial part of it.    It is unbelievable that the developer is 
trying to do this, only to protect their bottom line.  Please do not cave in to their request.  The traffic is 
going to be next to intolerable when this opens.   Please don’t make the parking a problem as well.   
From a very concerned Los Gatos resident, 
 
John Kirsten 
16481 Apple Blossom  
Los Gatos 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 37



  

From: Andrew Cohen 
Sent: Monday, September 7, 2020 6:03:29 PM (UTC-08:00) Pacific Time (US & Canada) 

To: Planning 

Subject: North 40 Underground Parking 

To the LG Town Council and Planning Commission, 

I am writing to express my concern with Summerhill’s proposal to reduce the total number of underground 
parking spaces.  The elimination of these underground spaces will reduce the total available parking in 
the complex below the Town’s requirement of 354 by approximately 23 to 24 spaces.  This will likely 
result in cars being parked in the surrounding neighborhoods and in the surrounding shopping areas 
creating more traffic and congestion. 

Please make sure the Town and Summerhill execute the project to the original planned number of 
parking spaces including the number that were planned for underground.  Let's do what is best for The 
new North 40 residents and businesses, surrounding neighborhood and businesses, and Los Gatos.  

Best regards, 

Andrew Cohen 

Longridge Rd, Los Gatos, CA 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 38



  

From: suzy.seandel@gmail.com 
Sent: Monday, September 7, 2020 10:55:54 AM (UTC-08:00) Pacific Time (US & Canada) 

To: Planning; Joel Paulson; Laurel Prevetti 

Subject: North 40 Parking  

                                                               
I oppose to the elimination of the underground parking garage as it will result in an 
insufficient amount of parking and below the Town’s required number of parking stalls. 
The Market Hall parking in the garage is just one component of the parking for the entire 
Transition District A, B & C. With the elimination of the parking garage, SummerHill will 
not meet the Town’s requirements. 
  
1.    THE PARKING GARAGE ALREADY HAD AN INSUFFICIENT NUMBER OF 

PARKING SPACES. The developer wants to drop the number of parking spaces in 

the garage from 303 to 176. But there was already a lack of parking in the garage in 

the adopted plan. Specifically, the parking for the 50-unit senior complex wasn’t 

realistic. The allotment was 1 space per senior unit for a total of 50 spaces--½ space 

for each resident and ½ space for guests. The developer said most of the seniors 

wouldn’t be able to afford cars. It also assumed each senior unit would have just one 

resident.  

     In fact it’s possible that each senior unit will have two or even more residents. There 
may be one or more cars connected to each unit for a possible total of more than 50 
cars. This uses up all the unit spaces and then some.  

  

2.    PARKING WILL STILL BE NEEDED FOR FUTURE DEVELOPMENT. The 

SummerHill proposal states that “The Market Hall was originally designed with a 

basement level by Grosvenor, with the intent to use the excess parking for future 

development in Phase II of North 40. With Grosvenor no longer involved in Phase I 

of the project, SummerHill has no need for parking beyond what is required by Town 

Code and the specific plan.” 

But the need for parking for future development has not changed.  There will still be 

future development and thus still a need for parking. 

  

Regards, 

Suzy Seandel 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 39

mailto:suzy.seandel@gmail.com


  

From: John Despars <john.j.despars@gmail.com> 
Sent: Monday, September 7, 2020 7:28:42 AM 
To: Joel Paulson <jpaulson@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: North 40 parking  
  
Los Gatos town- 
 
Please keep the underground parking.  We don’t need more cars on Los Gatos blvd. 
 
Thank you 
 
Sent from my iPad 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 40

mailto:john.j.despars@gmail.com
mailto:jpaulson@losgatosca.gov


  

From: Hua Jiang <hua@huajiang.org> 
Sent: Monday, September 7, 2020 1:33:01 AM 
To: Joel Paulson <jpaulson@losgatosca.gov>; Jocelyn Shoopman <jshoopman@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: North 40 Underground Parking  
 
Dear Town Planning Commission Staff, 
 
My name is Hua Jiang. I am writing to express my opposition to the proposed plan to remove 
underground parking of the North 40 project. The removal would lead to vehicles circling around already 
congested LG/Lark intersection, and force overflow traffic to park in adjacent residential areas. 
 
If the underground parking level was not necessary, why would the builder(s) propose it in the first 
place? Such bait-and-switch strategy deserves a sound defeat. I am respectfully asking the Commission 
to reject the proposal. 
 
Thank you for your consideration. 
 
-Hua Jiang 
Linda Ave, Los Gatos 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 41

mailto:hua@huajiang.org
mailto:jpaulson@losgatosca.gov
mailto:jshoopman@losgatosca.gov


  

From: Maria Ladle Ristow <m.ladle.ristow@gmail.com> 
Sent: Sunday, September 6, 2020 6:26:17 PM 
To: Planning <Planning@losgatosca.gov>; Planning Comment <PlanningComment@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: Planning Commission Meeting, 9/6/20; Item #2  
  

Dear Planning Commissioners and Town Staff, 

Regarding Item # 2, Consider Approval of a Request for Modification to an Existing Architecture 
and Site Application to Remove Underground Parking for Construction of a Commercial Building 
(Market Hall) in the North 40 Specific Plan Area. I was intending to speak at the Planning 
Commission meeting of 8/26/20, but since the meeting was continued, I will submit those 
comments in writing. 

I encourage you to deny the request. There are very good reasons to retain the planned 
underground parking. While I don't believe in requiring over-parking anywhere, we know from a 
land-use point of view that a parking garage can store cars more efficiently than surface parking. 
The Town of Los Gatos created the North 40 Specific Plan so that the entire 40+ acres would be 
cohesive and work together, regardless of the fact that there are several different landowners, 
and the development will occur in phases. Underground parking was requested by a large 
number of residents as the Specific Plan was formulated. It is unfortunate that the developer that 
planned the parking garage, is not the one building it, but those 174 extra spaces could possibly 
offset street parking in the next phase of whatever is built. Whether the next phase is office, a 
hotel, housing. or anything else the town approves, cars will be a part of it, and they will need 
storage. And once the Market Hall garage is completed, there will be no going back and digging 
below-grade parking later. Please stick with the original approval and deny this request to 
eliminate the underground parking. 

Thank you, 
Maria Ristow  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 42

mailto:m.ladle.ristow@gmail.com
mailto:Planning@losgatosca.gov
mailto:PlanningComment@losgatosca.gov


  

 
 
From: MARY PATTERSON <mmpmitzi@comcast.net> 
Sent: Sunday, September 6, 2020 3:27:16 PM 
To: Joel Paulson <jpaulson@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: North 40 Parking  
  

Mr. Paulson,  
 
Please do not allow a change in the underground parking for the North 40 
complex.  The development will already be an eyesore that causes additional traffic and 
we don't need their cars parked all over our streets.    
 
This development was approved and shoved down our throats, so they should have to 
abide by their contract.  
 
Thank you,  
Mary Patterson  
Los Gatos  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 43

mailto:mmpmitzi@comcast.net
mailto:jpaulson@losgatosca.gov


  

 
 
 
From: jan prinzivalli 
Sent: Friday, September 4, 2020 6:10:29 PM (UTC-08:00) Pacific Time (US & Canada) 
To: Planning 
Subject: North Forty 
 
Please do not allow the developers at the North 40 to deviate from the original plan and reduce the 
number of parking spaces on the site. 
Thank you- 
Jan Prinzivalli 
101 Charter Oaks Circle 
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 44



  

 
 
 
From: Rochelle Greenfield <rbg67@aol.com> 
Sent: Friday, September 4, 2020 1:11 PM 
To: Joel Paulson <jpaulson@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: North 40  
 
Build the garage as per plans or donate the 4m to the city.    
 
Thank you 
Rochelle Greenfield  
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 45

mailto:rbg67@aol.com
mailto:jpaulson@losgatosca.gov


  

 
 
From: Bernard Greenfield <BGreenfield@greenfieldlaw.com>  
Sent: Friday, September 4, 2020 1:14 PM 
To: Joel Paulson <jpaulson@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: North 40 
 
I have lived in Los Gatos for over 40 years. The developer, having compelled the town to allow 
development, should be required to strictly adhere to the approved plan(s). No deviation- they must 
build the garage. 
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 

Bernard Greenfield 
Partner 
 

 

 

 

Greenfield LLP 
55 S. Market Street, Suite 1500 
 

San Jose ,  CA ,  95113 
 

Office: (408) 995-5600 Ext. 310 
Direct: (408) 212-7737 
www.greenfieldlaw.com 

  

The information contained in this e-mail message is intended only for the personal and confidential use of the recipient(s) named 
above.  This message may be an attorney-client communication and/or work product and as such is privileged and confidential.  If the 
reader of this message is not the intended recipient or an agent responsible for delivering it to the intended recipient, you are hereby 
notified that you have received this document in error and that any review, dissemination, distribution or copying of this message is 
strictly prohibited.  If you have received this communication in error, pleasenotify us immediately by e-mail and delete the original 
message.  Nothing in this message should be interpreted as a digital or electronic signature that can be used to authenticate a contract 
or other legal document. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 46

mailto:BGreenfield@greenfieldlaw.com
mailto:jpaulson@losgatosca.gov
tel:(408)%20995-5600%20Ext.%20310
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.greenfieldlaw.com%2F&data=01%7C01%7Cjpaulson%40losgatosca.gov%7C744c1eed91224b4eca6708d8510f253f%7C6d38cb6747eb4d139e7c523cd7ccecd5%7C1&sdata=B1RkfoneID7VVcsBYOQ7vPLo3fLSJeyuHu6MLDFw0bg%3D&reserved=0


  

 
From: Sheryl Poulson <sheryl.poulson@gmail.com>  
Sent: Friday, September 4, 2020 11:30 AM 
To: Joel Paulson <jpaulson@losgatosca.gov> 
Cc: James Poulson <jrpoulson@gmail.com> 
Subject: North 40 parking 
 
Joel, and all at our planning commission, my family and I live in the Highland Oaks neighborhood and like 
the majority, if not all, of our neighbors are vehemently opposed to the proposed elimination of the 
underground parking space. This change, if allowed to go through, will very likely force visitors, shoppers 
& residents to find parking elsewhere ending up creating further degradation to the surrounding 
communities and businesses. This is so typical of large projects like this in where the developers 
interests in reducing their cost, post contractual agreements, begin to eliminate  promised features. We 
must not allow the elimination of the already minimally planned agreed upon parking or another 
changes to the plan. 
 
Your concerned citizens, 
James & Sheryl Poulson and family 
 
Please reply. 
 

Page 47

mailto:sheryl.poulson@gmail.com
mailto:jpaulson@losgatosca.gov
mailto:jrpoulson@gmail.com


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 
 

Page 48



 

PREPARED BY: JENNIFER ARMER, AICP 
 Senior Planner 
  
   

Reviewed by:  Planning Manager and Community Development Director   
   
 

110 E. Main Street Los Gatos, CA 95030 ● (408) 354-6872 
www.losgatosca.gov 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
REPORT 

MEETING DATE: 09/09/2020 

ITEM NO: 3  

 
   

 

DATE:   September 4, 2020 

TO: Planning Commission 

FROM: Joel Paulson, Community Development Director 

SUBJECT: Requesting Approval for Demolition of an Existing Single-Family Residence 
and Detached Accessory Dwelling Unit, and Construction of a Two-Story 
Single-Family Residence on Property Zoned HR-1. APN 527-02-007.  
Architecture and Site Application S-19-012.  Located at 15925 Quail Hill Drive.  
Applicant: Gary Kohlsaat.  Property Owner: John and Allison Diep.     

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
On December 11, 2019, the Planning Commission reviewed this project and continued the 
matter to a date certain of March 25, 2020 with direction to make significant revisions to the 
design.  The March 25, 2020 hearing was not held, and so the project has been re-noticed.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
A. Modified Proposal 

 
The revised development plans (Exhibit 25) and color board (Exhibit 24) have been 
submitted and reflect the significant revisions as described in the applicant’s revised project 
description and justification letter (Exhibit 18).  Late in the staff review of these revised 
development plans an error was discovered in the calculation of the maximum allowed floor 
area.  The applicant has analyzed the plans and determined that by sinking the entire 
proposed house down by six inches the countable floor area can be adjusted to not exceed 
the maximum allowed as described in the Supplemental Justification Letter (Exhibit 19).  
Though the revised development plans in Exhibit 25 do not show this modification, the 
applicant has also provided a Revised Project Data Table (Exhibit 20) and a Revised Grading 
Exception Site Plan (Exhibit 21). 
 
The table below shows a summary of the proposed floor area.  The maximum allowed 
above grade floor area for the site is 5,100 square feet.  Though the proposed above grade  

Page 49



PAGE 2 OF 6 
SUBJECT: 15925 Quail Hill Drive/S-19-012 
DATE:  September 4, 2020 
 

 

DISCUSSION (continued): 
 
square footage is still proposed at the maximum allowed as it was in the previously 
proposed project, the extent of the requested exceptions, including overall height, has been 
reduced as described below.   
 

Floor Area Summary 

Floor Above Grade 
Square Footage 

Excluded from Countable Floor Area Total 

Below-grade 
Square Footage 

Up to 400 Square 
Footage of Garage 

Upper Floor 2,709 0 0 2,709 

Main Floor 2,391 1,247 0 3,638 

Lower Floor 
(Garage) 

0 2,258 16 2,274 

Total 5,100 3,505 16 8,621 

 
B. Architectural Consultant Review 

 
The Town’s Consulting Architect has reviewed the revised plans and provided a third report 
(Exhibit 22) with minor revisions recommended.  A response from the applicant to the 
Consulting Architect’s recommendations is included as Exhibit 23 with details of how the 
concerns will be addressed through landscaping. 
 

C. Exceptions 
 
The exception previously requested for overall height is no longer necessary for the 
proposed project, as the revised design meets the maximum height limitations.  Exceptions 
are requested in this proposal for retaining walls over five feet tall (up to seven feet in 
height, where the previous proposal requested up to 10 feet in height) adjacent to the 
garage, and at the rear of the proposed outdoor patio.  Exceptions requested for cut and fill 
also remain and are shown in the table below and in the Revised Grading Exception Site 
Plan (Exhibit 21).  These exceptions all take into consideration the proposal to lower the 
floor level by six inches to reduce the total above grade floor area. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 50



PAGE 3 OF 6 
SUBJECT: 15925 Quail Hill Drive/S-19-012 
DATE:  September 4, 2020 
 

 

DISCUSSION (continued): 
 

 
CONCLUSION: 
 
A. Summary 
 

The applicant is requesting approval of an Architecture and Site application for demolition 
of an existing single-family residence and detached ADU and construction of a new single-
family residence with exceptions for retaining wall heights and cut and fill depths.   
 

B. Recommendation 
 
Based on the analysis above, staff recommends approval of the Architecture and Site 
application, based on the revised findings and considerations (Exhibit 17) and with the 
revised recommended conditions of approval (Exhibit 16).  If the Planning Commission finds 
merit with the proposed project, it should: 
 

a. Find that the project is Categorically Exempt pursuant to the adopted Guidelines for 
the Implementation of the California Environmental Quality Act, Section 15303: 
New Construction or Conversion of Small Structures (Exhibit 17);  

b. Make the findings as required by Section 29.10.09030 (e) of the Town Code for the 
demolition of an existing structure (Exhibit 17);  

c. Make the findings as required by Section 29.10.330 of the Town Code for the 
demolition of an existing accessory dwelling unit (Exhibit 17); 

 
 

Maximum Graded Cuts and Fills – HDS&G 

 Maximum Cut Depths (feet) Maximum Fill Depths (feet) 

 Allowed Previous 
Proposal 

Current 
Proposal 

Allowed Previous 
Proposal 

Current 
Proposal 

House Footprint (areas 
with no below-grade 
square footage)* 

 
8* 

NA  NA 3 NA NA 

House Footprint (areas 
with below-grade 
square footage) 

 
No Limit 

29.7  22.8 3 0 0 

Driveway  
4 

9.3  8.5 3 3.4 1.6 

Site Work  8.1
  

 8.5 3 1 5.5 

 * – Excludes below-grade square footage 
Bold – requires exception to the HDS&G 

Page 51



PAGE 4 OF 6 
SUBJECT: 15925 Quail Hill Drive/S-19-012 
DATE:  September 4, 2020 
 

 

CONCLUSION (continued): 
 

d. Make the required finding that the cut and fill depth, and retaining wall height 
exception requests are appropriate and the project otherwise complies with the 
Hillside Development Standards and Guidelines (Exhibit 17);  

e. Make the finding that the project complies with the Hillside Specific Plan (Exhibit 
17);  

f. Make the considerations as required by Section 29.20.150 of the Town Code for 
granting approval of an Architecture and Site application (Exhibit 17); and 

g. Approve Architecture and Site application S-19-012 with the conditions contained 
in Exhibit 16 and development plans attached as Exhibit 25; or 

 
C. Alternatives 

 
Alternatively, the Commission can: 

 
1. Approve the application with additional and/or modified conditions;  
2. Continue the matter to a date certain with specific direction; or 
3. Deny the application. 

 
EXHIBITS: 
 
Previously received with December 11, 2019 Staff Report: 
1. Location Map 
2. Required Findings and Considerations 
3. Recommended Conditions of Approval 
4. Project Description 
5. Materials Board 
6. Letter of Justification, dated November 21, 2019  
7. Consulting Architect’s Report, received March 26, 2019 
8. Applicant’s Response to Consulting Architect’s Report, dated May 22, 2019 
9. Applicant’s Response to Consulting Architect’s Recommendations, dated November 20, 

2019 
10. Consulting Architect’s Second Report, received November 7, 2019 
11. Consulting Arborist Report, dated April 18, 2019  
12. Applicant’s neighbor outreach efforts 
13. Public comments received by 11:00 a.m., Friday, December 6, 2019 
14. Development Plans  
 
Previously received with December 11, 2019 Addendum Report: 
15. Correspondence from the Applicant 
 
 

Page 52



PAGE 5 OF 6 
SUBJECT: 15925 Quail Hill Drive/S-19-012 
DATE:  September 4, 2020 
 

 

Received with this Staff Report: 
16. Revised Conditions of Approval 
17. Revised Findings and Considerations 
18. Revised Project Description and Justification Letter 
19. Supplemental Justification Letter 
20. Revised Project Data Table 
21. Revised Grading Exception Site Plan  
22. Consulting Architect’s Third Report, received May 14, 2020 
23. Applicant’s Response to Consulting Architect’s Recommendations, dated June 15, 2020 
24. Revised Color Board 
25. Revised Development Plans 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 53



PAGE 6 OF 6 
SUBJECT: 15925 Quail Hill Drive/S-19-012 
DATE:  September 4, 2020 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page  
Intentionally  

Left Blank 
 

 

Page 54



PLANNING COMMISSION – September 9, 2020 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 
15925 Quail Hill Road 
Architecture and Site Application S-19-012 
 
Requesting approval for demolition of an existing single-family residence and 
detached accessory dwelling unit, and construction of a two-story single-family 
residence on property zoned HR-1. APN 527-02-007. 
 
PROPERTY OWNER: John and Allison Diep  
APPLICANT: Gary Kohlsaat.   
 
TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT: 
 
Planning Division 
1. APPROVAL: This application shall be completed in accordance with all of the conditions of 

approval and in substantial compliance with the approved plans.  Any changes or 
modifications to the approved plans and/or business operation shall be approved by the 
Community Development Director, DRC or the Planning Commission depending on the 
scope of the changes. 

2. EXPIRATION: The approval will expire two years from the approval date pursuant to 
Section 29.20.320 of the Town Code, unless the approval has been vested. 

3. MAXIMUM FLOOR AREA: The above grade flood area shall be reduced to no more than 
5,100 square feet through a lowering of the floor level as described in the supplemental 
justification letter. 

4. EXTERIOR COLOR: The individual exterior materials of the house, including the roof, shall 
not exceed a light reflectivity value of 30 and shall blend with the natural vegetation.  

5. DEED RESTRICTION:  Prior to the issuance of a building permit, a deed restriction shall be 
recorded by the applicant with the Santa Clara County Recorder’s Office that requires all 
exterior materials to be maintained in conformance with the Town’s Hillside Development 
Standards and Guidelines.  

6. OUTDOOR LIGHTING:  Exterior lighting shall be kept to a minimum and shall be downward 
directed and shielded fixtures that will not reflect or encroach onto adjacent properties.  
No flood lights shall be used unless it can be demonstrated that they are needed for safety 
or security.   

7. TREE REMOVAL PERMIT: A Tree Removal Permit shall be obtained for any protected trees 
to be removed, prior to the issuance of a building or grading permit. 

8. EXISTING TREES: All existing trees shown on the plan and trees required to remain or to be 
planted are specific subjects of approval of this plan and must remain on the site. 
 
 

EXHIBIT 16 

Page 55



9. TREE FENCING: Protective tree fencing, and other protection measures shall be placed at 
the drip line of existing trees prior to issuance of demolition and building permits and shall 
remain through all phases of construction.  Include a tree protection plan with the 
construction plans. 

10. TREE STAKING: All newly planted trees shall be double-staked using rubber tree ties. 
11. FRONT YARD LANDSCAPE: Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy the front yard 

must be landscaped.  
12. ARBORIST REQUIREMENTS: The developer shall implement, at their cost, all 

recommendations identified in the Arborist’s report.  These recommendations must be 
incorporated in the building permit plans and completed prior to issuance of a building 
permit where applicable.  A Compliance Memorandum shall be prepared by the applicant 
and submitted with the building permit application detailing how the recommendations 
have or will be addressed.   

13. WATER EFFICIENCY LANDSCAPE ORDINANCE:  The final landscape plan shall meet the 
requirements of the Town of Los Gatos Water Conservation Ordinance or the State Water 
Efficient Landscape Ordinance, whichever is more restrictive.  Submittal of a Landscape 
Documentation Package pursuant to WELO is required prior to issuance of a building 
permit.  A review fee based on the current fee schedule adopted by the Town Council is 
required when working landscape and irrigation plans are submitted for review.  A 
completed WELO Certificate of Completion is required prior to final inspection/certificate 
of occupancy.  

14. STORY POLES: The story poles on the project site shall be removed within 30 days of 
approval of the Architecture & Site application. 

15. TOWN INDEMNITY: Applicants are notified that Town Code Section 1.10.115 requires that 
any applicant who receives a permit or entitlement from the Town shall defend, indemnify, 
and hold harmless the Town and its officials in any action brought by a third party to 
overturn, set aside, or void the permit or entitlement.  This requirement is a condition of 
approval of all such permits and entitlements whether or not expressly set forth in the 
approval and may be secured to the satisfaction of the Town Attorney. 

16. COMPLIANCE MEMORANDUM: A memorandum shall be prepared and submitted with the 
building plans detailing how the Conditions of Approval will be addressed.  

 
Building Division 
17. PERMITS REQUIRED: A Demolition Permit is required for the demolition of each existing 

structure.  A separate Building Permit is required for the construction of the new single-
family residence and attached garage. Other detached structures such as pool houses, 
accessory dwelling units, pools, or retaining walls will require individual Building Permits. 

18. APPLICABLE CODES: The current codes, as amended and adopted by the Town of Los Gatos 
as of January 1, 2020, are the 2019 California Building Standards Code, California Code of 
Regulations Title 24, Parts 1-12, including locally adopted Energy Reach Codes. 

19. CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: The Conditions of Approval must be blue lined in full on the 
cover sheet of the construction plans. A Compliance Memorandum shall be prepared and 
submitted with the building permit application detailing how the Conditions of Approval 
will be addressed. 

Page 56



20. BUILDING & SUITE NUMBERS: Submit requests for new building addresses to the Building 
Division prior to submitting for the building permit application process. 

21. SIZE OF PLANS:  Submit four sets of construction plans, minimum size 24” x 36”, maximum 
size 30” x 42”. 

22. REQUIREMENTS FOR COMPLETE DEMOLITION OF STRUCTURE: Obtain a Building 
Department Demolition Application and a Bay Area Air Quality Management District 
Application from the Building Department Service Counter.  Once the demolition form has 
been completed, all signatures obtained, and written verification from PG&E that all 
utilities have been disconnected, return the completed form to the Building Department 
Service Counter with the Air District’s J# Certificate, PG&E verification, and three (3) sets of 
site plans showing all existing structures, existing utility service lines such as water, sewer, 
and PG&E.  No demolition work shall be done without first obtaining a permit from the 
Town. 

23. SOILS REPORT:  A Soils Report, prepared to the satisfaction of the Building Official, 
containing foundation and retaining wall design recommendations, shall be submitted with 
the Building Permit Application.  This report shall be prepared by a licensed Civil Engineer 
specializing in soils mechanics.  

24. SHORING: Shoring plans and calculations will be required for all excavations which exceed 
five (5) feet in depth or which remove lateral support from any existing building, adjacent 
property, or the public right-of-way.  Shoring plans and calculations shall be prepared by a 
California licensed engineer and shall confirm to the Cal/OSHA regulations. 

25. FOUNDATION INSPECTIONS:  A pad certificate prepared by a licensed civil engineer or land 
surveyor shall be submitted to the project Building Inspector at foundation inspection.  
This certificate shall certify compliance with the recommendations as specified in the Soils 
Report, and that the building pad elevations and on-site retaining wall locations and 
elevations have been prepared according to the approved plans.  Horizontal and vertical 
controls shall be set and certified by a licensed surveyor or registered Civil Engineer for the 
following items: 

a. Building pad elevation 
b. Finish floor elevation 
c. Foundation corner locations 
d. Retaining wall(s) locations and elevations 

26. TITLE 24 ENERGY COMPLIANCE:  All required California Title 24 Energy Compliance Forms 
must be blue-lined (sticky-backed), i.e. directly printed, onto a plan sheet. 

27. TOWN RESIDENTIAL ACCESSIBILITY STANDARDS: New residential units shall be designed 
with adaptability features for single-family residences per Town Resolution 1994-61: 

a. Wood backing (2” x 8” minimum) shall be provided in all bathroom walls, at water 
closets, showers, and bathtubs, located 34 inches from the floor to the center of the 
backing, suitable for the installation of grab bars if needed in the future. 

b. All passage doors shall be at least 32-inch wide doors on the accessible floor level. 
c. The primary entrance door shall be a 36-inch-wide door including a 5’x 5’ level 

landing, no more than 1 inch out of plane with the immediate interior floor level and 
with an 18-inch clearance at interior strike edge. 

d. A door buzzer, bell or chime shall be hard wired at primary entrance. 

Page 57



28. BACKWATER VALVE: The scope of this project may require the installation of a   sanitary 
sewer backwater valve per Town Ordinance 6.50.025. Please provide information on the 
plans if a backwater valve is required and the location of the installation. The Town of Los 
Gatos Ordinance and West Valley Sanitation District (WVSD) requires backwater valves on 
drainage piping serving fixtures that have flood level rims less than 12 inches above the 
elevation of the next upstream manhole. 

29. HAZARDOUS FIRE ZONE:  All projects in the Town of Los Gatos require Class A roof 
assemblies. 

30. WILDLAND-URBAN INTERFACE: This project is located in a Wildland-Urban Interface High 
Fire Area and must comply with Section R337 of the 2019 California Residential Code, 
Public Resources Code 4291 and California Government Code Section 51182.  

31. PROVIDE DEFENSIBLE SPACE/FIRE BREAK LANDSCAPING PLAN: Prepared by a California 
licensed Landscape Architect in conformance with California Public Resources Code 4291 
and California Government Code Section 51182. 

32. PRIOR TO FINAL INSPECTION: Provide a letter from a California licensed Landscape 
Architect certifying the landscaping and vegetation clearance requirements have been 
completed per the California Public Resources Code 4291 and Government Code Section 
51182. 

33. SPECIAL INSPECTIONS: When a special inspection is required by CBC Section 1704, the 
Architect or Engineer of Record shall prepare an inspection program that shall be 
submitted to the Building Official for approval prior to issuance of the Building Permit. The 
Town Special Inspection form must be completely filled-out and signed by all requested 
parties prior to permit issuance. Special Inspection forms are available from the Building 
Division Service Counter or online at www.losgatosca.gov/building. 

34. BLUEPRINT FOR A CLEAN BAY SHEET: The Town standard Santa Clara Valley Nonpoint 
Source Pollution Control Program Sheet (page size same as submitted drawings) shall be 
part of the plan submittal as the second page. The specification sheet is available at the 
Building Division Service Counter for a fee of $2 or at ARC Blueprint for a fee or online at 
www.losgatosca.gov/building. 

35. APPROVALS REQUIRED: The project requires the following departments and agencies 
approval before issuing a building permit: 
a. Community Development – Planning Division: (408) 354-6874 
b. Engineering/Parks & Public Works Department: (408) 399-5771 
c. Santa Clara County Fire Department: (408) 378-4010 
d. West Valley Sanitation District: (408) 378-2407 
e. Local School District:  The Town will forward the paperwork to the appropriate school 

district(s) for processing.  A copy of the paid receipt is required prior to permit 
issuance. 

 
TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE DIRECTOR OF PARKS & PUBLIC WORKS: 
 
Engineering Division 
36. GENERAL: All public improvements shall be made according to the latest adopted Town 

Standard Plans, Standard Specifications and Engineering Design Standards.  All work shall 

Page 58



conform to the applicable Town ordinances.  The adjacent public right-of-way shall be kept 
clear of all job-related mud, silt, concrete, dirt and other construction debris at the end of 
the day.  Dirt and debris shall not be washed into storm drainage facilities.  The storing of 
goods and materials on the sidewalk and/or the street will not be allowed unless an 
encroachment permit is issued by the Engineering Division of the Parks and Public Works 
Department.  The Owner and/or Applicant's representative in charge shall be at the job 
site during all working hours.  Failure to maintain the public right-of-way according to this 
condition may result in the issuance of correction notices, citations, or stop work orders 
and the Town performing the required maintenance at the Owner and/or Applicant's 
expense. 

37. APPROVAL: This application shall be completed in accordance with all the conditions of 
approval listed below and in substantial compliance with the latest reviewed and approved 
development plans.  Any changes or modifications to the approved plans or conditions of 
approvals shall be approved by the Town Engineer. 

38. CONSTRUCTION PLAN REQUIREMENTS: Construction drawings shall comply with Section 1 
(Construction Plan Requirements) of the Town’s Engineering Design Standards, which are  
available for download from the Town’s website. 

39. ENCROACHMENT PERMIT: All work in the public right-of-way will require a Construction 
Encroachment Permit.  All work over $5,000 will require construction security.  It is the 
responsibility of the Owner and/or Applicant to obtain any necessary encroachment 
permits from affected agencies and private parties, including but not limited to, Pacific Gas 
and Electric (PG&E), AT&T, Comcast, Santa Clara Valley Water District, California 
Department of Transportation (Caltrans).  Copies of any approvals or permits must be 
submitted to the Town Engineering Division of the Parks and Public Works Department 
prior to releasing any permit. 

40. PRIVATE IMPROVEMENTS IN THE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY (INDEMNITY AGREEMENT): The 
property owner shall enter into an agreement with the Town for all existing and proposed 
private improvements within the Town’s right-of-way.  The Owner shall be solely 
responsible for maintaining the improvements in a good and safe condition at all times and 
shall indemnify the Town of Los Gatos.  The agreement must be completed and accepted 
by the Director of Parks and Public Works, and subsequently recorded by the Town Clerk at 
the Santa Clara County Office of the Clerk-Recorder, prior to the issuance of any grading or 
building permits.  Please note that this process may take approximately six to eight (6-8) 
weeks. 

41. PUBLIC WORKS INSPECTIONS: The Owner and/or Applicant or their representative shall 
notify the Engineering Inspector at least twenty-four (24) hours before starting any work 
pertaining to on-site drainage facilities, grading or paving, and all work in the Town's right-
of-way.  Failure to do so will result in penalties and rejection of any work that occurred 
without inspection. 

42. RESTORATION OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS: The Owner and/or Applicant or their 
representative shall repair or replace all existing improvements not designated for removal 
that are damaged or removed because of the Owner and/or Applicant or their 
representative's operations.  Improvements such as, but not limited to: curbs, gutters, 
sidewalks, driveways, signs, pavements, raised pavement markers, thermoplastic 

Page 59

https://www.losgatosca.gov/1088/Town-Engineering-Standards


pavement markings, etc., shall be repaired and replaced to a condition equal to or better 
than the original condition.  Any new concrete shall be free of stamps, logos, names, 
graffiti, etc.  Any concrete identified that is displaying a stamp or equal shall be removed 
and replaced at the Contractor’s sole expense and no additional compensation shall be 
allowed therefore.  Existing improvement to be repaired or replaced shall be at the 
direction of the Engineering Construction Inspector and shall comply with all Title 24 
Disabled Access provisions.  The restoration of all improvements identified by the 
Engineering Construction Inspector shall be completed before the issuance of a certificate 
of occupancy.  The Owner and/or Applicant or their representative shall request a walk-
through with the Engineering Construction Inspector before the start of construction to 
verify existing conditions. 

43. SITE SUPERVISION: The General Contractor shall provide qualified supervision on the job 
site at all times during construction. 

44. STREET CLOSURE: Any proposed blockage or partial closure of the street requires an 
encroachment permit.  Special provisions such as limitations on works hours, protective 
enclosures, or other means to facilitate public access in a safe manner may be required. 

45. PLAN CHECK FEES: Plan check fees associated with the Grading Permit shall be deposited 
with the Engineering Division of the Parks and Public Works Department prior to the 
commencement of plan check review. 

46. GRADING PERMIT FEES: All fees associated with the grading permit shall be deposited with 
the Engineering Division of the Parks and Public Works Department prior to the issuance of 
a grading permit. 

47. DESIGN CHANGES: Any proposed changes to the approved plans shall be subject to the 
approval of the Town prior to the commencement of any and all altered work.  The Owner 
and/or Applicant’s project engineer shall notify, in writing, the Town Engineer at least 
seventy-two (72) hours in advance of all the proposed changes.  Any approved changes 
shall be incorporated into the final “as-built” plans. 

48. PLANS AND STUDIES: Any studies imposed by the Planning Commission or Town Council 
shall be funded by the Owner and/or Applicant.  Grading permit plans shall be prepared by 
a Registered Professional Engineer in the State of California and submitted to the Town 
Engineer for review and approval. 

49. GRADING PERMIT: A grading permit is required for all site grading and drainage work 
except for exemptions listed in Section 12.20.015 of The Code of the Town of Los Gatos 
(Grading Ordinance).  After the preceding Architecture and Site Application has been 
approved by the respective deciding body, the grading permit application (with grading 
plans and associated required materials and plan check fees) shall be made to the 
Engineering Division of the Parks and Public Works Department located at 41 Miles 
Avenue.  The grading plans shall include final grading, drainage, retaining wall location(s), 
driveway, utilities and interim erosion control.  Grading plans shall list earthwork quantities 
and a table of existing and proposed impervious areas.  Unless specifically allowed by the 
Director of Parks and Public Works, the grading permit will be issued concurrently with the 
building permit. The grading permit is for work outside the building footprint(s).  Prior to 
Engineering signing off and closing out on the issued grading permit, the Owner and/or 
Applicant’s soils engineer shall verify, with a stamped and signed letter, that the grading 

Page 60



activities were completed per plans and per the requirements as noted in the soils report.  
A separate building permit, issued by the Building Department, located at 110 E. Main 
Street, is needed for grading within the building footprint. 

50. GRADING ACTIVITY RESTRICTIONS: Upon receipt of a grading permit, any and all grading 
activities and operations shall not commence until after/occur during the rainy season, as 
defined by Town Code of the Town of Los Gatos, Sec. 12.10.020, (October 15-April 15), has 
ended. 

51. COMPLIANCE WITH HILLSIDE DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS AND GUIDELINES: All grading 
activities and operations shall be in compliance with Section III of the Town’s Hillside 
Development Standards and Guidelines.  All development shall be in compliance with 
Section II of the Town’s Hillside Development Standards and Guidelines. 

52. DRIVEWAY: The driveway conform to existing pavement on Drysdale Drive shall be 
constructed in a manner such that the existing drainage patterns will not be obstructed. 

53. DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENT: Prior to the issuance of any grading or building permits, the 
Owner and/or Applicant shall: a) design provisions for surface drainage; and b) design all 
necessary storm drain facilities extending to a satisfactory point of disposal for the proper 
control and disposal of storm runoff; and c) provide a recorded copy of any required 
easements to the Town. 

54. SURVEYING CONTROLS: Horizontal and vertical controls shall be set and certified by a 
licensed surveyor or registered civil engineer qualified to practice land surveying, for the 
following items: 
a. Retaining wall: top of wall elevations and locations. 
b. Toe and top of cut and fill slopes. 

55. PRECONSTRUCTION MEETING: Prior to the commencement of any site work, the general 
contractor shall: 
a. Along with the Owner and/or Applicant, attend a pre-construction meeting with the 

Town Engineer to discuss the project conditions of approval, working hours, site 
maintenance and other construction matters; 

b. Acknowledge in writing that they have read and understand the project conditions of 
approval and will make certain that all project sub-contractors have read and 
understand them as well prior to commencing any work, and that a copy of the project 
conditions of approval will be posted on-site at all times during construction. 

56. RETAINING WALLS: A building permit, issued by the Building Division, located at 110 E. 
Main Street, may be required for site retaining walls. Walls are not reviewed or approved 
by the Engineering Division of Parks and Public Works during the grading permit plan 
review process. 

57. DEDICATIONS: The following shall be dedicated by separate instrument.  The dedication 
shall be recorded before any grading or building permits are issued: 
a. Landscape Easement as delineated on sheets C.4 through C.6 on the plans prepared by 

Hanna-Brunetti. 
b. Wire Crossing Easement: 10 feet wide, centered along the line between the existing 

utility poles situated along the subject property’s eastern boundary and located on the 
neighboring property to the west, granted by the property owners to their neighbor. 

Page 61



58. SOILS REVIEW:  Prior to Town approval of a development application, the Owner and/or 
Applicant’s engineers shall prepare and submit a design-level geotechnical and geological 
investigation for review by the Town’s consultant, with costs borne by the Owner and/or 
Applicant, and subsequent approval by the Town.  The Owner and/or Applicant’s soils 
engineer shall review the final grading and drainage plans to ensure that designs for 
foundations, retaining walls, site grading, and site drainage are in accordance with their 
recommendations and the peer review comments.  Approval of the Owner and/or 
Applicant’s soils engineer shall then be conveyed to the Town either by submitting a Plan 
Review Letter prior to issuance of grading or building permit(s). 

59. SOILS ENGINEER CONSTRUCTION OBSERVATION: During construction, all excavations and 
grading shall be inspected by the Owner and/or Applicant’s soils engineer prior to 
placement of concrete and/or backfill so they can verify that the actual conditions are as 
anticipated in the design-level geotechnical report and recommend appropriate changes in 
the recommendations contained in the report, if necessary.  The results of the construction 
observation and testing shall be documented in an “as-built” letter/report prepared by the 
Owner and/or Applicant’s soils engineer and submitted to the Town before a certificate of 
occupancy is granted. 

60. SOIL RECOMMENDATIONS: The project shall incorporate the geotechnical/geological 
recommendations contained in the Updated Geotechnical & Geological Investigation for 
Proposed New Residence by Pollak Engineering, Inc., dated September 13, 2019, and any 
subsequently required report or addendum.  Subsequent reports or addendum are subject 
to peer review by the Town’s consultant and costs shall be borne by the Owner and/or 
Applicant. 

61. PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS: The following improvements shall be installed by the Owner 
and/or Applicant.  Plans for those improvements shall be prepared by a California 
registered civil engineer, reviewed and approved by the Town before the issuance of any 
grading or building permits or the recordation of a map.  The improvements must be 
completed and accepted by the Town before a Certificate of Occupancy for any new 
building can be issued. 
a. Drysdale Drive: 2” overlay from the centerline to the western lip of gutter, or 

alternative pavement restoration measure as approved by the Town Engineer. 
b. Shady Lane: 2” overlay from the centerline to the southern lip of gutter/edge of 

pavement, or alternative pavement restoration measure as approved by the Town 
Engineer. 

62. CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY: The Engineering Division of the Parks and Public Works 
Department will not sign off on a Temporary Certificate of Occupancy or a Final Certificate 
of Occupancy until all required improvements within the Town’s right-of-way have been 
completed and approved by the Town. 

63. FRONTAGE IMPROVEMENTS: The Owner and/or Applicant shall be required to improve the 
project’s public frontage (right-of-way line to centerline and/or to limits per the direction 
of the Town Engineer) to current Town Standards.  These improvements may include but 
not limited to curb, gutter, sidewalk, driveway approach(es), curb ramp(s), signs, 
pavement, raised pavement markers, thermoplastic pavement markings, storm drain 

Page 62



facilities, etc.  The improvements must be completed and accepted by the Town before a 
Certificate of Occupancy for any new building can be issued. 

64. UTILITIES: The Owner and/or Applicant shall install all new, relocated, or temporarily 
removed utility services, including telephone, electric power and all other communications 
lines underground, as required by Town Code Section 27.50.015(b).  All new utility services 
shall be placed underground.  Underground conduit shall be provided for cable television 
service.  The Owner and/or Applicant is required to obtain approval of all proposed utility 
alignments from any and all utility service providers before a Certificate of Occupancy for 
any new building can be issued.  The Town of Los Gatos does not approve or imply 
approval for final alignment or design of these facilities. 

65. CURB AND GUTTER REPAIR: The Owner and/or Applicant shall repair and replace to 
existing Town standards any curb and gutter damaged now or during construction of this 
project.  All new and existing adjacent infrastructure must meet Town standards.  New 
curb and gutter shall be constructed per Town Standard Details. New concrete shall be free 
of stamps, logos, names, graffiti, etc.  Any concrete identified that is displaying a stamp or 
equal shall be removed and replaced at the Contractor’s sole expense and no additional 
compensation shall be allowed therefore.  The limits of curb and gutter repair will be 
determined by the Engineering Construction Inspector during the construction phase of 
the project.  The improvements must be completed and accepted by the Town before a 
Certificate of Occupancy for any new building can be issued. 

66. DRIVEWAY APPROACH: The Owner and/or Applicant shall install one (1) Town standard 
residential driveway approach.  The new driveway approach shall be constructed per Town 
Standard Plans and must be completed and accepted by the Town before a Certificate of 
Occupancy for any new building can be issued.  New concrete shall be free of stamps, 
logos, names, graffiti, etc.  Any concrete identified that is displaying a stamp or equal shall 
be removed and replaced at the Contractor’s sole expense and no additional compensation 
shall be allowed therefore. 

67. CONSTRUCTION VEHICLE PARKING: No construction vehicles, trucks, equipment and 
worker vehicles shall be allowed to park on the portion of any public (Town) streets 
without written approval from the Town Engineer. 

68. CONSTRUCTION TRAFFIC CONTROL: All construction traffic and related vehicular routes, 
traffic control plan, and applicable pedestrian or traffic detour plans shall be submitted for 
review and approval by the Town Engineer prior to the issuance of an encroachment, 
grading or building permit. 

69. HAULING OF SOIL: Hauling of soil on- or off-site shall not occur during the morning or 
evening peak periods (between 7:00 a.m. and 9:00 a.m. and between 4:00 p.m. and 6:00 
p.m.), and at other times as specified by the Director of Parks and Public Works.  Prior to 
the issuance of a grading or building permit, the Owner and/or Applicant or their 
representative shall work with the Town Building Department and Engineering Division 
Inspectors to devise a traffic control plan to ensure safe and efficient traffic flow under 
periods when soil is hauled on or off the project site.  This may include, but is not limited to 
provisions for the Owner and/or Applicant to place construction notification signs noting 
the dates and time of construction and hauling activities, or providing additional traffic 

Page 63



control.  Coordination with other significant projects in the area may also be required.  
Cover all trucks hauling soil, sand and other loose debris. 

70. CONSTRUCTION HOURS: All construction activities, including the delivery of construction 
materials, labors, heavy equipment, supplies, etc., shall be limited to the hours of 8:00 a.m. 
to 6:00 p.m., weekdays and 9:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. Saturdays, holidays excluded.  The Town 
may authorize, on a case-by-case basis, alternate construction hours.  The Owner and/or 
Applicant shall provide written notice twenty-four (24) hours in advance of modified 
construction hours.  Approval of this request is at discretion of the Town. 

71. CONSTRUCTION NOISE: Between the hours of 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m., weekdays and 9:00 
a.m. to 7:00 p.m. weekends and holidays, construction, alteration or repair activities shall 
be allowed.  No individual piece of equipment shall produce a noise level exceeding eighty-
five (85) dBA at twenty-five (25) feet from the source.  If the device is located within a 
structure on the property, the measurement shall be made at distances as close to twenty-
five (25) feet from the device as possible.  The noise level at any point outside of the 
property plane shall not exceed eighty-five (85) dBA. 

72. CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT PLAN SHEET: Prior to the issuance of any grading or 
building permits, the Owner and/or Applicant’s design consultant shall submit a 
construction management plan sheet (full-size) within the plan set that shall incorporate at 
a minimum the Earth Movement Plan, Project Schedule, employee parking, construction 
staging area, materials storage area(s), construction trailer(s), concrete washout(s) and 
proposed outhouse location(s).  Please refer to the Town’s Construction Management Plan 
Guidelines document for additional information. 

73. WVSD (West Valley Sanitation District): A Sanitary Sewer Clean-out is required for each 
property at the property line, within one (1) foot of the property line per West Valley 
Sanitation District Standard Drawing 3, or at a location specified by the Town. 

74. SANITARY SEWER BACKWATER VALVE: Drainage piping serving fixtures which have flood 
level rims less than twelve (12) inches (304.8 mm) above the elevation of the next 
upstream manhole and/or flushing inlet cover at the public or private sewer system serving 
such drainage piping shall be protected from backflow of sewage by installing an approved 
type backwater valve.  Fixtures above such elevation shall not discharge through the 
backwater valve, unless first approved by the Building Official.  The Town shall not incur 
any liability or responsibility for damage resulting from a sewer overflow where the 
property owner or other person has failed to install a backwater valve as defined in the 
Uniform Plumbing Code adopted by the Town and maintain such device in a functional 
operation condition.  Evidence of West Sanitation District’s decision on whether a 
backwater device is needed shall be provided prior to the issuance of a building permit. 

75. BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES (BMPs): The Owner, Applicant and/or Developer is 
responsible for ensuring that all contractors are aware of all storm water quality measures 
and that such measures are implemented.  Best Management Practices (BMPs) shall be 
maintained and be placed for all areas that have been graded or disturbed and for all 
material, equipment and/or operations that need protection.  Removal of BMPs 
(temporary removal during construction activities) shall be replaced at the end of each 
working day.  Failure to comply with the construction BMP will result in the issuance of 
correction notices, citations, or stop work orders. 

Page 64

http://www.losgatosca.gov/DocumentCenter/View/17600
http://www.losgatosca.gov/DocumentCenter/View/17600


76. SITE DESIGN MEASURES: All projects shall incorporate at least one of the following 
measures: 
a. Protect sensitive areas and minimize changes to the natural topography. 
b. Minimize impervious surface areas. 
c. Direct roof downspouts to vegetated areas. 
d. Use porous or pervious pavement surfaces on the driveway, at a minimum. 
e. Use landscaping to treat stormwater.  

77. EROSION CONTROL: Interim and final erosion control plans shall be prepared and 
submitted to the Engineering Division of the Parks and Public Works Department.  A 
maximum of two (2) weeks is allowed between clearing of an area and stabilizing/building 
on an area if grading is allowed during the rainy season.  Interim erosion control measures, 
to be carried out during construction and before installation of the final landscaping, shall 
be included.  Interim erosion control method shall include, but are not limited to: silt 
fences, fiber rolls (with locations and details), erosion control blankets, Town standard 
seeding specification, filter berms, check dams, retention basins, etc.  Provide erosion 
control measures as needed to protect downstream water quality during winter months.  
The Town of Los Gatos Engineering Division of the Parks and Public Works Department and 
the Building Department will conduct periodic NPDES inspections of the site throughout 
the recognized storm season to verify compliance with the Construction General Permit 
and Stormwater ordinances and regulations. 

78. DUST CONTROL: Blowing dust shall be reduced by timing construction activities so that 
paving and building construction begin as soon as possible after completion of grading, and 
by landscaping disturbed soils as soon as possible.  Further, water trucks shall be present 
and in use at the construction site.  All portions of the site subject to blowing dust shall be 
watered as often as deemed necessary by the Town, or a minimum of three (3) times daily, 
or apply (non-toxic) soil stabilizers on all unpaved access roads, parking areas, and staging 
areas at construction sites in order to insure proper control of blowing dust for the 
duration of the project. Watering on public streets shall not occur.  Streets shall be cleaned 
by street sweepers or by hand as often as deemed necessary by the Town Engineer, or at 
least once a day.  Watering associated with on-site construction activity shall take place 
between the hours of 8 a.m. and 5 p.m. and shall include at least one (1) late-afternoon 
watering to minimize the effects of blowing dust.  All public streets soiled or littered due to 
this construction activity shall be cleaned and swept on a daily basis during the workweek 
to the satisfaction of the Town.  Demolition or earthwork activities shall be halted when 
wind speeds (instantaneous gusts) exceed twenty (20) miles per hour (MPH).  All trucks 
hauling soil, sand, or other loose debris shall be covered. 

79. AIR QUALITY: To limit the project’s construction-related dust and criteria pollutant 
emissions, the following the Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD)-
recommended basic construction measures shall be included in the project’s grading plan, 
building plans, and contract specifications: 
a. All exposed surfaces (e.g., parking areas, staging areas, soil piles, graded areas, and 

unpaved access roads) shall be watered two times per day, or otherwise kept dust-free. 

Page 65



b. All haul trucks designated for removal of excavated soil and demolition debris from site 
shall be staged off-site until materials are ready for immediate loading and removal 
from site. 

c. All haul trucks transporting soil, sand, debris, or other loose material off-site shall be 
covered. 

d. As practicable, all haul trucks and other large construction equipment shall be staged in 
areas away from the adjacent residential homes. 

e. All visible mud or dirt track-out onto adjacent public roads shall be removed using wet 
power vacuum street sweepers at least once per day, or as deemed appropriate by 
Town Engineer.  The use of dry power sweeping is prohibited.  An on-site track-out 
control device is also recommended to minimize mud and dirt-track-out onto adjacent 
public roads. 

f. All vehicle speeds on unpaved surfaces shall be limited to fifteen (15) miles per hour. 
g. All driveways and sidewalks to be paved shall be completed as soon as possible.  

Building pads shall be laid as soon as possible after grading unless seeding or soil 
binders are used. 

h. Post a publicly visible sign with the telephone number and person to contact at the 
lead agency regarding dust complaints.  This person shall respond and take corrective 
action within forty-eight (48) hours.  The Air District’s phone number shall also be 
visible to ensure compliance with applicable regulations. 

i. All excavation, grading, and/or demolition activities shall be suspended when average 
wind speeds exceed twenty (20) miles per hour. 

j. Vegetative ground cover (e.g., fast-germinating native grass seed) shall be planted in 
disturbed areas as soon as possible and watered appropriately until vegetation is 
established. 

80. CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES: All construction shall conform to the latest requirements of 
the CASQA Stormwater Best Management Practices Handbooks for Construction Activities 
and New Development and Redevelopment, the Town's grading and erosion control 
ordinance, and other generally accepted engineering practices for erosion control as 
required by the Town Engineer when undertaking construction activities. 

81. SITE DRAINAGE: Rainwater leaders shall be discharged to splash blocks.  No through curb 
drains will be allowed.  On-site drainage systems for all projects shall include one of the 
alternatives included in section C.3.i of the Municipal Regional NPDES Permit.  These 
include storm water reuse via cisterns or rain barrels, directing runoff from impervious 
surfaces to vegetated areas and use of permeable surfaces.  No improvements shall 
obstruct or divert runoff to the detriment of an adjacent, downstream or down slope 
property. 

82. SILT AND MUD IN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY: It is the responsibility of Contractor and 
homeowner to make sure that all dirt tracked into the public right-of-way is cleaned up on 
a daily basis.  Mud, silt, concrete and other construction debris SHALL NOT be washed into 
the Town’s storm drains. 

83. GOOD HOUSEKEEPING: Good housekeeping practices shall be observed at all times during 
the course of construction.  All construction shall be diligently supervised by a person or 
persons authorized to do so at all times during working hours.  The Owner and/or 

Page 66



Applicant's representative in charge shall be at the job site during all working hours.  
Failure to maintain the public right-of-way according to this condition may result in 
penalties and/or the Town performing the required maintenance at the Owner and/or 
Applicant's expense. 

84. PERMIT ISSUANCE: Permits for each phase; reclamation, landscape, and grading, shall be 
issued simultaneously. 

85. COVERED TRUCKS: All trucks transporting materials to and from the site shall be covered. 
 
 
TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE SANTA CLARA COUNTY FIRE DEPARTMENT: 
 
86. FIRE SPRINKLERS REQUIRED.  (As noted on Sheet A-1) An automatic residential fire sprinkler 

system shall be installed in one- and two-family dwellings as follows: In all new one- and 
two-family dwellings and existing one- and two-family dwellings when additions are made 
that increase the building area to more than 3,600 square feet.  Exception: One or more 
additions made to a building after January 1, 2011 that does not total more than 1,000 
square feet of building area.  An automatic sprinkler system shall be provided throughout all 
new basements regardless of size and throughout existing basements that are expanded by 
more than 50%.  NOTE: The owner(s), occupant(s) and any contractor(s) or subcontractor(s) 
are responsible for consulting with the water purveyor of record in order to determine if 
any modification or upgrade of the existing water service is required.  A State of California 
license (C-16) Fire Protection Contractor shall submit plans, calculations, a completed 
permit application and appropriate fees to the Santa Clara County Fire Department for 
review and approval prior to beginning their work.  CRC Sec. 313.2 as adopted and amended 
by LGTC. 

87. CONSTRUCTION SITE FIRE SAFETY: (As noted on Sheet A-1) All construction sites must 
comply with applicable provisions of the CFC Chapter 33 and Santa Clara County Fire 
Department Standard Detail and Specification S1-7.  Provide notations on subsequent plan 
submittals, as appropriate to the project.  CFC Ch. 33. 

88. WATER SUPPLY REQUIREMENTS:  (As noted on Sheet A-1) Potable water supplies shall be 
protected from contamination caused by fire protection water supplies.  It is the 
responsibility of the applicant and any contractors and subcontractors to contact the water 
purveyor supplying the site of such project, and to comply with the requirements of that 
purveyor.  Such requirements shall be incorporated into the design of any water-based fire 
protection systems, and/or fire suppression water supply systems or storage containers that 
may be physically connected in any manner to an appliance capable of causing 
contamination of the potable water supply of the purveyor of record.  Final approval of the 
system(s) under consideration will not be granted by the Santa Clara County Fire 
Department until compliance with the requirements of the water purveyor of record are 
documented by that purveyor as having been met by the applicant(s).  2016 CFC Sec. 
903.3.5 and Health and Safety Code 13114.7. 

89. ADDRESS IDENTIFICATION: (As noted on Sheet A-1) New and existing buildings shall have 
approved address numbers, building numbers or approved building identification placed in 
a position that is plainly legible and visible from the street or road fronting the property.  

Page 67



These numbers shall contrast with their background.  Where required by fire code official, 
address numbers shall be provided in additional approved locations to facilitate emergency 
response.  Address numbers shall be Arabic numbers or alphabetical letters.  Numbers shall 
be a minimum of 4 inches (101.6 mm) high with a minimum stroke with of 0.5 inch 
(12.7mm).  Where access is by means of a private road and the building cannot be viewed 
from the public way, a monument, pole or other sign or means shall be used to identify the 
structure.  Address numbers shall be maintained.  CFC Sec. 505.1.  Show Drysdale Drive 
address on future plan submittals. 

90. REQUIRED FIRE FLOW:  The fire flow for this project tis 2,500 GPM at 20 psi residual 
pressure from a single hydrant.  As an automatic fire sprinkler system will be installed, the 
fire flow will be reduced by 50% establishing a required adjusted fire flow of 1,250 GPM at 
20 psi residual pressure.  Document provided from a local water purveyor confirms required 
fire flow is available.  

91. EMERGENCY GATE/ACCESS GATE REQUIREMENTS:  (As noted on Sheet A-1) Gate 
installations shall conform with the Fire department Standard Details and Specification G-1 
and, when open shall not obstruct any portion of the required width for emergency access 
roadways or driveways.  Locks, if provided, shall be fire department approved prior to 
installation.  Gates across the emergency access roadways shall be equipped with an 
approved access device.  Show on the plans where the proposed Knox key switch will be 
located. 

92. FIRE APPARATUS (ENGINE) ACCESS DIVEWAY REQUIRED: (As noted on Sheet C.4 of 8) 
Provide an access driveway with a paved all weather surface, a minimum unobstructed with 
of 12 feet, vertical clearance of 13 feet 6 inches, minimum circulating turning radius of 36 
feet outside and 23 feet inside, and a maximum slope of 15%.  Installation shall confirm to 
the Fire Department Standard Details Specifications D-1 and CFC Section 503. 

 
 
 
N:\DEV\CONDITIONS\2020\Quail Hill Road, 15925 - PC COA - 09-09-20.docx 

 

Page 68



EXHIBIT 17 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION – September 9, 2020 
REQUIRED FINDINGS & CONSIDERATIONS FOR: 
 
15925 Quail Hill Road 
Architecture and Site Application S-19-012 
 
Requesting approval for demolition of an existing single-family residence and 
detached accessory dwelling unit, and construction of a two-story single-family 
residence on property zoned HR-1.  APN 527-02-007. 
 
PROPERTY OWNER: John and Allison Diep  
APPLICANT: Gary Kohlsaat.   
 

FINDINGS 
 

Required finding for CEQA: 
 
■ The project is Categorically Exempt pursuant to the adopted Guidelines for the 

Implementation of the California Environmental Quality Act, Section 15303: New 
Construction or Conversion of Small Structures. 

 
Required finding for the demolition of a single-family residence and an accessory dwelling 
unit: 
 
■ As required by Section 29.10.09030 (e) of the Town Code for the demolition of existing 

structures: 
 

1. The Town's housing stock will be maintained as the single-family residence will be 
replaced and the accessory dwelling unit may be replaced in the future. 

2. The existing structures have no architectural or historical significance, and are in 
poor condition. 

3. The property owner does not desire to maintain the structures as they exist; and 
4. The economic utility of the structures was not considered. 

 
■ As required by Section 29.10.330 of the Town Code for the demolition of existing accessory 

dwelling unit: The proposed elimination and/or demolition, (without replacement), is 
consistent with the Town's Housing Element of the General Plan, as the accessory dwelling 
unit may be replaced in the future.  

 
Required Compliance with Hillside Development Standards and Guidelines (HDS&G): 
 
■ The project is in compliance with the Hillside Development Standards and Guidelines with 

exceptions to maximum cut and fill and height of retaining walls. The applicant has provided 
compelling reasons and evidence to support the granting of exceptions to the Hillside 

Page 69



EXHIBIT 17 
 

Development Standards and Guidelines. 
 
Compliance with Hillside Specific Plan 
 
■ The project is in compliance with the Hillside Specific Plan in that it is a single-family 

residence being developed on an existing parcel.  The proposed development is consistent 
with the development criteria included in the Specific Plan. 

 
CONSIDERATIONS 

 
Required considerations in review of Architecture & Site applications: 
 
■ As required by Section 29.20.150 of the Town Code, the considerations in review of an 

Architecture and Site application were all made in reviewing this project. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N:\DEV\PC REPORTS\2020\2020 - Staff Reports and Exhibits\09-09-20\Item 3 - 15925 Quail Hill\Exhibit 17 - Revised Findings and 
Considerations.docx 

Page 70



Planning Department April 23, 2020
Community Development Department, Town of Los Gatos
110 E. Main Street
Los Gatos, CA 95030

Re: The Diep Residence, 15925 Quail Hill Road
Project Description/ Letter of Justification
S-19-012

To Whom it May Concern:

On behalf of John and Allison Diep and their young family, I am pleased to present this completely 
revised project of a current Architecture and Site application. The proposed project includes the 
demolition of an existing single story house, carport and cottage along with the construction of a 
new multi-story home with an attached four car garage. This letter accompanies the submitted 
building plans and additional exhibits for the above referenced project, and contains descriptions of 
the property, the neighborhood, and how it complies with the Hillside Development Standards and 
Guidelines.

EXISTING PROPERTY DESCRIPTION
The property is physically located at the south-east corner of Shady Lane and Drysdale Drive, 
although the official access and street address are on Quail Hill Road. The 0.96 acre property is 
currently accessed from a shared driveway that serves two other residences. The main residence 
and carport are located at the top of the property, and there is a cottage/ADU below on the sloped 
portion. All structures will be demolished as part of this application.

From the existing building pad, the remainder of the site slopes down towards Shady Lane. The 
average site slope is 25%; some portions of the slope exceed 30%, while the proposed building 
area is within the LRDA.

The existing residence and cottage, both of which will be removed, are visible from the intersection 
of Blossom Hill and LG Blvd., but the remainder of this property is not visible from any of the Town’s 
identified viewing areas. While there are several homes nearby, the property is relatively private and 
isolated. There are several mature trees on the property, including several coast live oaks.

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED RESIDENCE
The design team has taken into consideration the comments provided by staff and planning 
commissioners, and this new proposal is a major departure from the previous application. From the 
style to the massing to the minimal number of exceptions to the HSDNG, this is really a complete 
redesign. 

For starters, the style of this house is decidedly contemporary. It will feature horizontal rooflines 
stepping up the hill. Flat overhanging roof elements and large windows interact with a few vertical 
elements to ground the house into the hill. Exterior materials of stone, wood and colored stucco are 

51 University Avenue, Suite L  •  Los Gatos, CA 95030  •  408.395-2555

K O H L S A AT
& A S S O C I A T E S

A  R  C  H  I  T  E  C  T  U  R  E

EXHIBIT 18
Page 71



THE DIEP RESIDENCE, 15925 QUAIL HILL RD,  PAGE  of 2 4

well-suited to the hillside environment. It will feature stone veneer, stucco, and stained wood siding; 
doors and window frames will be premium level aluminum in a dark anodized color. The forms are 
simple and appropriate for the hillside setting. A color and materials spreadsheet was completed 
and complies with the HDG&S.

As a condition to developing this property, the owners have agreed to vacate the Quail Hill vehicular 
easement and access their new residence from Drysdale Drive. This means that the existing flat 
pad The proposed house is situated wholly within the LRDA, just below the existing cottage. The 
front setback from Shady Lane is 101 feet, while the narrow lot dictates using the entire width (to 
the 20 foot setbacks). The house relates to Drysdale as the main entryway faces the street. A new 
walkway leads to a clearly delineated entry porch.

Both the first and second floors are set into the hillside to reduce visual impact. The house never 
touches the 25 foot height limit plane, maxing out around 22 feet, and in most instances is 
substantially lower. The overall combined height of the front elevation (as viewed from Shady Ln) 
comes in at 34’-9". It should be noted that it is virtually impossible for anyone to see this overall 
height from a straight vantage point, so the height will feel even less than what is actually there.

The proposed residence will not be more than 25% visible from any viewing area, including 
Blossom Hill and Los Gatos Blvd. The proposed development will not impact the privacy of the 
neighbors, and in fact, it will only improve the situation.

The proposed size of the home has been reduced by over 20%, from the previous 10,482 total sq. 
ft. to 8,621 sq. ft. The house has 5,076 sq. ft. of exposed living space that is countable towards the 
allowable FAR (5,100 SF + 400 SF Garage Allowance). There is basement space on both the main 
and lower floors totaling 3,545 sq. ft. Of this, 2,222 sq. is for parking and storage on the lower floor, 
while 1,323 sq. ft. is on the main level. By contrast, the previous design included 5,387 sq. ft. of 
below grade area.

To reduce visibility from both Drysdale and Shady Lane, the garages are tucked under the main 
floor and are accessed by a driveway off Drysdale. The garages are almost entirely below grade. 
Instead of a drive-in type of structure of the previous design, these are more traditional in nature 
and are a much more efficient use of space. Extra parking and maneuvering space has been 
provided since Drysdale is a steep and narrow street with limited parking opportunities. A total 
number of four covered and five uncovered parking spaces have been provided, all achieved with 
relatively minor grading.

SITE RESTORATION
Once the existing structures have been removed, the man made building pad will become very 
apparent and noticeable. We are proposing to restore the upper slope to as natural a slope as 
possible, preferably less than 30% slope. This will also address a major potential liability of an 
unsupported fill slope, which happens to loom over the new residence. This area will be re-
landscaped both for naturalization and for stability; a new trail will eventually be put in to provide 
access to the remaining upper pad area.

As a result of the grading and naturalization operation, two trees will need to be removed. One is 
Tree #597, a 20” dia. deodar cedar, listed as “fair”, and the other is #598, an 18” dia. incense cedar, 
which is listed as being in poor condition. 

Page 72



THE DIEP RESIDENCE, 15925 QUAIL HILL RD,  PAGE  of 3 4

EXCEPTIONS TO H,S,D&G REQUESTED
This design is achieved with the minimum number of requested exceptions to the HSD&G. In fact 
the house itself doesn't require any exceptions either to grading or in terms of cut and fill. The 
exceptions we are formally requesting our itemized as follows:

Side Terrace: An exception to exceed the maximum fill height is being requested to fill under the 
main floor exterior terrace. The height needed will be 6 feet to be able to have this relatively small 
terrace be on the same level as the main floor. Due to the tight constraints of the property, this area 
is the only legitimate exterior entertaining space, and the lower retaining wall will be landscaped.

LANDSCAPING AND SITE WORK
Preliminary Grading and Drainage plans were prepared by the civil engineering firm Hanna Brunetti. 
Earthwork quantities are relatively low for a hillside project. 1,891 cubic yards of cut and fill are 
required for the driveway and landscape areas; an additional 885 cu. yds. are required to naturalize 
the upper hill and old building pads.

Preliminary landscape plans were prepared by David Fox LA. The plan shows the site layout with 
the entry walk and stairs, outdoor terraces, existing and new trees as well as planted areas. A total 
of 73 new trees are shown to be planted. Several new trees are shown along the western property 
line to provide privacy screening between neighbors. Layers of trees and shrubs are being planted 
on both Shady Lane and Drysdale to screen the house from the road. Drought and deer tolerant 
plants are proposed- especially beyond 30 feet from the house- refer to the landscape plans for 
more detail.

One terrace is planned on the West side that connects both to the driveway and upper hill levels. 
There is also a small walk-out terrace behind the house, on the upper level, to provide light and 
access to the upper hill. This is achieved with two semi-circular retaining walls and a staircase.

COMPLIANCE WITH HILLSIDE DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS & GUIDELINES
In addition to what was identified above, the proposed home specifically addresses the Hillside 
Development Standards and Guidelines as follows:

SITE/ PLANNING:
§ The new home has been sited to maintain privacy of neighboring properties (II.C.G2)
§ The siting of the house in relation to Drysdale Drive reduces the driveway length and 

grading impacts
§ All of the perimeter trees have been preserved;
§ The siting of the house reduces impact on visibility from the valley by being below the 

existing two structures being removed.

HARMONY/COMPATIBILITY:
§ Given the hillside setting, with minimal neighbors for architectural context, the property 

allows for some freedom in exterior styling. The Contemporary Modern style responds very 
well to the design intent of the HDG&S in that it blends with this natural setting.

SCALE AND MASS:
§ The multi-story home steps down the slope and the massing is tucked into the hillside. Flat 

roofs are used throughout and the majority of the ridgeline is under 20 feet.

Page 73



THE DIEP RESIDENCE, 15925 QUAIL HILL RD,  PAGE  of 4 4

§ The house has been designed with simple forms and horizontal rooflines- along with blocks 
of varying exterior materials that break up each elevation into smaller units.

EXTERIOR MATERIALS:
§ Materials are natural to blend with the environment
§ All meet stringent WUI classified fire resistant materials.  
§ All exterior surfaces to meet the 30 LRV weighted average requirement. 

ENERGY CONSERVATION:
§ The house will employ high quality dual glazed, low E wood windows, ultra-high 

performance insulation packages and high efficiency mechanical systems for heating, 
cooling and domestic hot water.

§ Covered porches will shade the major doors from the sun.
§ The house is oriented to take full advantage of cross ventilation practices.
§ Substantial amount of roof areas provide plenty of space for solar collectors
§ The home will comply with the new 2019 REACH Codes

PRIVACY:
§ The existing and new homes are in completely different areas, with the proposed residence 

set so much lower on the hill than before, so the changes will dramatically improve the 
privacy situation between all of the neighbors!

§ The perimeter of the property will be lined with many trees and hedges that screen the 
house and exterior entertainment areas, providing privacy for all.

LANDSCAPING:
§ All proposed landscaping shall comply with the Town’s Landscaping Policies including the 

HDS&G section.
§ Proposed drought tolerant plants and landscape materials have been chosen to enhance 

both the architecture and the natural setting of the lot.
§ While only a few trees will be removed under this permit, several trees have been added to 

the site. Many of these will provide privacy screening between neighbors.

GEOLOGICAL:
§ There are no significant geological hazards that exist to prevent a safe and secure structure 

to be constructed on this site.  

CONCLUSION
This house has been conceived from the beginning to be compatible with the hillside setting. The 
size, mass, color and exterior style are in keeping with the intent of the Hillside Development 
Standards and Guidelines, and more importantly this home fits in with the immediate neighborhood.

Sincerely,

Gary Kohlsaat
Architect  C19245

Page 74



Town of Los Gatos      August 24, 2020 
Planning Division 
110 E. Main Street 
Los Gatos, CA  95030 

Re: The Diep Residence; 15925 Quail Hill Road  
Architecture and Site Application S-19-012 
Floor Area Reduction Discussion 

Attn: Jennifer Armer 

Thank you for pointing out the floor areas discrepancy.  In order to rectify it, the above grade floor 
area for the house must be at or under 5,100 SF.  Any square footage beyond that must be counted 
towards the above grade floor area of the garage and not to exceed the 400 SF garage allowance.   

This floor area reduction can be achieved simply by lowering the house by 6”.  More floor area 
would be considered below grade basement and less would be above grade floor area. By doing so, 
the main floor would be reduced from 2,539 SF to 2,391, bringing the total main and second floor 
area to 5,100 SF.  The lower floor garage area would be reduced from 52 SF to 16 SF, all of which is 
counted towards the 400 SF allowance. 

The new floor area data is attached along with a revised grading exceptions site plan.  You will see 
that while the fill exceptions have been reduced, the cut exceptions have been increased, all by 6” in 
height.   

Site retaining walls that are downhill of the residence will be reduced in height by 6”.  While some 
walls in front, behind and uphill will get about 6” taller, many will not.  For instance, at the front, the 
site contours are not as steep as the uphill side and slight grading behind the walls can be achieved to 
maintain the existing proposed wall heights. The same can be said for some of the southwest and 
southeast walls.  Portions of the south walls (uphill) and walls at the west (rear) may be raised by 6”.  
All of these walls are only visible by the occupants and not from outside the property. The additional 
cut for the site work and house has been estimated by the civil engineer to be about 250 cubic yards. 

All possible measures will be employed to maintain or reduce site wall heights throughout the 
property.  And all of these changes will be incorporated into the construction documents. 

Sincerely, 

Jaclyn Greenmyer 

51 University Avenue, Suite L  •  Los Gatos, CA 95030  •  408.395-2555

K O H L S A AT
& A S S O C I A T E S

A  R  C  H  I  T  E  C  T  U  R  E

EXHIBIT 19
Page 75



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 
 

Page 76



PROJECT DATA
PROJECT ADDRESS:

OWNER:

APN#:
ZONING:
OCCUPANCY GROUP:
CONSTRUCTION TYPE:

GROSS:
NET SITE AREA:
AVERAGE SLOPE:
ALLOWABLE FLOOR AREA:

15925 QUAIL HILL ROAD
LOS GATOS

JOHN & ALLISON DIEP
5950 COUNTRY CLUB PARKWAY
SAN JOSE, CA  95138
(408) 314-8493

527-02-007
HR-1
R-3
V-B SPRINKLERED

42,253 SF
23,239 SF (45% SLOPE REDUCTION)
25%
5,100 SF
GARAGE ALLOWANCE = 400 SF

PROPOSED FLOOR AREAS:

MAIN FLOOR
SECOND FLOOR
LOWER FLOOR
TOTAL

2,391 SF
2,709 SF

16 SF
5,116 SF

EXISTING STRS TO BE REMOVED:
RESIDENCE
ADU
CARPORT/GARAGE

2,527 SF
815 SF
607 SF

TOTAL FLOOR AREA = 3,949 SF

SITE AREAS:

RESIDENCE
ADU/ ACCESSORY STRS.
COVERED PORCH
BALCONY
TOTAL BUILDING COVERAGE

PATIOS & CONC. PATHS
STAIRS
DRIVEWAY
TOTAL IMPERVIOUS COVERAGE

LIVING AREA
GARAGE
TOTAL

2,527 SF
1,422 SF
200 SF
210 SF

4,359 SF

541 SF
105 SF

1,303 SF
6,308 SF

= 10.3%

= 14.9%

4,533 SF
0 SF

140 SF
  540 SF
4,673 SF

1,330 SF
798 SF

3,283 SF
10,084 SF

= 11.0%

= 23.8%

EXISTINGPROPOSED

FLOOR AREA BASEMENT TOTAL AREA
1,247 SF

- SF
2,258 SF
3,505 SF

3,638 SF
2,709 SF
2,274 SF
8,621 SF

7,449 SF
1,172 SF
8,621 SF

EXHIBIT 20Page 77



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 
 

Page 78



OF

REVISIONS

DATE:

SCALE:

51
 U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 A

V
E.

 "L
" •

  L
O

S 
G

AT
O

S,
  C

A
. •

  9
50

30
  •

  (
40

8)
 3

95
-2

55
5

S H E E T

A
  N

EW
 R

ES
ID

EN
C

E:

T
H

E
 D

IE
P

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

C
E

15
92

5 
Q

U
A

IL
 H

IL
L 

R
O

A
D

   
   

LO
S 

G
AT

O
S,

 C
A

AS SHOWN

A-4

04/23/20

-4

GRADING
EXCEPTIONS
SITE PLAN

MAIN FLOOR F.F.=430.0'

UPPER FLOOR F.F.=442.2'

GARAGE FLOOR F.F.=419.3

LINE OF UPPER
FLOOR

LINE OF UPPER
FLOOR

WORST CASE:
5'-6" OF FILL

WORST CASE:
8'-6" OF CUT

437.67' CONTOUR LINE
(DEFINES BELOW GRADE
BASEMENT AREA FOR
MAIN FLOOR)

425.5' CONTOUR LINE
(DEFINES BELOW GRADE
BASEMENT AREA FOR
LOWER FLOOR)

WORST CASE:
8'-6" OF CUT

WORST CASE:
5'-6" OF CUT

WORST CASE:
8'-6" OF CUT

6'-6" OF CUT

6'-6" OF CUT

4' CUT LINE

4' CUT LINE

4' CUT LINE

4' CUT LINE

4' CUT LINE

x

x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x
x

 10"OAK

 2-7"TREE

 CLMP SMALL

 5"OAK

 5"OAK

 9"OAK

 5"OAK 12"OAK

 7"WNT  16"CDR

 24"CDR

 36"OAK

 OAKS

T14-25 OAK

T12-20

T24-45 OAK

T12-20 OAK

T12-20 OAK

T24-45 OAK

T6-10 OAK

T24-30 PINE

T6-10

T6-10

T24-50 OAK

410

420

430

440

450

470

490

400

410

394

392

420

430

470

S13° 18' 30"W245.14

N12° 59' 00"E 331.37

S89° 47' 30"E
105.97

440

450

460
460

440

430

420

410

PROPOSED RESIDENCE
PROPOSED
DRIVEWAY

BA
LC

O
N

Y

UPPER PATIO

UPPER
PATIO (BELOW)

LIGHTWELL

OFF-STREET
PARKING

OFF-STREET
PARKING/
BACK-UP AREA

FOUNTAIN

WORST CASE:
7'-6" OF CUT

4' CUT LINE

3' FILL LINE

PATIO
BBQ
AREA

CUT EXCEPTION

FILL EXCEPTION

GRADING LEGEND

PLEASE SEE CIVIL PLANS FOR
GRADES & WALL HEIGHTS

SCALE: 1"   = 10'

SITE GRADING EXCEPTIONS

EXHIBIT 21
Page 79



Page 80



May 14, 2020

Ms. Jennifer Armer
Community Development Department
Town of Los Gatos
110 E. Main Street
Los Gatos, CA  95031

RE: 15925 Quail Hill Road

Dear Jennifer:

I reviewed the drawings, and evaluated the site context. I have previously reviewed two other proposed homes on this 
site. My comments and recommendations are as follows:

Neighborhood Context 
The site is steeply sloped with an existing house located at the top of the slope. This proposal is for a new house to be 
located near the base of the slope at the intersection of Shady Lane and Drysdale Drive. The site is shown on the aerial 
photo below, and photos of the site and its surroundings are on the following page.

EXHIBIT 22

Page 81



15925 Quail Hill Road
Design Review Comments
May 14, 2020    Page 2

The Site looking Uphill

Aerial Photo looking South

The Site from Shady Lane looking West

The Site looking Downhill

The Site from Shady Lane looking East

Page 82



15925 Quail Hill Road
Design Review Comments
May 14, 2020    Page 3

Concerns and Recommendations
The proposed site for the house is near the bottom of the parcel adjacent to both Shady Lane and Drysdale Drive with 
substantial landscaping proposed to buffer views of the house. It is well designed with attention to the Town’s Hillside 
Development Standards and Design Guidelines. Some specific positive design elements of the design include the following:

• Low profile building masses that step with the natural grade
• Articulated facades
• Recessed garage doors
• Projecting eyebrow canopies and roof eaves to provide facade texture and shadows
• High quality materials consistent with the Hillside Development Standards and Design Guidelines including stone and 

wood siding
• Varied exterior materials to provide facade variety and visually break the structure into smaller elements
• Low stone retaining walls to step and blend with the grade
• Live Oak landscaping in the front setback

See proposed elevations and sketches below.

Proposed Front Elevation: Shady Lane

Proposed Left Side Elevation: Drysdale Drive

Proposed Right Side Elevation

Page 83



15925 Quail Hill Road
Design Review Comments
May 14, 2020    Page 4

Proposed Rear Elevation

Front and Left Side View
Note: Low wall at bottom is different than shown on the floor plans

Front View

Front and Right Side View

Page 84



15925 Quail Hill Road
Design Review Comments
May 14, 2020    Page 5

While the proposed house is well designed, there are a few minor concerns, as follows:

1. The low stone wall at the exterior parking area has proposed landscaping in front of it, but the plantings may not 
shield the car fronts from view.

Recommendation: Increase wall height and/or increase buffer landscaping.

2. While most of the low walls are faced with stone, the low wall along Drysdale Drive is proposed as stucco with a 
stone cap.

Recommendation: Use stone to match other low landscape walls, and provide an illustration to show the proposed wall 
heights related to the hillside slope (e.g., sloped or stepped).

Page 85



15925 Quail Hill Road
Design Review Comments
May 14, 2020    Page 6

3. All roofs are relatively flat with PVC roofing which will present a large viewable area from above.

Recommendation: Select roofing color to blend with the home colors and the natural environment.

4. In general, the landscaping is varied in size and placement, and is designed to blend with the hillside environment 
as required by the Town’s Hillside Development Standards and Design Guidelines. However, the proposed  landscaping 
at both side setbacks is more regular and linear - see example photos below.

Recommendation: Reevaluate the side yards landscaping to increase its informality consistent with the hillside location. 

Neighboring property edge Drysdale Drive edge

Page 86



15925 Quail Hill Road
Design Review Comments
May 14, 2020    Page 7

Jennifer, please let me know if you have any questions, or if there are other issues that I did not address.

Sincerely,
CANNON DESIGN GROUP

Larry L. Cannon

Page 87



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 
 

Page 88



Jennifer T.C. Armer 6-15-20
Senior Planner, Town of Los Gatos

Re: 15925 Quail Hill Road, application S-19-012, Responses to comments by CDG

1. A review of the planting plan, sheet L2.0, would show the reviewer that the shrubs in front of the
wall are Arctostaphylos densiflora  ‘Howard McMinn’, a variety of Manzanita.  This is a dense native
shrub that grows to a height of 6-10’ and have a spread of 6’.  They are placed on 4’ centers and will
easily provide screening for any car fronts in the parking area.

2. Since the retaining walls are fully covered with plantings that will obscure the walls there is no need
to go to the expense of veneering the faces with stone.  The stucco will be either a dark integral
color of be painted with a low LRV paint.  The combination of the dense plantings, the low height of
the walls, and the dark finish will bring the visual impact of the walls to a low level.

3. The wall detail has been revised to show the sloping wall.  Referencing the planting plan on sheet
L2.0 the shrubs designated in front of the wall are Arctostaphylos ‘John Dourley’.  As indicated in the
detail the wall is 12” above the existing grade for its run.  The specified shrub grows 2’-3’ high and is
planted in a double row.  This will completely cover the wall and there is no need for the expense of
stone veneer.  As with the parking area wall mentioned in response 2, the stucco will be either a
dark integral color of be painted with a low LRV paint.

4. In response to the linear nature of the plantings on the sides of the house.  On the west side of the
house there was a desire by the neighbors to have effective screening on that side of the house.
The planting area is just more than 5’ wide and cannot accommodate the wide canopies that
characterize the plantings of the area in front of the house.  The chosen plantings will provide
effective screening for the neighbors and fit the narrow space provided.

On the east side of the house, the Drysdale side, there was a desire by the owners to screen this
elevation of the house for privacy and the trees will also provide a screen for cars traveling on
Drysdale.  The line of trees planted is more in character with the modern nature of the architecture
and reflects the lines of the house.  The line of trees will also provide a more effective screen than a
random placement.

Please review the revised plans and let me know of any additional changes.  You may reach me at my
email: david@foxla.net

Regards,

David Fox
Landscape Architect
CA lic# 1966/5053

EXHIBIT 23

Page 89

mailto:david@foxla.net


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 
 

Page 90



* PLEASE SEE COLOR ELEVATIONS FOR AVERAGE LRV CALCULATIONS.

COLOR SAMPLES BOARD
The Diep Residence; 15925 Quail Hill

2015 STONE SPECIFICATIONSwww.buechelstone.comϳϴ

PART NUMBERS
FULL VENEER
ƉĂƌƚ�ŶƵŵďĞƌ͗�Eͬ�

THIN VENEER
ƋƚǇ�ďǆ�ŇĂƚ͗�ϭ�ds�h�ϬϲϬϬϮY�
Ɛŵ�ďǆ�ŇĂƚ͗�ϭ�ds�h�ϬϲϬϬϮ�y

ƋƚǇ�ďǆ�ĐŽƌŶĞƌ͗�ϭ�ds�h�ϬϲϱϬϮY�
Ɛŵ�ďǆ�ĐŽƌŶĞƌ͗�ϭ�ds�h�ϬϲϱϬϮ�y

ASTM TESTING DATA
EARTH WOOD C97 ǁĂƚĞƌ�ĂďƐŽƌƉƟŽŶͶϬ͘Ϯϵй
EARTH WOOD C97 ĚĞŶƐŝƚǇͶϭϳϳ͘ϴ�ƉĐĨ
EARTH WOOD C170
ĐŽŵƉƌĞƐƐŝǀĞ�ƐƚƌĞŶŐƚŚͶϭϱ͕ϱϯϬ�ƉƐŝ

LEDGESTONE
EARTH WOOD

TAILORED
 LEDGESTONE

GEOLOGY: ŐŶĞŝƐƐ�;ĨŽƌŵ�ŽĨ�ŐƌĂŶŝƚĞͿ

BASIC USE
ĞǆƚĞƌŝŽƌ�ǁĂůůƐ�ŽĨ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĮƌĞƉůĂĐĞƐ
ƐƚŽŶĞ�ƐŚĂůů�ďĞ�ŵŽƌƚĂƌĞĚ�ŝŶ

COLOR RANGE
ĐŚĂƌĐŽĂů�ŐƌĞĞŶ�ǁŝƚŚ
ŽĐĐĂƐŝŽŶĂů�ďƌŽǁŶ�ĂŶĚ�ŐŽůĚ

COLOR CONSISTENCY PER PALLET
ƐŽŵĞǁŚĂƚ�ĐŽŶƐŝƐƚĞŶƚ

WEIGHT CALCULATED IN INCHES
ů�ǆ�ǁ�ǆ�Ś�ͬ�ϭϳϮϴ�;ŝŶĐŚĞƐ�ĐƵďĞĚͿ�ǆ�ϭϳϬ
с�ĂƉƉƌŽǆ�ϭϳϬ�ƉŽƵŶĚƐ�ƉĞƌ�ĐƵďŝĐ�ĨŽŽƚ

PALLET
&h>>�s�E��Z͗�Eͬ��;EĂƚƵƌĂů�dŚŝŶ�sĞŶĞĞƌ�KŶůǇͿ
d,/E�s�E��Z͗�ϭϬͲϭϱ�ůďƐͬŌϸ͖�YƚǇ��ǆ�Žƌ�^ŵ��ǆ
YƚǇ��ǆ�Ͳ�ϭϬϬ�ƐƋ�Ō�ŇĂƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ϱϬ�ůŝŶĞĂů�Ō�ĐŽƌŶĞƌƐ
^ŵ��ǆ�Ͳ�;ϮϰͿ�ϴ�ƐƋ�Ō�ŇĂƚƐ�;ϭϵϮ�ƐƋ�ŌͿ�ĂŶĚ
��������������;ϮϬͿ�ϴ�ůŝŶĞĂů�Ō�ĐŽƌŶĞƌƐ�;ϭϲϬ�ůŝŶĞĂů�ŌͿ

LEDGESTONE LINE

FULL VENEER (N/A)
EARTH WOOD TAILORED LEDGESTONE 
NTV (NATURAL THIN VENEER) ONLY 
�ĂƌƚŚ�tŽŽĚ�dĂŝůŽƌĞĚ�>ĞĚŐĞƐƚŽŶĞ
ŝƐ�Ă�dŚŝŶ�sĞŶĞĞƌ�ƉƌŽĚƵĐƚ�ŽŶůǇ͖�ƐŽ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ŝƐ�ŶŽ�
ĂƉƉůŝĐĂďůĞ�&Ƶůů�sĞŶĞĞƌ�ƐƉĞĐ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�
ƌĞƉŽƌƚ͘
WůĞĂƐĞ�ĮŶĚ�ĚĞƚĂŝůĞĚ�ĚĂƚĂ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚŝƐ�dŚŝŶ�sĞŶĞĞƌ�
ƉƌŽĚƵĐƚ�ůŝƐƚĞĚ�ďĞůŽǁ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƚǁŽ�
ĐŽůƵŵŶƐ͘�dŚĂŶŬ�ǇŽƵ͘

THIN VENEER
EARTH WOOD TAILORED LEDGESTONE
dzW/��>��>�E�
ϭϬϬ�ƉĞƌĐĞŶƚ�ďĞĚĨĂĐĞ�ĨĂĐĞ͖�
ĨĂĐĞ�ŽĨ�ƐƚŽŶĞ�ĐĂŶŶŽƚ�ŚĂǀĞ�Ă�ƐĂǁŶ�ĮŶŝƐŚ
dzW/��>�W/���
ĞŶĚƐ�ƐĂǁŶ�ƌĂŶĚŽŵ�ůĞŶŐƚŚƐ͖
ƐĂǁŶ�ƚŽƉ͕�ďŽƩŽŵ͕�ĂŶĚ�ƐŝĚĞƐ͖
ďĂĐŬ�ƐĂǁŶ͖�ƐƚŽŶĞ�ŝƐ�ůŝŶĞĂƌ
ƐƋƵĂƌĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞĐƚĂŶŐůĞƐ

THIN VENEER
COMMON COVERAGE PER BOX

EARTH WOOD TAILORED LEDGESTONE
�/D�E^/KE^
h^͗�ŝŶĐŚĞƐ�;ĂǀĞƌĂŐĞͿ
ů͗�ϰ͟�ƚŽ�ϭϲ͟�;ϴ͟Ϳ
Ś͗�ϭ͖͟��Ś͗�Ϯ͖͟�Ś͗�ϰ͟
ǁ͗�ϭͬϮ͞�ƚŽ�ϯͬϰ͟�;ϱͬϴ͟Ϳ
ĐŽƌŶĞƌ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶ�Eͬ�
�KZE�Z�/E^d�>>�d/KE

D�dZ/�͗�ŵŵ�;ĂǀĞƌĂŐĞͿ
ů͗�ϭϬϬ�ƚŽ�ϰϬϬ�;ϮϬϯͿ
Ś͗�Ϯϱ͖�Ś͗�ϱϭ͖�Ś͗�ϭϬϮ
ǁ͗�ϭϯ�ƚŽ�ϭϵ�;ϭϲͿ
Đƌ͗�Eͬ�

&ŝŐƵƌĞĚ�ĨŽƌ��ƌǇƐƚĂĐŬĞĚ�:ŽŝŶƚ�KŶůǇ
ϴ& ϭϬϬ�ƐƋƵĂƌĞ�ĨĞĞƚ

Ύ�Ɛƚ͘;ĐĂŶ�ǀĂƌǇͿ

STONE VENEER: 
EARTHWOOD TAILORED LEDGESTONE, BUECHEL QUARRY
(LRV 21.6)

STUCCO:   
INTEGRAL COLOR COAT STUCCO -
BENJAMIN MOORE - BALBOA MIST (LRV 67.4)

WOOD SIDING: 
SEMI-TRANSPARENT STAINED WOOD SIDING, 
DARK WALNUT  (LRV 3.94)

FASCIA AND GUTTERS: 
SLATE GRAY  (LRV 25)

WINDOWS & DOORS: 
FLEETWOOD, BLACK ANODIZED ALUMINUM  (LRV 3.3)

ROOFING: 
PVC MEMBRANE ROOFING, BY IB ROOFING, 80 MIL GRAY  (LRV 18.1)

EXHIBIT 24

Page 91



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 
 

Page 92



OF

REVISIONS

DATE:

SCALE:

51
 U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 A

V
E.

 "L
" •

  L
O

S 
G

AT
O

S,
  C

A
. •

  9
50

30
  •

  (
40

8)
 3

95
-2

55
5

S H E E T

A
  N

EW
 R

ES
ID

EN
C

E:

T
H

E
 D

IE
P

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

C
E

15
92

5 
Q

U
A

IL
 H

IL
L 

R
O

A
D

   
   

LO
S 

G
AT

O
S,

 C
A

AS SHOWN

A-1

04/23/20

-1

COVER SHEET

A-1

A-2

A-3

A-4

C.1

C.2

C.3

C.4

C.5

C.6

C.7

C.8

A-5

A-6

A-7

A-8

A-9

A-10

A-11

L1.0

L1.0

L1.1

L2.0

L2.1

L3.0

COVER SHEET

NEIGHBORHOOD PLAN

SITE PLAN

GRADING EXCEPTIONS SITE PLAN

CIVIL COVER SHEET

BLUEPRINT FOR A CLEAN BAY

EXISTING TOPOGRAPHY & DEMO PLAN

GRADING & DRAINAGE PLAN

GRADING & DRAINAGE PLAN

GRADING & DRAINAGE PLAN

DRIVEWAY PROFILE & DETAILS

EROSION CONTROL PLAN

MAIN FLOOR PLAN

SECOND FLOOR PLAN

LOWER FLOOR PLAN

ROOF PLAN

FRONT & LEFT ELEVATIONS

RIGHT & REAR ELEVATIONS

CROSS SECTIONS

CONCEPT LANDSCAPE PLAN

CONCEPT LANDSCAPE PLAN B/W

SITE SECTIONS

PLANTING PLAN

LANDSAPE DETAILS

TREE TABLE & PROTECTION PLAN

PROJECT DATA
PROJECT ADDRESS:

OWNER:

APN#:
ZONING:
OCCUPANCY GROUP:
CONSTRUCTION TYPE:

GROSS:
NET SITE AREA:
AVERAGE SLOPE:
ALLOWABLE FLOOR AREA:

15925 QUAIL HILL ROAD
LOS GATOS

JOHN & ALLISON DIEP
5950 COUNTRY CLUB PARKWAY
SAN JOSE, CA  95138
(408) 314-8493

527-02-007
HR-1
R-3
V-B SPRINKLERED

42,253 SF
23,239 SF (45% SLOPE REDUCTION)
25%
5,100 SF + 400 SF
GARAGE ALLOWANCE = 5,500 SF

PROPOSED FLOOR AREAS:

MAIN FLOOR
SECOND FLOOR
LOWER FLOOR
TOTAL

2,539 SF
2,709 SF

52 SF
5,300 SF

EXISTING STRS TO BE REMOVED:
RESIDENCE
ADU
CARPORT/GARAGE

2,527 SF
815 SF
607 SF

TOTAL FLOOR AREA = 3,949 SF

SITE AREAS:

RESIDENCE
ADU/ ACCESSORY STRS.
COVERED PORCH
BALCONY
TOTAL BUILDING COVERAGE

PATIOS & CONC. PATHS
STAIRS
DRIVEWAY
TOTAL IMPERVIOUS COVERAGE

LIVING AREA
GARAGE
TOTAL

2,527 SF
1,422 SF
200 SF
210 SF

4,359 SF

541 SF
105 SF

1,303 SF
6,308 SF

= 10.3%

= 14.9%

4,533 SF
0 SF

140 SF
 540 SF
4,673 SF

1,330 SF
798 SF

3,283 SF
10,084 SF

= 11.0%

= 23.8%

EXISTINGPROPOSED

FLOOR AREA BASEMENT TOTAL AREA
1,099 SF

- SF
2,222 SF
3,321 SF

3,638 SF
2,709 SF
2,274 SF
8,621 SF

7,449 SF
1,172 SF
8,621 SF

PROJECT DIRECTORY
ARCHITECT:
KOHLSAAT & ASSOCIATES
51 UNIVERSITY AVENUE, SUITE L
LOS GATOS, CA  95030
TEL: (408) 395-2555

SURVEYOR & CIVIL ENGINEER:
HANNA-BRUNETTI
7651 EIGLEBERRY STREET
GILROY, CA  95020
TEL: (408) 842-2173

SCOPE OF WORK
A NEW 5,076SF SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCE WHICH INCLUDES 6
BEDROOMS, 6 FULL BATHS, ONE HALF BATH, A MUSIC NOOK, WINE
STORAGE, A VERANDA AND BBQ AREA, AND A 4 CAR GARAGE.
SCOPE ALSO INCLUDES THE DEMOLITION OF A 2,527 SF
RESIDENCE, AN ADU/COTTAGE AND A CARPORT, AND THE
REMOVAL OF 2 TREES.

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT:
DAVID R. FOX & COMPANY
50 UNIVERSITY AVENUE, STE142
LOS GATOS, CA  95030
TEL: (408) 761-0212

SHEET INDEXVICINITY MAP

SITE

NOTES
• FIRE SPRINKLERS: An automatic residential fire sprinkler system shall be
installed in one- and two-family dwellings as follows: In all new one- and two-family
dwellings and in existing one- and two-family dwellings when additions are made
that increase the building area to more than 3,600 square feet. Exception: A
one-time addition to an existing building that does not total more than 1,000
square feet of building area. Note: The owner(s), occupant(s) and any
contractor(s) or subcontractor(s) are responsible for consulting with the water
purveyor of record in order to determine if any modification or upgrade of the
existing water service is required. A State of California licensed (C-16) Fire
Protection Contractor shall submit plans, calculations, a completed permit
application and appropriate fees to this department for review and approval
prior to beginning their work. CRC Sec. 313.2 as adopted and amended by LGTC.
• WATER SUPPLY REQUIREMENTS: Potable water supplies shall be protected from
contamination caused by fire protection water supplies. It is the responsibility of
the applicant and any contractors
and subcontractors to contact the water purveyor supplying the site of such
project, and to comply with the requirements of that purveyor. Such
requirements shall be incorporated into the design of
any water-based fire protection systems, and/or fire suppression water supply
systems or storage containers that may be physically connected in any manner to
an appliance capable of causing
contamination of the potable water supply of the purveyor of record. Final
approval of the system(s) under consideration will not be granted by this office
until compliance with the requirements of the
water purveyor of record are documented by that purveyor as having been met
by the applicant(s). 2016 CFC Sec. 903.3.5 and Health and Safety Code 13114.7
• ADDRESS IDENTIFICATION: New and existing buildings shall have approved
address numbers, building numbers or approved building identification placed in a
position that is plainly legible and
visible from the street or road fronting the property. These numbers shall
contrast with their background. Where required by the fire code official, address
numbers shall be provided in additional
approved locations to facilitate emergency response. Address numbers shall be
Arabic numbers oralphabetical letters. Numbers shall be a minimum of 4 inches
(101.6 mm) high with a minimum stroke
width of 0.5 inch (12.7 mm). Where access is by means of a private road and the
building cannot beviewed from the public way, a monument, pole or other sign or
means shall be used to identify the
structure. Address numbers shall be maintained. [CFC Sec. 505.1].
• REQUIRED FIRE FLOW: (Letter from SJW) The fire flow for this project is 2,750
GPM at 20 psi residual pressure from a single hydrant. As an automatic fire
sprinkler system will be installed, the fire flow will be reduced by 50%
establishing a required adjusted fire flow of 1375 GPM at 20 psi residual
pressure. Documentation provided from a local water purveyor confirms required
fire flow is available.
• EMERGENCY GATE/ACCESS GATE REQUIREMENTS: Gate installations shall
conform with Fire Department Standard Details and Specification G-1 and, when
open shall not obstruct any portion of the required width for emergency access
roadways or driveways. Locks, if provided, shall be fire department approved
prior to installation. Gates across the emergency access roadways shall be
equipped with an approved access devices. Knox Keyswitch is required for the
automatic gate.
• FIRE APPARATUS (ENGINE) ACCESS DRIVEWAY REQUIRED: Provide an
access driveway with a paved all weather surface, a minimum unobstructed width
of 12 feet, vertical clearance of 13 feet 6 inches, minimum circulating turning
radius of 36 feet outside and 23 feet inside, and a maximum slope of 15%.
Installations shall conform to the Fire Department Standard Details Specifications
D-1 and CFC Section 503.

The Diep Residence

EXHIBIT 25
Page 93



OF

REVISIONS

DATE:

SCALE:

51
 U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 A

V
E.

 "L
" •

  L
O

S 
G

AT
O

S,
  C

A
. •

  9
50

30
  •

  (
40

8)
 3

95
-2

55
5

S H E E T

A
  N

EW
 R

ES
ID

EN
C

E:

T
H

E
 D

IE
P

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

C
E

15
92

5 
Q

U
A

IL
 H

IL
L 

R
O

A
D

   
   

LO
S 

G
AT

O
S,

 C
A

AS SHOWN

A-2

04/23/20

-2

NEIGHBORH
OOD PLAN

S13° 18' 30"W245.14

N12° 59' 00"E 331.37

S75° 01' 00"E
70.00

S44° 01' 00"E

58.53

S15° 37' 00"W
115.00

S89° 47' 30"E
105.97

N7° 02' 00"E
86.84

★

100 DRYSDALE
09.34 AC.
2,472 SF
F.A.R.=6.1%

15921 QUAIL HILL
.95 AC.
4,241 SF
F.A.R.=10.2%

15941 QUAIL HILL
.99 AC.
2,363 SF
F.A.R.=5.5%

101 DRYSDALE
1.416 AC.
5,399 SF
F.A.R.=8.8%

15925 QUAIL HILL
.97 AC.
5,076 SF
F.A.R.=12%

(E) RESIDENCE TO
BE DEMOLISHED

15941 QUAIL HILL
1.09 AC.
3,694 SF
F.A.R.=.08%

DRYSDALE DRIVE

SHADY
LANE

(E) COTTAGE
TO BE
DEMOLISHED

(E) CARPORT
TO BE
DEMOLISHED

SCALE: 1"   = 30'

NEIGHBORHOOD PLAN

Page 94



OF

REVISIONS

DATE:

SCALE:

51
 U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 A

V
E.

 "L
" •

  L
O

S 
G

AT
O

S,
  C

A
. •

  9
50

30
  •

  (
40

8)
 3

95
-2

55
5

S H E E T

A
  N

EW
 R

ES
ID

EN
C

E:

T
H

E
 D

IE
P

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

C
E

15
92

5 
Q

U
A

IL
 H

IL
L 

R
O

A
D

   
   

LO
S 

G
AT

O
S,

 C
A

AS SHOWN

A-3

04/23/20

-3

SITE PLAN

5
'-
4

1/
2
"

2
0

'-
6

1/
2
"

2
4
'-
6

1/
4
"

2
0

'-
0

"

2
0

'-
0

" 
S
ID

E
 S

E
T
B

A
C
K

30'-0" FRONT SETBACK

2
0

'-
0

" 
S
ID

E
 S

E
T
B

A
C
K

101'-1
3/4"

2
0

'-
5

1/
4
"

85'-61/2"

6
3
'-
10

"

3
'-
6
"

MAIN FLOOR F.F.=430.0'

UPPER FLOOR F.F.=442.2'

GARAGE FLOOR F.F.=419.3

A
A-11

A
A-11

B
A-11

B
A-11

C
A-11

C
A-11

LINE OF GARAGE
FLOOR BELOW

LINE OF UPPER
FLOOR

RAISED PLANTER
@ LIGHTWELL

4' TALL, SLIDING VEHICULAR GATE

RAISED PLANTER
@ LIGHTWELL

EXISTING RESIDENCE
ABOVE TO BE REMOVED

EXISTING COTTAGE
TO BE REMOVED

LRDALRDA

LRDA

LRDA

LINE OF UPPER
FLOOR

PERSON GATE

LINE OF GARAGE
FLOOR BELOW

UPPER
RETAINING
WALLS

UPPER
RETAINING
WALLS

PULL OUT/WAITING AREA

SITE RETAINING WALLS
TO BE REMOVED

SITE RETAINING WALLS
TO BE REMOVED

EXISTING STAIRS TO BE REMOVED

FUTURE LANDSCAPE
EASEMENT AREA

x

x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x
x

 10"OAK 2-9"ACA

 2-7"TREE
 JP

 ANCHOR

 CLMP SMALL

 5"OAK

 5"OAK

 9"OAK

 5"OAK 12"OAK

 7"WNT  16"CDR

 24"CDR

 36"OAK

COTTAGE

 OAKS

DRYSDALE DRIVE

RIGHT OF WAY
PER 207 M 42

S H A D Y    L A N E

(SS) (SS) (SS) (SS) (SS)
(SS)

T14-25 OAK

T12-20

T24-45 OAK

FH

T12-20 OAK

T12-20 OAK

T24-45 OAK

GUY

GUY

T6-10 OAK

PP

T24-30 PINE

SSMH

CATV BX

T6-10

T6-10

NO PARK SIGNT24-50 OAK

NO PARK SIGN

SIGN

SSMH -4.32INV

398.31
INV 24CMP

SSMH -4.35 INV

410

420

430

440

450

470

490

400

410

394

392

420

430

470

STOP SIGN
T22-15

CATVBX

SL

T12-24

S13° 18' 30"W245.14

N12° 59' 00"E 331.37

S15° 37' 00"W
115.00

S89° 47' 30"E
105.97

440

450

460
460

440

430

420

410

PROPOSED RESIDENCE
PROPOSED
DRIVEWAY

BA
LC

O
N

Y

BBQ
AREA

COVERED
PORCH

UPPER PATIO

UPPER
PATIO (BELOW)

LIGHTWELL

OFF-STREET
PARKING

OFF-STREET
PARKING/
BACK-UP AREA

PROPOSED
DRIVEWAY

FOUNTAIN

PATIO

SCALE: 1"   = 10'

SITE PLAN
Page 95



OF

REVISIONS

DATE:

SCALE:

51
 U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 A

V
E.

 "L
" •

  L
O

S 
G

AT
O

S,
  C

A
. •

  9
50

30
  •

  (
40

8)
 3

95
-2

55
5

S H E E T

A
  N

EW
 R

ES
ID

EN
C

E:

T
H

E
 D

IE
P

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

C
E

15
92

5 
Q

U
A

IL
 H

IL
L 

R
O

A
D

   
   

LO
S 

G
AT

O
S,

 C
A

AS SHOWN

A-4

04/23/20

-4

GRADING
EXCEPTIONS
SITE PLAN

MAIN FLOOR F.F.=430.0'

UPPER FLOOR F.F.=442.2'

GARAGE FLOOR F.F.=419.3

LINE OF UPPER
FLOOR

LINE OF UPPER
FLOOR

WORST CASE:
6' OF FILL

WORST CASE:
8' OF CUT

438.17' CONTOUR LINE
(DEFINES BELOW GRADE
BASEMENT AREA FOR
MAIN FLOOR)

426.0' CONTOUR LINE
(DEFINES BELOW GRADE
BASEMENT AREA FOR
LOWER FLOOR)

WORST CASE:
8' OF CUT

WORST CASE:
5' OF CUT

WORST CASE:
7' OF CUT

WORST CASE:
8' OF CUT

6' OF CUT

6' OF CUT

4' CUT LINE

4' CUT LINE
4' CUT LINE

4' CUT LINE

4' CUT LINE

x

x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x
x

 10"OAK

 2-7"TREE

 CLMP SMALL

 5"OAK

 5"OAK

 9"OAK

 5"OAK 12"OAK

 7"WNT  16"CDR

 24"CDR

 36"OAK

 OAKS

T14-25 OAK

T12-20

T24-45 OAK

T12-20 OAK

T12-20 OAK

T24-45 OAK

T6-10 OAK

T24-30 PINE

T6-10

T6-10

T24-50 OAK

410

420

430

440

450

470

490

400

410

394

392

420

430

470

S13° 18' 30"W245.14

N12° 59' 00"E 331.37

S89° 47' 30"E
105.97

440

450

460
460

440

430

420

410

PROPOSED RESIDENCE
PROPOSED
DRIVEWAY

BA
LC

O
N

Y

BBQ
AREAUPPER PATIO

UPPER
PATIO (BELOW)

LIGHTWELL

OFF-STREET
PARKING

OFF-STREET
PARKING/
BACK-UP AREA

FOUNTAIN

4' CUT LINE

3' FILL LINE

PATIO

CUT EXCEPTION

FILL EXCEPTION

GRADING LEGEND

PLEASE SEE CIVIL PLANS FOR
GRADES & WALL HEIGHTS

SCALE: 1"   = 10'

SITE GRADING EXCEPTIONS
Page 96



REV.: DEC. 2015

VICINITY MAP

PL
AN

 F
O

R 
TH

E 
IM

PR
O

VE
M

EN
T 

O
F

LA
N

DS
 O

F 
DI

EP
 - 

15
92

5 
Q

U
AI

L 
HI

LL
 D

RI
VE

PA
RK

S 
AN

D 
PU

BL
IC

 W
O

RK
S 

DE
PA

RT
M

EN
T

TO
W

N
 O

F 
LO

S 
GA

TO
S

TO
W

N
 N

O
TE

S,
 P

RO
JE

CT
 D

AT
A,

 L
EG

EN
D 

&
 A

BB
RE

VI
AT

IO
N

S
AR

CH
IT

EC
TU

RA
L 

AN
D 

SI
TE

 A
PP

LI
CA

TI
O

N
 N

O
. S

-1
9-

01
2

RE
VI

SI
O

N
S

BY
DA

TE

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
O

.:

SC
AL

E:

EN
GR

:

CH
EC

K:

DR
AW

N
:

DE
SI

GN
:

DA
TE

:
JU

N
E 

15
, 2

02
0

AM XX AMTM

AS
 S

HO
W

N

18
08

3

SHEET INDEX
C.1 TOWN NOTES, PROJECT DATA, LEGEND & ABBREVIATIONS
C.2 BLUEPRINT FOR A CLEAN BAY SHEET
C.3 EXISTING TOPOGRAPHY AND DEMOLITION PLAN
C.4 GRADING & DRAINAGE PLAN - DRIVEWAY AND GARAGE LEVEL
C.5 GRADING & DRAINAGE PLAN - MAIN LEVEL
C.6 GRADING & DRAINAGE PLAN - UPPER LEVEL
C.7 DRIVEWAY PROFILE
C.8 EROSION CONTROL PLAN

PLAN FOR THE IMPROVEMENT OF

TOWN OF LOS GATOS
GRADING & DRAINAGE PLANS

ARCHITECTURAL AND SITE APPLICATION NO. S-19-012

TOTAL SITE AREA:
____________ SF

TOTAL SITE AREA DISTURBED: ____________ SF
(INCLUDING CLEARING, GRADING OR EXCAVATING)

EXISTING
AREA (SF)

PROPOSED AREA (SF)
REPLACED NEW

TOTAL AREA
POST-PROJECT (SF)

IMPERVIOUS AREA
TOTAL NEW & REPLACED IMPERVIOUS AREA
PERVIOUS AREA

TABLE OF PROPOSED PERVIOUS AND IMPERVIOUS AREAS

AB AGGREGATE BASE
AC ASPHALT CONCRETE
AD AREA DRAIN
ARV AIR RELEASE VALVE
BC BACK OF CURB
BFP BACKFLOW PREVENTER
BW BOTTOM OF WALL
CATV CABLE TELEVISION
CB CATCH BASIN
CFS CUBIC FEET PER SECOND
C/L CENTERLINE
CMP CORRUGATED METAL PIPE
CO CLEANOUT
CY CUBIC YARD
DCVA DOUBLE CHECK VALVE ASSEMBLY
DI DROP INLET
DIA DIAMETER
DIP DUCTILE IRON PIPE
DWY DRIVEWAY
(E) EAST
EG EXISTING GRADE
ELEC ELECTRICAL
EP EDGE OF PATH
EVAE EMERGENCY VEHICLE ACCESS EASEMENT
EX EXISTING
FC FACE OF CURB
FDC FIRE DEPARTMENT CONNECTION
FF FINISHED FLOOR ELEVATION
FG FINISHED GRADE
FH FIRE HYDRANT
FL FLOW LINE
FM FORCED MAIN
FS FIRE SERVICE
FT FEET

ABBREVIATIONS

8SHEET           OF     C.1

CO
NT

RA
CT

OR
 A

GR
EE

S T
HA

T H
E S

HA
LL

 A
SS

UM
E S

OL
E A

ND
 CO

M
PL

ET
E R

ES
PO

NS
IB

ILI
TY

 FO
R J

OB
 SI

TE
 CO

ND
ITI

ON
S D

UR
IN

G 
TH

E C
OU

RS
E O

F C
ON

ST
RU

CT
IO

N 
OF

 TH
IS 

PR
OJ

EC
T, 

IN
CL

UD
IN

G 
SA

FE
TY

 O
F A

LL
 PE

RS
ON

S A
ND

 PR
OP

ER
TY

; T
HA

T T
HI

S R
EQ

UI
RE

M
EN

T S
HA

LL
 A

PP
LY

 CO
NT

IN
UO

US
LY

 A
ND

 N
OT

 BE
 LI

M
ITE

D 
TO

 N
OR

M
AL

 W
OR

KIN
G 

HO
UR

S;
AN

D 
TH

AT
 TH

E C
ON

TR
AC

TO
R S

HA
LL

 D
EF

EN
D,

 IN
DE

M
NI

FY
 A

ND
 H

OL
D 

TH
E O

W
NE

R A
ND

 TH
E E

NG
IN

EE
R H

AR
M

LE
SS

 FR
OM

 A
NY

 A
ND

 A
LL

 LI
AB

ILI
TY

, R
EA

L O
R A

LL
EG

ED
, IN

 CO
NN

EC
TIO

N 
 W

ITH
 TH

E P
ER

FO
RM

AN
CE

 O
F W

OR
K O

N 
TH

IS 
PR

OJ
EC

T, 
EX

CE
PT

IN
G 

FO
R L

IA
BI

LIT
Y A

RI
SIN

G 
FR

OM
 TH

E S
OL

E N
EG

LIG
EN

CE
 O

F T
HE

 O
W

NE
R O

R T
HE

 EN
GI

NE
ER

.

G GAS
GA GAUGE
GB GRADE BREAK
GM GAS METER
GS GAS SERVICE
HDPE HIGH-DENSITY POLYETHYLENE
HP HIGH POINT
IEE INGRESS/EGRESS EASEMENT
IN INCH
INV INVERT ELEVATION
LAT LATERAL
LG LIP OF GUTTER
LP LOW POINT
MAX MAXIMUM
MH MANHOLE
MIN MINIMUM
MPH MILES PER HOUR
(N) NORTH
N.T.S. NOT TO SCALE
O.C. ON CENTER
O.D. OUTSIDE DIAMETER
PAD PAD ELEVATION
PCC PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE
PERF PERFORATED
PG&E PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY
PIEE PRIVATE INGRESS/EGRESS EASEMENT
PL PROPERTY LINE
PR PROPOSED
PSDE PRIVATE STORM DRAIN EASEMENT
PSE PUBLIC SERVICE EASEMENT
PSSE PRIVATE SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT
PUE PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT
PVC POLYVINYL CHLORIDE
R RADIUS

RCP REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE
RIM RIM ELEVATION
R/W RIGHT-OF-WAY
(S) SOUTH
S SLOPE
SCC SANTA CLARA COUNTY
SCCFD SANTA CLARA COUNTY FIRE DEPARTMENT
SD STORM DRAIN
SDCO STORM DRAIN CLEANOUT
SDE STORM DRAIN EASEMENT
SDMH STORM DRAIN MANHOLE
SDR STANDARD DIMENSION RATIO
SF SQUARE FEET
SJWC SAN JOSE WATER COMPANY
SS SANITARY SEWER
SSCO SANITARY SEWER CLEANOUT
SSE SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT
SSMH SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE
STD STANDARD
S/W SIDEWALK
TC TOP OF CURB
TELE TELEPHONE
TLG TOWN OF LOS GATOS
TW TOP OF WALL
TYP TYPICAL
VCP VITRIFIED CLAY PIPE
(W) WEST
W WATER
WM WATER METER
WS WATER SERVICE
WV WATER VALVE
WVSD WEST VALLEY SANITATION DISTRICT
XING CROSSING

C
I
V

I
L
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
S

L
A

N
D

 
S

U
R

V
E

Y
O

R
S

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
I
O

N
 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

S

H
A

N
N

A
-
B

 U
N

T
T

I

E
S

T
.
 
1
9
1
0

7
6
5
1
 
E

I
G

L
E

B
E

R
R

Y
 
S

T
R

E
E

T
 
 
 
 
G

I
L
R

O
Y

 
 
 
 
 
9
5
0
2
0
 
 
 
 
C

A
L
I
F

O
R

N
I
A

O
F

F
I
C

E
 
(
4

0
8
)
 
8
4
2

-
2
1

7
3
 
 
 
 
 
F

A
X

 
(
4
0

8
)
 
8

4
2
-
3
6

6
2

E
M

A
I
L
:
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
I
N

G
 
@

 
H

A
N

N
A

B
R

U
N

E
T

T
I
.
C

O
M

AP
N

 5
27

-0
2-

00
7

DRYSDALEDRIVE

SHADY LANE

SH
OR

T 
RO

AD

BLOSSOM HILL ROAD
OLD BLOSSOM HILL ROAD

SHANNON ROAD

LINDA

AVENUE

LU RAY

DRIVE

M
AR

Y 
W

AY

SHANNO
N

ROAD

HB JOB NO. 18083

TOWN OF LOS GATOS STANDARD GRADING NOTES

1. ALL WORK SHALL CONFORM TO CHAPTER 12 OF THE CODE OF THE TOWN OF LOS GATOS,
THE ADOPTED CALIFORNIA BUILDING CODE AND THE LATEST EDITION OF THE STANDARD
SPECIFICATIONS FOR PUBLIC WORKS CONSTRUCTION EXCEPT AS SPECIFIED OTHERWISE
ON THESE PLANS AND DETAILS.

2. NO WORK MAY BE STARTED ON-SITE WITHOUT AN APPROVED GRADING PLAN AND A
GRADING PERMIT ISSUED BY THE TOWN OF LOS GATOS, PARKS AND PUBLIC WORKS
DEPARTMENT LOCATED AT 41 MILES AVENUE, LOS GATOS, CA 95030.

3. A PRE-JOB MEETING SHALL BE HELD WITH THE TOWN ENGINEERING INSPECTOR FROM
THE PARKS AND PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT PRIOR TO ANY WORK BEING DONE.  THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL CALL THE INSPECTIONS LINE AT (4080 399-5771 AT LEAST
FORTY-EIGHT (48) HOURS PRIOR TO ANY GRADING OR ONSITE WORK.  THIS MEETING
SHOULD INCLUDE:
a. A DISCUSSION OF THE PROJECT CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL, WORKING HOURS, SITE

MAINTENANCE AND OTHER CONSTRUCTION MATTERS;
b. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT IN WRITING THAT CONTRACTOR AND APPLICANT HAVE READ

AND UNDERSTAND THE PROJECT CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL, AND WILL MAKE
CERTAIN THAT ALL PROJECT SUB-CONTRACTORS HAVE READ AND UNDERSTAND
THEM PRIOR TO COMMENCING WORK AND THAT A COPY OF THE PROJECT
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL WILL BE POSTED ON SITE AT ALL TIMES DURING
CONSTRUCTION.

4. APPROVAL OF PLANS DOES NOT RELEASE THE DEVELOPER OF THE RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CORRECTION OF MISTAKES, ERRORS, OR OMISSIONS CONTAINED THEREIN.  IF,
DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION OF THE IMPROVEMENTS, PUBLIC INTEREST
AND SAFETY REQUIRES A MODIFICATION OR DEPARTURE FROM THE TOWN
SPECIFICATIONS OR THESE IMPROVEMENT PLANS, THE TOWN ENGINEER SHALL HAVE
FULL AUTHORITY TO REQUIRE SUCH MODIFICATION OR DEPARTURE AND TO SPECIFY THE
MANNER IN WHICH THE SAME IS TO BE MADE.

5. APPROVAL OF THIS PLAN APPLIES ONLY TO THE GRADING, EXCAVATION, PLACEMENT,
AND COMPACTION OF NATURAL EARTH MATERIALS.  THIS APPROVAL DOES NOT CONFER
ANY RIGHTS OF ENTRY TO EITHER PUBLIC PROPERTY OR THE PRIVATE PROPERTY OF
OTHERS AND DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL OF ANY OTHER IMPROVEMENTS.

6. EXCAVATED MATERIAL SHALL BE PLACED IN THE FILL AREAS DESIGNATED OR SHALL BE
HAULED AWAY FROM THE SITE TO BE DISPOSED OF AT APPROVED LOCATION(S).

7. IT SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE PERMITTEE OR CONTRACTOR TO IDENTIFY,
LOCATE AND PROTECT ALL UNDERGROUND FACILITIES.  PERMITTEE OR CONTRACTOR
SHALL NOTIFY USA (UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT) AT 1-800-227-2600 A MINIMUM OF
FORTY-EIGHT (48) HOURS BUT NOT MORE THAN FOURTEEN (14) DAYS PRIOR TO
COMMENCING ALL WORK.

8. ALL GRADING SHALL BE PERFORMED IN SUCH A MANNER AS TO COMPLY WITH THE
STANDARDS ESTABLISHED BY THE AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT FOR AIRBORNE
PARTICULATES.

9. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL LOCAL, STATE AND FEDERAL LAWS, CODES,
RULES AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING THE WORK IDENTIFIED ON THESE PLANS.  THESE
SHALL INCLUDE, WITHOUT LIMITATION, SAFETY AND HEALTH RULES AND REGULATIONS
ESTABLISHED BY OR PURSUANT TO THE OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH ACT OR
ANY OTHER APPLICABLE PUBLIC AUTHORITY.

10. THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE QUALIFIED SUPERVISION ON THE JOB SITE
AT ALL TIMES DURING CONSTRUCTION.

11. HORIZONTAL AND VERTICAL CONTROLS SHALL BE SET AND CERTIFIED BY A LICENSED
SURVEYOR OR REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER QUALIFIED TO PRACTICE LAND SURVEYING,
FOR THE FOLLOWING ITEMS:
a. RETAINING WALL: TOP OF WALL ELEVATIONS AND LOCATIONS (ALL WALLS TO BE

PERMITTED SEPARATELY AND APPLIED FOR AT THE TOWN OF LOS GATOS BUILDING
DIVISION).

b. TOE AND TOP OF CUT AND FILL SLOPES.

12. PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF ANY PERMIT, THE APPLICANT'S SOILS ENGINEER SHALL REVIEW
THE FINAL GRADING AND DRAINAGE PLANS TO ENSURE THAT DESIGNS FOR
FOUNDATIONS, RETAINING WALLS, SITE GRADING, AND SITE DRAINAGE ARE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THEIR RECOMMENDATIONS AND THE PEER REVIEW COMMENTS.
THE APPLICANT'S SOILS ENGINEER'S APPROVAL SHALL THEN BE CONVEYED TO THE
TOWN EITHER BY LETTER OR BY SIGNING THE PLANS.
SOILS ENGINEER ___________________________________________________
REFERENCE REPORT NO. __________________, DATED ____________, 20 ______
LETTER NO. __________, DATED ____________, 20 ___, SHALL BE THOROUGHLY
COMPLIED WITH. BOTH THE MENTIONED REPORT AND ALL UPDATES/ADDENDUMS/
LETTERS ARE HEREBY APPENDED AND MADE A PART OF THIS GRADING PLAN.

13. DURING CONSTRUCTION, ALL EXCAVATIONS AND GRADING SHALL BE INSPECTED BY THE
APPLICANT'S SOILS ENGINEER.  THE ENGINEER SHALL BE NOTIFIED AT LEAST
FORTY-EIGHT (48) HOURS BEFORE BEGINNING ANY GRADING.  THE ENGINEER SHALL BE
ON-SITE TO VERIFY THAT THE ACTUAL CONDITIONS ARE AS ANTICIPATED IN THE
DESIGN-LEVEL GEOTECHNICAL REPORT AND/OR PROVIDE APPROPRIATE CHANGES TO
THE REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS, AS NECESSARY.  ALL UNOBSERVED AND/OR
UNAPPROVED GRADING SHALL BE REMOVED AND REPLACED UNDER SOILS ENGINEER
OBSERVANCE (THE TOWN INSPECTOR SHALL BE MADE AWARE OF ANY REQUIRED
CHANGES PRIOR TO WORK BEING PERFORMED).

14. THE RESULTS OF THE CONSTRUCTION OBSERVATION AND TESTING SHOULD BE
DOCUMENTED IN AN “AS-BUILT” LETTER/REPORT PREPARED BY THE APPLICANTS' SOILS
ENGINEER AND SUBMITTED FOR THE TOWN'S REVIEW AND ACCEPTANCE BEFORE FINAL
RELEASE OF ANY OCCUPANCY PERMIT IS GRANTED.

15. ALL PRIVATE AND PUBLIC STREETS ACCESSING PROJECT SITE SHALL BE KEPT OPEN AND IN
A SAFE, DRIVABLE CONDITION THROUGHOUT CONSTRUCTION. IF TEMPORARY CLOSURE
IS NEEDED, THEN FORMAL WRITTEN NOTICE TO THE ADJACENT NEIGHBORS AND THE
TOWN OF LOS GATOS PARKS AND PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT SHALL BE PROVIDED AT
LEAST ONE (1) WEEK IN ADVANCE OF CLOSURE AND NO CLOSURE SHALL BE GRANTED
WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN APPROVAL OF THE TOWN.  NO MATERIAL OR
EQUIPMENT SHALL BE STORED IN THE PUBLIC OR PRIVATE RIGHT-OF-WAY.

16. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL AND MAINTAIN FENCES, BARRIERS, LIGHTS AND SIGNS
THAT ARE NECESSARY TO GIVE ADEQUATE WARNING AND/PROTECTION TO THE PUBLIC
AT ALL TIMES.

17. OWNER/APPLICANT: Allison & John Diep PHONE: 408 314-8493

18. GENERAL CONTRACTOR: ________________________ PHONE: ______________

19. GRADING CONTRACTOR: ________________________ PHONE: ______________

20. CUT:  ±3,796 CY      EXPORT: ±3,612 CY
FILL:   ±184 CY

21. WATER SHALL BE AVAILABLE ON THE SITE AT ALL TIMES DURING GRADING OPERATIONS
TO PROPERLY MAINTAIN DUST CONTROL.

22. THIS PLAN DOES NOT APPROVE THE REMOVAL OF TREES.  APPROPRIATE TREE REMOVAL
PERMITS AND METHODS OF TREE PRESERVATION SHALL BE REQUIRED.  TREE REMOVAL
PERMITS ARE REQUIRED PRIOR TO THE APPROVAL OF ALL PLANS.

23. A TOWN ENCROACHMENT PERMIT IS REQUIRED FOR ANY WORK WITHIN THE PUBLIC
RIGHT-OF-WAY. A STATE ENCROACHMENT PERMIT IS REQUIRED FOR ANY WORK WITHIN
STATE RIGHT-OF-WAY (IF APPLICABLE). THE PERMITTEE AND/OR CONTRACTOR SHALL BE
RESPONSIBLE COORDINATING INSPECTION PERFORMED BY OTHER GOVERNMENTAL
AGENCIES.

24. NO CROSS-LOT DRAINAGE WILL BE PERMITTED WITHOUT SATISFACTORY STORMWATER
ACCEPTANCE DEED/FACILITIES.  ALL DRAINAGE SHALL BE DIRECTED TO THE STREET OR
OTHER ACCEPTABLE DRAINAGE FACILITY VIA A NON-EROSIVE METHOD AS APPROVED BY
THE TOWN ENGINEER.

25. IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF CONTRACTOR AND/OR OWNER TO MAKE SURE THAT ALL
DIRT TRACKED INTO THE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY IS CLEANED UP ON A DAILY BASIS.  MUD,
SILT, CONCRETE AND OTHER CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS SHALL NOT BE WASHED INTO THE
TOWN'S STORM DRAINS.

26. GOOD HOUSEKEEPING PRACTICES SHALL BE OBSERVED AT ALL TIMES DURING THE
COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION.  SUPERINTENDENCE OF CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE
DILIGENTLY PERFORMED BY A PERSON OR PERSONS AUTHORIZED TO DO SO AT ALL
TIMES DURING WORKING HOURS.  THE STORING OF GOODS AND/OR MATERIALS ON THE
SIDEWALK AND/OR THE STREET WILL NOT BE ALLOWED UNLESS A SPECIAL PERMIT IS
ISSUED BY THE ENGINEERING DIVISION.  THE ADJACENT PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL BE
KEPT CLEAR OF ALL JOB RELATED DIRT AND DEBRIS AT THE END OF THE DAY.  FAILURE TO
MAINTAIN THE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY ACCORDING TO THIS CONDITION MAY RESULT IN
PENALTIES AND/OR THE TOWN PERFORMING THE REQUIRED MAINTENANCE AT THE
DEVELOPER'S EXPENSE.

27. GRADING SHALL BE UNDERTAKEN IN ACCORDANCE WITH CONDITIONS AND
REQUIREMENTS OF THE PROJECT STORM WATER POLLUTION CONTROL PLAN AND/OR
STORM WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN (SWPPP), THE TOWN OF LOS GATOS
STORM WATER QUALITY MANAGEMENT PROGRAM, NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE
ELIMINATION SYSTEM (NPDES) AND ANY OTHER PERMITS/REQUIREMENTS ISSUED BY
THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA REGIONAL WATER QUALITY CONTROL BOARD.  PLANS
(INCLUDING ALL UPDATES) SHALL BE ON-SITE AT ALL TIMES.  NO DIRECT STORMWATER
DISCHARGES FROM THE DEVELOPMENT WILL BE ALLOWED ONTO TOWN STREETS OR
INTO THE PUBLIC STORM DRAIN SYSTEM WITHOUT TREATMENT BY AN APPROVED
STORM WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION DEVICE OR OTHER APPROVED METHODS.
MAINTENANCE OF PRIVATE STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION DEVICES SHALL BE
THE SOLE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER.  DISCHARGES OR CONNECTION WITHOUT
TREATMENT BY AN APPROVED AND ADEQUATELY OPERATING STORMWATER POLLUTION
PREVENTION DEVICE OR OTHER APPROVED METHOD SHALL BE CONSIDERED A
VIOLATION OF THE ABOVE REFERENCED PERMIT AND THE TOWN OF LOS GATOS
STORMWATER ORDINANCE.

TOWN OF LOS GATOS NPDES NOTES

1. SEDIMENT FROM AREAS DISTURBED BY CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE RETAINED ON SITE
USING STRUCTURAL CONTROLS AS REQUIRED BY THE STATEWIDE GENERAL
CONSTRUCTION STORMWATER PERMIT.

2. STOCKPILES OF SOIL SHALL BE PROPERLY CONTAINED TO MINIMIZE SEDIMENT
TRANSPORT FROM THE SITE TO STREETS, DRAINAGE FACILITIES OR ADJACENT
PROPERTIES VIA RUNOFF, VEHICLE TRACKING, OR WIND AS REQUIRED BY THE
STATEWIDE GENERAL CONSTRUCTION STORMWATER PERMIT.

3. APPROPRIATE BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES (BMPS) FOR CONSTRUCTION-RELATED
MATERIALS, WASTES, SPILL OR RESIDES SHALL BE IMPLEMENTED TO MINIMIZE
TRANSPORT FROM THE SITE TO STREETS, DRAINAGE FACILITIES, OR ADJOINING
PROPERTY BY WIND OR RUNOFF AS REQUIRED BY THE STATEWIDE GENERAL
CONSTRUCTION STORMWATER PERMIT.

4. RUNOFF FROM EQUIPMENT AND VEHICLE WASHING SHALL BE CONTAINED AT
CONSTRUCTION SITES AND MUST NOT BE DISCHARGED TO RECEIVING WATERS OR TO
THE LOCAL STORM DRAIN SYSTEM.

5. ALL CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AND SUBCONTRACTOR PERSONNEL ARE TO BE MADE
AWARE OF THE REQUIRED BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES (BMPS) AND GOOD
HOUSEKEEPING MEASURES FOR THE PROJECT SITE AND ANY ASSOCIATED
CONSTRUCTION STAGING AREAS.

6. AT THE END OF EACH DAY OF CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY, ALL CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS
AND WASTE MATERIALS SHALL BE COLLECTED AND PROPERLY DISPOSED IN TRASH OR
RECYCLE BINS.

7. CONSTRUCTION SITES SHALL BE MAINTAINED IN SUCH A CONDITION THAT A STORM
DOES NOT CARRY WASTE OR POLLUTANTS OFF OF THE SITE. DISCHARGES OF MATERIAL
OTHER THAN STORMWATER (NON-STORMWATER DISCHARGES) ARE PROHIBITED EXCEPT
AS AUTHORIZED BY AN INDIVIDUAL NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION
SYSTEM (NPDES) PERMIT OR THE STATEWIDE GENERAL CONSTRUCTION STORMWATER
PERMIT.  POTENTIAL POLLUTANTS INCLUDE BUT ARE NOT LIMITED TO: SOLID OR LIQUID
CHEMICAL SPILLS; WASTES FROM PAINTS, STAINS, SEALANTS, SOLVENTS, DETERGENTS,
GLUES, LIME, PESTICIDES, HERBICIDES, FERTILIZERS, WOOD PRESERVATIVES AND
ASBESTOS FIBERS, PAINT FLAKES OR STUCCO FRAGMENTS; FUELS, OILS, LUBRICANTS,
AND HYDRAULIC, RADIATOR OR BATTERY FLUIDS; CONCRETE AND RELATED CUTTING OR
CURING RESIDUES; FLOATABLE WASTES; WASTES FROM ENGINE/EQUIPMENT STEAM
CLEANING OR CHEMICAL DEGREASING; WASTES FROM STREET CLEANING; AND
SUPERCHLORINATED POTABLE WATER FROM LINE FLUSHING AND TESTING.  DURING
CONSTRUCTION, DISPOSAL OF SUCH MATERIALS SHOULD OCCUR IN A SPECIFIED AND
CONTROLLED TEMPORARY AREA ON-SITE PHYSICALLY SEPARATED FROM POTENTIAL
STORMWATER RUNOFF, WITH ULTIMATE DISPOSAL IN ACCORDANCE WITH LOCAL, STATE
AND FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS.

8. DISCHARGING CONTAMINATED GROUNDWATER PRODUCED BY DEWATERING
GROUNDWATER THAT HAS INFILTRATED INTO THE CONSTRUCTION SITE IS PROHIBITED.
DISCHARGING OF CONTAMINATED SOILS VIA SURFACE EROSION IS ALSO PROHIBITED.
DISCHARGING NON-CONTAMINATED GROUNDWATER PRODUCED BY DEWATERING
ACTIVITIES REQUIRES A NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM
(NPDES) PERMIT FROM THE RESPECTIVE STATE REGIONAL WATER QUALITY CONTROL
BOARD.

HOUSE FOOTPRINT

CUT (CY) MAX CUT
HEIGHT (SF) FILL (CY) MAX FILL

DEPTH (SF) EXPORT (CY)

ATTACHED GARAGE
REGRADE OLD BUILDING SITE
DRIVEWAY (WITHIN ROW)
DRIVEWAY (ONSITE)
LANDSCAPE / OUTDOOR

CELLAR

AREA DESCRIPTION

TABLE OF PROPOSED EARTHWORK QUANTITIES

TOTAL

GENERAL NOTES

1. PROPERTY ADDRESS: 15925 QUAIL HILL ROAD

2. PROPERTY OWNER: ALLISON & JOHN DIEP

3. ASSESSORS PARCEL NUMBER: 527-02-007

4. EXISTING USE: HILLSIDE RESIDENTIAL

5. EXISTING ZONING: HR-1

6. PROPOSED USE: HILLSIDE RESIDENTIAL

7. PROPOSED ZONING: HR-1

8. SITE AREA: 40,886 SQ. FT. / 0.94 ACRES

9. APPLICANT/DEVELOPER: JOHN & ALLISON DIEP

10. CONSULTANTS:

11. WATER SUPPLY: SAN JOSE WATER COMPANY

12. SANITARY SEWER DISPOSAL: WEST VALLEY SANITATION DISTRICT

13. GAS AND ELECTRIC: PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC

14. TELEPHONE: FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS

15. CABLE: XFINITY

16. STORM DRAIN: TOWN OF LOS GATOS

17. FIRE PROTECTION: SANTA CLARA COUNTY FIRE DEPARTMENT

18. DATUM:

19. BASIS OF BEARINGS:  THE BEARINGS AND DISTANCES ON THESE PLANS ARE BASED ON
THE FOUND MONUMENTS IN THE RECORDED " RECORD OF SURVEY" IN BOOK 70 OF
MAPS AT PAGE 29; SANTA CLARA COUNTY RECORDS, ON JUNE 13th, 1956.

20. BENCHMARK INFORMATION:
BENCHMARK ID: LG29
ORGANIZATION: TOWN OF LOS GATOS
ELEVATION: 370.93 FEET
DESCRIPTION:  SET BRASS DISK IN MONUMENT WELL STAMPED "LG#29"; INTERSECTION
OF SHANNON ROAD AND SHORT ROAD.

±631

±1,167

±107
±516
±460

N/A

±3,766

15.2

22.3

4
8
8

0

0

0
±13
±30

N/A

N/A

N/A
2.1
6

±631

±1,167

±107
±503
±430
±3,677±89

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

PRELIMINARY PLANS

±885 8.8 ±46 3 ±839

Page 97



REV.: SEPT. 2016

8SHEET           OF     C.2

PA
RK

S 
AN

D 
PU

BL
IC

 W
O

RK
S 

DE
PA

RT
M

EN
T

TO
W

N
 O

F 
LO

S 
GA

TO
S

RE
VI

SI
O

N
S

BY
DA

TE

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
O

.:

SC
AL

E:

EN
GR

:

CH
EC

K:

DR
AW

N
:

DE
SI

GN
:

DA
TE

:
JU

N
E 

15
, 2

02
0

AM XX AMTMN
O

N
E

CO
NT

RA
CT

OR
 A

GR
EE

S T
HA

T H
E S

HA
LL

 A
SS

UM
E S

OL
E A

ND
 CO

M
PL

ET
E R

ES
PO

NS
IB

ILI
TY

 FO
R J

OB
 SI

TE
 CO

ND
ITI

ON
S D

UR
IN

G 
TH

E C
OU

RS
E O

F C
ON

ST
RU

CT
IO

N 
OF

 TH
IS 

PR
OJ

EC
T, 

IN
CL

UD
IN

G 
SA

FE
TY

 O
F A

LL
 PE

RS
ON

S A
ND

 PR
OP

ER
TY

; T
HA

T T
HI

S R
EQ

UI
RE

M
EN

T S
HA

LL
 A

PP
LY

 CO
NT

IN
UO

US
LY

 A
ND

 N
OT

 BE
 LI

M
ITE

D 
TO

 N
OR

M
AL

 W
OR

KIN
G 

HO
UR

S;
AN

D 
TH

AT
 TH

E C
ON

TR
AC

TO
R S

HA
LL

 D
EF

EN
D,

 IN
DE

M
NI

FY
 A

ND
 H

OL
D 

TH
E O

W
NE

R A
ND

 TH
E E

NG
IN

EE
R H

AR
M

LE
SS

 FR
OM

 A
NY

 A
ND

 A
LL

 LI
AB

ILI
TY

, R
EA

L O
R A

LL
EG

ED
, IN

 CO
NN

EC
TIO

N 
 W

ITH
 TH

E P
ER

FO
RM

AN
CE

 O
F W

OR
K O

N 
TH

IS 
PR

OJ
EC

T, 
EX

CE
PT

IN
G 

FO
R L

IA
BI

LIT
Y A

RI
SIN

G 
FR

OM
 TH

E S
OL

E N
EG

LIG
EN

CE
 O

F T
HE

 O
W

NE
R O

R T
HE

 EN
GI

NE
ER

.

18
08

3

GR
AD

IN
G 

&
 D

RA
IN

AG
E 

PL
AN

S

LA
N

DS
 O

F 
DI

EP
 - 

15
92

5 
Q

U
AI

L 
HI

LL
 D

RI
VE

BL
U

EP
RI

N
T 

FO
R 

A 
CL

EA
N

 B
AY

AR
CH

IT
EC

TU
RA

L 
AN

D 
SI

TE
 A

PP
LI

CA
TI

O
N

 N
O

. S
-1

9-
01

2

C
I
V

I
L
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
S

L
A

N
D

 
S

U
R

V
E

Y
O

R
S

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
I
O

N
 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

S

H
A

N
N

A
-
B

 U
N

T
T

I

E
S

T
.
 
1
9
1
0

7
6
5
1
 
E

I
G

L
E

B
E

R
R

Y
 
S

T
R

E
E

T
 
 
 
 
G

I
L
R

O
Y

 
 
 
 
 
9
5
0
2
0
 
 
 
 
C

A
L
I
F

O
R

N
I
A

O
F

F
I
C

E
 
(
4
0
8
)
 
8
4
2
-
2
1
7
3
 
 
 
 
 
F

A
X

 
(
4
0
8
)
 
8
4
2
-
3
6
6
2

E
M

A
I
L
:
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
I
N

G
 
@

 
H

A
N

N
A

B
R

U
N

E
T

T
I
.
C

O
M

HB JOB NO. 18083Page 98



C
I
V

I
L
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
S

L
A

N
D

 
S

U
R

V
E

Y
O

R
S

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
I
O

N
 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

S

H
A

N
N

A
-
B

 U
N

T
T

I

E
S

T
.
 
1

9
1

0

C.3SHEET           OF     8

18
08

3

AS
 S

HO
W

N

TM AMXXAM

JU
N

E 
15

, 2
02

0
DA

TE
:

DE
SI

GN
:

DR
AW

N
:

CH
EC

K:

EN
GR

:

SC
AL

E:

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
O

.:

DA
TE

BY
RE

VI
SI

O
N

S

AR
CH

IT
EC

TU
RA

L 
AN

D 
SI

TE
 A

PP
LI

CA
TI

O
N

 N
O

. S
-1

9-
01

2

EX
IS

TI
N

G 
TO

PO
GR

AP
HY

TO
W

N
 O

F 
LO

S 
GA

TO
S

PA
RK

S 
AN

D 
PU

BL
IC

 W
O

RK
S 

DE
PA

RT
M

EN
T

LA
N

DS
 O

F 
DI

EP
 - 

15
92

5 
Q

U
AI

L 
HI

LL
 D

RI
VE

PL
AN

 F
O

R 
TH

E 
IM

PR
O

VE
M

EN
T 

O
F

CO
NT

RA
CT

OR
 A

GR
EE

S T
HA

T H
E S

HA
LL

 A
SS

UM
E S

OL
E A

ND
 CO

M
PL

ET
E R

ES
PO

NS
IB

ILI
TY

 FO
R J

OB
 SI

TE
 CO

ND
ITI

ON
S D

UR
IN

G 
TH

E C
OU

RS
E O

F C
ON

ST
RU

CT
IO

N 
OF

 TH
IS 

PR
OJ

EC
T, 

IN
CL

UD
IN

G 
SA

FE
TY

 O
F A

LL
 PE

RS
ON

S A
ND

 PR
OP

ER
TY

; T
HA

T T
HI

S R
EQ

UI
RE

M
EN

T S
HA

LL
 A

PP
LY

 CO
NT

IN
UO

US
LY

 A
ND

 N
OT

 BE
 LI

M
ITE

D 
TO

 N
OR

M
AL

 W
OR

KIN
G 

HO
UR

S;
AN

D 
TH

AT
 TH

E C
ON

TR
AC

TO
R S

HA
LL

 D
EF

EN
D,

 IN
DE

M
NI

FY
 A

ND
 H

OL
D 

TH
E O

W
NE

R A
ND

 TH
E E

NG
IN

EE
R H

AR
M

LE
SS

 FR
OM

 A
NY

 A
ND

 A
LL

 LI
AB

ILI
TY

, R
EA

L O
R A

LL
EG

ED
, IN

 CO
NN

EC
TIO

N 
 W

ITH
 TH

E P
ER

FO
RM

AN
CE

 O
F W

OR
K O

N 
TH

IS 
PR

OJ
EC

T, 
EX

CE
PT

IN
G 

FO
R L

IA
BI

LIT
Y A

RI
SIN

G 
FR

OM
 TH

E S
OL

E N
EG

LIG
EN

CE
 O

F T
HE

 O
W

NE
R O

R T
HE

 EN
GI

NE
ER

.

REV.: DEC. 2015

S 
H 

A 
D 

Y 
   

L 
A 

N
 E

D R Y S D A L E    D R I V E

AN
D 

DE
M

O
LI

TI
O

N
 P

LA
N

HB JOB NO. 18083

’ “

” 

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

PRELIMINARY PLANS

Page 99



C.4SHEET           OF     8

18
08

3

AS
 S

HO
W

N

TM AMXXAM

JU
N

E 
15

, 2
02

0
DA

TE
:

DE
SI

GN
:

DR
AW

N
:

CH
EC

K:

EN
GR

:

SC
AL

E:

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
O

.:

DA
TE

BY
RE

VI
SI

O
N

S

AR
CH

IT
EC

TU
RA

L 
AN

D 
SI

TE
 A

PP
LI

CA
TI

O
N

 N
O

. S
-1

9-
01

2
GR

AD
IN

G 
&

 D
RA

IN
AG

E 
PL

AN

TO
W

N
 O

F 
LO

S 
GA

TO
S

PA
RK

S 
AN

D 
PU

BL
IC

 W
O

RK
S 

DE
PA

RT
M

EN
T

LA
N

DS
 O

F 
DI

EP
 - 

15
92

5 
Q

U
AI

L 
HI

LL
 D

RI
VE

PL
AN

 F
O

R 
TH

E 
IM

PR
O

VE
M

EN
T 

O
F

CO
NT

RA
CT

OR
 A

GR
EE

S T
HA

T H
E S

HA
LL

 A
SS

UM
E S

OL
E A

ND
 CO

M
PL

ET
E R

ES
PO

NS
IB

ILI
TY

 FO
R J

OB
 SI

TE
 CO

ND
ITI

ON
S D

UR
IN

G 
TH

E C
OU

RS
E O

F C
ON

ST
RU

CT
IO

N 
OF

 TH
IS 

PR
OJ

EC
T, 

IN
CL

UD
IN

G 
SA

FE
TY

 O
F A

LL
 PE

RS
ON

S A
ND

 PR
OP

ER
TY

; T
HA

T T
HI

S R
EQ

UI
RE

M
EN

T S
HA

LL
 A

PP
LY

 CO
NT

IN
UO

US
LY

 A
ND

 N
OT

 BE
 LI

M
ITE

D 
TO

 N
OR

M
AL

 W
OR

KIN
G 

HO
UR

S;
AN

D 
TH

AT
 TH

E C
ON

TR
AC

TO
R S

HA
LL

 D
EF

EN
D,

 IN
DE

M
NI

FY
 A

ND
 H

OL
D 

TH
E O

W
NE

R A
ND

 TH
E E

NG
IN

EE
R H

AR
M

LE
SS

 FR
OM

 A
NY

 A
ND

 A
LL

 LI
AB

ILI
TY

, R
EA

L O
R A

LL
EG

ED
, IN

 CO
NN

EC
TIO

N 
 W

ITH
 TH

E P
ER

FO
RM

AN
CE

 O
F W

OR
K O

N 
TH

IS 
PR

OJ
EC

T, 
EX

CE
PT

IN
G 

FO
R L

IA
BI

LIT
Y A

RI
SIN

G 
FR

OM
 TH

E S
OL

E N
EG

LIG
EN

CE
 O

F T
HE

 O
W

NE
R O

R T
HE

 EN
GI

NE
ER

.

REV.: DEC. 2015

C
I
V

I
L
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
S

L
A

N
D

 
S

U
R

V
E

Y
O

R
S

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
I
O

N
 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

S

H
A

N
N

A
-
B

 U
N

T
T

I

E
S

T
.
 
1
9
1
0

7
6
5
1
 
E

I
G

L
E

B
E

R
R

Y
 
S

T
R

E
E

T
 
 
 
 
G

I
L
R

O
Y

 
 
 
 
 
9
5
0
2
0
 
 
 
 
C

A
L
I
F

O
R

N
I
A

O
F

F
I
C

E
 
(
4
0
8
)
 
8
4
2
-
2
1
7
3
 
 
 
 
 
F

A
X

 
(
4
0
8
)
 
8
4
2
-
3
6
6
2

E
M

A
I
L
:
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
I
N

G
 
@

 
H

A
N

N
A

B
R

U
N

E
T

T
I
.
C

O
M

HB JOB NO. 18083

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

PRELIMINARY PLANS

Page 100



C.5SHEET           OF     8

18
08

3

AS
 S

HO
W

N

TM AMXXAM

JU
N

E 
15

, 2
02

0
DA

TE
:

DE
SI

GN
:

DR
AW

N
:

CH
EC

K:

EN
GR

:

SC
AL

E:

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
O

.:

DA
TE

BY
RE

VI
SI

O
N

S

AR
CH

IT
EC

TU
RA

L 
AN

D 
SI

TE
 A

PP
LI

CA
TI

O
N

 N
O

. S
-1

9-
01

2
GR

AD
IN

G 
&

 D
RA

IN
AG

E 
PL

AN

TO
W

N
 O

F 
LO

S 
GA

TO
S

PA
RK

S 
AN

D 
PU

BL
IC

 W
O

RK
S 

DE
PA

RT
M

EN
T

LA
N

DS
 O

F 
DI

EP
 - 

15
92

5 
Q

U
AI

L 
HI

LL
 D

RI
VE

PL
AN

 F
O

R 
TH

E 
IM

PR
O

VE
M

EN
T 

O
F

CO
NT

RA
CT

OR
 A

GR
EE

S T
HA

T H
E S

HA
LL

 A
SS

UM
E S

OL
E A

ND
 CO

M
PL

ET
E R

ES
PO

NS
IB

ILI
TY

 FO
R J

OB
 SI

TE
 CO

ND
ITI

ON
S D

UR
IN

G 
TH

E C
OU

RS
E O

F C
ON

ST
RU

CT
IO

N 
OF

 TH
IS 

PR
OJ

EC
T, 

IN
CL

UD
IN

G 
SA

FE
TY

 O
F A

LL
 PE

RS
ON

S A
ND

 PR
OP

ER
TY

; T
HA

T T
HI

S R
EQ

UI
RE

M
EN

T S
HA

LL
 A

PP
LY

 CO
NT

IN
UO

US
LY

 A
ND

 N
OT

 BE
 LI

M
ITE

D 
TO

 N
OR

M
AL

 W
OR

KIN
G 

HO
UR

S;
AN

D 
TH

AT
 TH

E C
ON

TR
AC

TO
R S

HA
LL

 D
EF

EN
D,

 IN
DE

M
NI

FY
 A

ND
 H

OL
D 

TH
E O

W
NE

R A
ND

 TH
E E

NG
IN

EE
R H

AR
M

LE
SS

 FR
OM

 A
NY

 A
ND

 A
LL

 LI
AB

ILI
TY

, R
EA

L O
R A

LL
EG

ED
, IN

 CO
NN

EC
TIO

N 
 W

ITH
 TH

E P
ER

FO
RM

AN
CE

 O
F W

OR
K O

N 
TH

IS 
PR

OJ
EC

T, 
EX

CE
PT

IN
G 

FO
R L

IA
BI

LIT
Y A

RI
SIN

G 
FR

OM
 TH

E S
OL

E N
EG

LIG
EN

CE
 O

F T
HE

 O
W

NE
R O

R T
HE

 EN
GI

NE
ER

.

REV.: DEC. 2015

C
I
V

I
L
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
S

L
A

N
D

 
S

U
R

V
E

Y
O

R
S

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
I
O

N
 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

S

H
A

N
N

A
-
B

 U
N

T
T

I

E
S

T
.
 
1
9
1
0

7
6
5
1
 
E

I
G

L
E

B
E

R
R

Y
 
S

T
R

E
E

T
 
 
 
 
G

I
L
R

O
Y

 
 
 
 
 
9
5
0
2
0
 
 
 
 
C

A
L
I
F

O
R

N
I
A

O
F

F
I
C

E
 
(
4
0
8
)
 
8
4
2
-
2
1
7
3
 
 
 
 
 
F

A
X

 
(
4
0
8
)
 
8
4
2
-
3
6
6
2

E
M

A
I
L
:
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
I
N

G
 
@

 
H

A
N

N
A

B
R

U
N

E
T

T
I
.
C

O
M

HB JOB NO. 18083

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

PRELIMINARY PLANS

Page 101



C.6SHEET           OF     8

18
08

3

AS
 S

HO
W

N

TM AMXXAM

JU
N

E 
15

, 2
02

0
DA

TE
:

DE
SI

GN
:

DR
AW

N
:

CH
EC

K:

EN
GR

:

SC
AL

E:

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
O

.:

DA
TE

BY
RE

VI
SI

O
N

S

AR
CH

IT
EC

TU
RA

L 
AN

D 
SI

TE
 A

PP
LI

CA
TI

O
N

 N
O

. S
-1

9-
01

2
GR

AD
IN

G 
&

 D
RA

IN
AG

E 
PL

AN

TO
W

N
 O

F 
LO

S 
GA

TO
S

PA
RK

S 
AN

D 
PU

BL
IC

 W
O

RK
S 

DE
PA

RT
M

EN
T

LA
N

DS
 O

F 
DI

EP
 - 

15
92

5 
Q

U
AI

L 
HI

LL
 D

RI
VE

PL
AN

 F
O

R 
TH

E 
IM

PR
O

VE
M

EN
T 

O
F

CO
NT

RA
CT

OR
 A

GR
EE

S T
HA

T H
E S

HA
LL

 A
SS

UM
E S

OL
E A

ND
 CO

M
PL

ET
E R

ES
PO

NS
IB

ILI
TY

 FO
R J

OB
 SI

TE
 CO

ND
ITI

ON
S D

UR
IN

G 
TH

E C
OU

RS
E O

F C
ON

ST
RU

CT
IO

N 
OF

 TH
IS 

PR
OJ

EC
T, 

IN
CL

UD
IN

G 
SA

FE
TY

 O
F A

LL
 PE

RS
ON

S A
ND

 PR
OP

ER
TY

; T
HA

T T
HI

S R
EQ

UI
RE

M
EN

T S
HA

LL
 A

PP
LY

 CO
NT

IN
UO

US
LY

 A
ND

 N
OT

 BE
 LI

M
ITE

D 
TO

 N
OR

M
AL

 W
OR

KIN
G 

HO
UR

S;
AN

D 
TH

AT
 TH

E C
ON

TR
AC

TO
R S

HA
LL

 D
EF

EN
D,

 IN
DE

M
NI

FY
 A

ND
 H

OL
D 

TH
E O

W
NE

R A
ND

 TH
E E

NG
IN

EE
R H

AR
M

LE
SS

 FR
OM

 A
NY

 A
ND

 A
LL

 LI
AB

ILI
TY

, R
EA

L O
R A

LL
EG

ED
, IN

 CO
NN

EC
TIO

N 
 W

ITH
 TH

E P
ER

FO
RM

AN
CE

 O
F W

OR
K O

N 
TH

IS 
PR

OJ
EC

T, 
EX

CE
PT

IN
G 

FO
R L

IA
BI

LIT
Y A

RI
SIN

G 
FR

OM
 TH

E S
OL

E N
EG

LIG
EN

CE
 O

F T
HE

 O
W

NE
R O

R T
HE

 EN
GI

NE
ER

.

REV.: DEC. 2015

C
I
V

I
L
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
S

L
A

N
D

 
S

U
R

V
E

Y
O

R
S

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
I
O

N
 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

S

H
A

N
N

A
-
B

 U
N

T
T

I

E
S

T
.
 
1
9
1
0

7
6
5
1
 
E

I
G

L
E

B
E

R
R

Y
 
S

T
R

E
E

T
 
 
 
 
G

I
L
R

O
Y

 
 
 
 
 
9
5
0
2
0
 
 
 
 
C

A
L
I
F

O
R

N
I
A

O
F

F
I
C

E
 
(
4
0
8
)
 
8
4
2
-
2
1
7
3
 
 
 
 
 
F

A
X

 
(
4
0
8
)
 
8
4
2
-
3
6
6
2

E
M

A
I
L
:
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
I
N

G
 
@

 
H

A
N

N
A

B
R

U
N

E
T

T
I
.
C

O
M

HB JOB NO. 18083

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

PRELIMINARY PLANS

Page 102



C.7SHEET           OF     8

18
08

3

AS
 S

HO
W

N

TM AMXXAM

JU
N

E 
15

, 2
02

0
DA

TE
:

DE
SI

GN
:

DR
AW

N
:

CH
EC

K:

EN
GR

:

SC
AL

E:

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
O

.:

DA
TE

BY
RE

VI
SI

O
N

S

AR
CH

IT
EC

TU
RA

L 
AN

D 
SI

TE
 A

PP
LI

CA
TI

O
N

 N
O

. S
-1

9-
01

2
DR

IV
EW

AY
 P

RO
FI

LE
 &

 D
ET

AI
LS

TO
W

N
 O

F 
LO

S 
GA

TO
S

PA
RK

S 
AN

D 
PU

BL
IC

 W
O

RK
S 

DE
PA

RT
M

EN
T

LA
N

DS
 O

F 
DI

EP
 - 

15
92

5 
Q

U
AI

L 
HI

LL
 D

RI
VE

PL
AN

 F
O

R 
TH

E 
IM

PR
O

VE
M

EN
T 

O
F

CO
NT

RA
CT

OR
 A

GR
EE

S T
HA

T H
E S

HA
LL

 A
SS

UM
E S

OL
E A

ND
 CO

M
PL

ET
E R

ES
PO

NS
IB

ILI
TY

 FO
R J

OB
 SI

TE
 CO

ND
ITI

ON
S D

UR
IN

G 
TH

E C
OU

RS
E O

F C
ON

ST
RU

CT
IO

N 
OF

 TH
IS 

PR
OJ

EC
T, 

IN
CL

UD
IN

G 
SA

FE
TY

 O
F A

LL
 PE

RS
ON

S A
ND

 PR
OP

ER
TY

; T
HA

T T
HI

S R
EQ

UI
RE

M
EN

T S
HA

LL
 A

PP
LY

 CO
NT

IN
UO

US
LY

 A
ND

 N
OT

 BE
 LI

M
ITE

D 
TO

 N
OR

M
AL

 W
OR

KIN
G 

HO
UR

S;
AN

D 
TH

AT
 TH

E C
ON

TR
AC

TO
R S

HA
LL

 D
EF

EN
D,

 IN
DE

M
NI

FY
 A

ND
 H

OL
D 

TH
E O

W
NE

R A
ND

 TH
E E

NG
IN

EE
R H

AR
M

LE
SS

 FR
OM

 A
NY

 A
ND

 A
LL

 LI
AB

ILI
TY

, R
EA

L O
R A

LL
EG

ED
, IN

 CO
NN

EC
TIO

N 
 W

ITH
 TH

E P
ER

FO
RM

AN
CE

 O
F W

OR
K O

N 
TH

IS 
PR

OJ
EC

T, 
EX

CE
PT

IN
G 

FO
R L

IA
BI

LIT
Y A

RI
SIN

G 
FR

OM
 TH

E S
OL

E N
EG

LIG
EN

CE
 O

F T
HE

 O
W

NE
R O

R T
HE

 EN
GI

NE
ER

.

REV.: DEC. 2015

C
I
V

I
L
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
S

L
A

N
D

 
S

U
R

V
E

Y
O

R
S

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
I
O

N
 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

S

H
A

N
N

A
-
B

 
U

N
T

T
I

E
S

T
.
 
1
9
1
0

7
6
5
1
 
E

I
G

L
E

B
E

R
R

Y
 
S

T
R

E
E

T
 
 
 
 
G

I
L
R

O
Y

 
 
 
 
 
9
5
0
2
0
 
 
 
 
C

A
L
I
F

O
R

N
I
A

O
F

F
I
C

E
 
(
4
0
8
)
 
8
4
2
-
2
1
7
3
 
 
 
 
 
F

A
X

 
(
4
0
8
)
 
8
4
2
-
3
6
6
2

E
M

A
I
L
:
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
I
N

G
 
@

 
H

A
N

N
A

B
R

U
N

E
T

T
I
.
C

O
M

HB JOB NO. 18083

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

PRELIMINARY PLANS

Page 103



C.8SHEET           OF     8

18
08

3

AS
 S

HO
W

N

TM AMXXAM

JU
N

E 
15

, 2
02

0
DA

TE
:

DE
SI

GN
:

DR
AW

N
:

CH
EC

K:

EN
GR

:

SC
AL

E:

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
O

.:

DA
TE

BY
RE

VI
SI

O
N

S

AR
CH

IT
EC

TU
RA

L 
AN

D 
SI

TE
 A

PP
LI

CA
TI

O
N

 N
O

. S
-1

9-
01

2
ER

O
SI

O
N

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

PL
AN

TO
W

N
 O

F 
LO

S 
GA

TO
S

PA
RK

S 
AN

D 
PU

BL
IC

 W
O

RK
S 

DE
PA

RT
M

EN
T

LA
N

DS
 O

F 
DI

EP
 - 

10
 D

RY
SD

AL
E 

DR
IV

E
PL

AN
 F

O
R 

TH
E 

IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

T 
O

F

CO
NT

RA
CT

OR
 A

GR
EE

S T
HA

T H
E S

HA
LL

 A
SS

UM
E S

OL
E A

ND
 CO

M
PL

ET
E R

ES
PO

NS
IB

ILI
TY

 FO
R J

OB
 SI

TE
 CO

ND
ITI

ON
S D

UR
IN

G 
TH

E C
OU

RS
E O

F C
ON

ST
RU

CT
IO

N 
OF

 TH
IS 

PR
OJ

EC
T, 

IN
CL

UD
IN

G 
SA

FE
TY

 O
F A

LL
 PE

RS
ON

S A
ND

 PR
OP

ER
TY

; T
HA

T T
HI

S R
EQ

UI
RE

M
EN

T S
HA

LL
 A

PP
LY

 CO
NT

IN
UO

US
LY

 A
ND

 N
OT

 BE
 LI

M
ITE

D 
TO

 N
OR

M
AL

 W
OR

KIN
G 

HO
UR

S;
AN

D 
TH

AT
 TH

E C
ON

TR
AC

TO
R S

HA
LL

 D
EF

EN
D,

 IN
DE

M
NI

FY
 A

ND
 H

OL
D 

TH
E O

W
NE

R A
ND

 TH
E E

NG
IN

EE
R H

AR
M

LE
SS

 FR
OM

 A
NY

 A
ND

 A
LL

 LI
AB

ILI
TY

, R
EA

L O
R A

LL
EG

ED
, IN

 CO
NN

EC
TIO

N 
 W

ITH
 TH

E P
ER

FO
RM

AN
CE

 O
F W

OR
K O

N 
TH

IS 
PR

OJ
EC

T, 
EX

CE
PT

IN
G 

FO
R L

IA
BI

LIT
Y A

RI
SIN

G 
FR

OM
 TH

E S
OL

E N
EG

LIG
EN

CE
 O

F T
HE

 O
W

NE
R O

R T
HE

 EN
GI

NE
ER

.

REV.: DEC. 2015

C
I
V

I
L
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
S

L
A

N
D

 
S

U
R

V
E

Y
O

R
S

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
I
O

N
 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

S

H
A

N
N

A
-
B

 
U

N
T

T
I

E
S

T
.
 
1
9
1
0

7
6
5
1
 
E

I
G

L
E

B
E

R
R

Y
 
S

T
R

E
E

T
 
 
 
 
G

I
L
R

O
Y

 
 
 
 
 
9
5
0
2
0
 
 
 
 
C

A
L
I
F

O
R

N
I
A

O
F

F
I
C

E
 
(
4
0
8
)
 
8
4
2
-
2
1
7
3
 
 
 
 
 
F

A
X

 
(
4
0
8
)
 
8
4
2
-
3
6
6
2

E
M

A
I
L
:
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
I
N

G
 
@

 
H

A
N

N
A

B
R

U
N

E
T

T
I
.
C

O
M

HB JOB NO. 18083

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

PRELIMINARY PLANS

Page 104



OF

REVISIONS

DATE:

SCALE:

51
 U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 A

V
E.

 "L
" •

  L
O

S 
G

AT
O

S,
  C

A
. •

  9
50

30
  •

  (
40

8)
 3

95
-2

55
5

S H E E T

A
  N

EW
 R

ES
ID

EN
C

E:

T
H

E
 D

IE
P

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

C
E

15
92

5 
Q

U
A

IL
 H

IL
L 

R
O

A
D

   
   

LO
S 

G
AT

O
S,

 C
A

AS SHOWN

A-5

04/23/20

-13

MAIN FLOOR
PLAN

R
A

N
G

E

REFR FRZ

R
A

N
G

E

8'-61/2" 8'-71/2" 9'-1/2" 38'-0" 5'-91/2"

3
2
'-
10

"
19

'-
0

"
14

'-
6
"

5'-81/2" 21'-11/2" 13'-6" 11'-0" 18'-8"

8
'-
0

"
12

'-
4
"

2
0

'-
2
"

2
2
'-
4

1/
2
"

2
'-
6
"

6
2
'-
10

1/
2
"

70'-0"

F.F. = 430.00'

A
A-11

B
A-11

C
A-11

BASEMENT

FLOOR AREA

438.17' CONTOUR LINE
(DEFINES BELOW GRADE
BASEMENT AREA)

438.17' CONTOUR LINE
(DEFINES BELOW GRADE
BASEMENT AREA)

LIVING ROOM

DINING
ROOM

FAMILY ROOM

UP

DN

GUEST
BATH

ELEV.

HALF
BATH

GUEST SUITE

FOYER

BA
LC

O
N

Y

PATIO

UP

OPEN TO
ABOVE
& BELOW

STORAGE

UP

RAISED
PLANTER

(OPEN TO
ABOVE)

NOOK

WINE DISPLAY

KITCHEN

COOK'S
KITCHEN

(OPEN TO
ABOVE)

COVERED ENTRY

PANTRY

DN
SCALE: 1/4"   =    1'-0"

MAIN FLOOR PLAN

Page 105



OF

REVISIONS

DATE:

SCALE:

51
 U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 A

V
E.

 "L
" •

  L
O

S 
G

AT
O

S,
  C

A
. •

  9
50

30
  •

  (
40

8)
 3

95
-2

55
5

S H E E T

A
  N

EW
 R

ES
ID

EN
C

E:

T
H

E
 D

IE
P

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

C
E

15
92

5 
Q

U
A

IL
 H

IL
L 

R
O

A
D

   
   

LO
S 

G
AT

O
S,

 C
A

AS SHOWN

A-6

04/23/20

-14

SECOND
FLOOR PLAN

W
D

R

A
A-11

B
A-11

C
A-11

3
2
'-
10

"
19

'-
0

"

7'-6" 20'-1/2" 14'-10" 24'-6"

12
'-
3

1/
2
"

2
3
'-
71

/2
"

11
'-
11

/2
"

14
'-
91

/2
"

13'-91/2" 17'-2" 23'-2"

7'
-8

"

11'-0"

1'
-0

"

6'-2"

6
3
'-
10

"

1'
-0

"

66'-101/2"

F.F. = 442.17'
SKYLIGHT

SKYLIGHT

BEDROOM 4

BEDROOM 5

BATH 4

MASTER
BATH

MASTER SUITE

CLOSET 1

BEDROOM 2

BEDROOM 3

BATH 3

BATH 2

BALCONY

ELEV LANDING

HALL

SIDE
PATIO

OPEN TO BELOW

CLOSET 2

DRESSING
ROOM

DN

OPEN TO BELOW

LAUNDRY

UP

UP

PATIO

UP

LINEN

LINEN

LINEN

SCALE: 1/4"   =    1'-0"

SECOND FLOOR PLAN

Page 106



OF

REVISIONS

DATE:

SCALE:

51
 U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 A

V
E.

 "L
" •

  L
O

S 
G

AT
O

S,
  C

A
. •

  9
50

30
  •

  (
40

8)
 3

95
-2

55
5

S H E E T

A
  N

EW
 R

ES
ID

EN
C

E:

T
H

E
 D

IE
P

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

C
E

15
92

5 
Q

U
A

IL
 H

IL
L 

R
O

A
D

   
   

LO
S 

G
AT

O
S,

 C
A

AS SHOWN

A-7

04/23/20

-15

LOWER
FLOOR PLAN

11'-7" 12'-61/2" 23'-0"

3
2
'-
10

"
19

'-
0

"

13
'-
4

1/
2
"

2
0

'-
0

"
18

'-
5

1/
2
"

11'-7"

19'-2" 22'-8"

5
1'
-1

0
"

53'-5"

6'-11/2" 2'-8"

F.F. = 419.33'

426.0' CONTOUR LINE
(DEFINES BELOW GRADE
BASEMENT AREA)

426.0' CONTOUR LINE
(DEFINES BELOW GRADE
BASEMENT AREA)

BASEMENT

FLOOR AREA
4-CAR GARAGE

STORAGE/
MECHANICAL

WINE

ELEV.

STAIR LOBBY

UP

OPEN TO
ABOVEMECHANICAL

A
A-11

B
A-11

C
A-11

SCALE: 1/4"   =    1'-0"

LOWER FLOOR PLAN

Page 107



OF

REVISIONS

DATE:

SCALE:

51
 U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 A

V
E.

 "L
" •

  L
O

S 
G

AT
O

S,
  C

A
. •

  9
50

30
  •

  (
40

8)
 3

95
-2

55
5

S H E E T

A
  N

EW
 R

ES
ID

EN
C

E:

T
H

E
 D

IE
P

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

C
E

15
92

5 
Q

U
A

IL
 H

IL
L 

R
O

A
D

   
   

LO
S 

G
AT

O
S,

 C
A

AS SHOWN

A-8

04/23/20

-16

ROOF PLAN

A
A-11

B
A-11

C
A-11

FIXED, CURB MOUNTED
SKYLIGHT

FIXED, CURB MOUNTED
SKYLIGHT
FIXED, CURB MOUNTED
SKYLIGHT
FIXED, CURB MOUNTED
SKYLIGHT

FIXED, CURB MOUNTED
SKYLIGHT
FIXED, CURB MOUNTED
SKYLIGHT

PARAPET CURB

PARAPET CURB

PARAPET CURB

PARAPET CURB

PARAPET CURB

PARAPET CURB

HORIZONTAL AWNING

HORIZONTAL AWNING

HORIZONTAL AWNING

HORIZONTAL AWNING

4"X6" RECTANGULAR METAL GUTTER

4"X6" RECTANGULAR METAL GUTTER

4"X6" RECTANGULAR METAL GUTTER

4"X6" RECTANGULAR
METAL GUTTER

4"X6" RECTANGULAR METAL GUTTER

OPENING

OUTLINE OF EXTERIOR
WALLS BELOW

OUTLINE OF EXTERIOR
WALLS BELOW

4"X6" RECTANGULAR METAL GUTTER

LOW SLOPE ROOF
TOP ELEV. = 453.3'

LOW SLOPE ROOF
TOP ELEV. = 452.3'

LOW SLOPE ROOF
TOP ELEV. = 453.3'

LOW SLOPE ROOF
TOP ELEV. = 452.3'

LOW SLOPE ROOF
TOP ELEV. = 453.8'

LOW SLOPE ROOF
TOP ELEV. = 445.1'

LOW SLOPE ROOF
TOP ELEV. = 443.1'

LOW SLOPE ROOF
TOP ELEV. = 443.1'

LOW SLOPE ROOF
TOP ELEV. = 452.3'

SCALE: 1/4"   =    1'-0"

ROOF PLAN

Page 108



OF

REVISIONS

DATE:

SCALE:

51
 U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 A

V
E.

 "L
" •

  L
O

S 
G

AT
O

S,
  C

A
. •

  9
50

30
  •

  (
40

8)
 3

95
-2

55
5

S H E E T

A
  N

EW
 R

ES
ID

EN
C

E:

T
H

E
 D

IE
P

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

C
E

15
92

5 
Q

U
A

IL
 H

IL
L 

R
O

A
D

   
   

LO
S 

G
AT

O
S,

 C
A

AS SHOWN

A-9

04/23/20

-17

FRONT &
LEFT

ELEVATIONS

419.33'
LOWER FLOOR

419.33'
LOWER FLOOR

430.00'
MAIN FLOOR

430.00'
MAIN FLOOR

442.17'
SECOND FLOOR

442.17'
SECOND FLOOR

454.00'
HIGHEST RIDGE

454.00'
HIGHEST RIDGE

3
4
'-
8
"

2
4
'-
6
"

2
6
'-
4
"

7'
-9

1/
4
"

444.08'
PLATE

451.25'
PLATE

442.58'
PLATE

452.75'
PLATE

428.92'
PLATE

428.92'
PLATE

CORNER WINDOW W/ MATCHING
METAL WRAPPED CORNER

CORNER WINDOW W/ MATCHING
METAL WRAPPED CORNER

RECTANGULAR STONE VENEERRECTANGULAR STONE VENEER

BBQ AREA

ENERGY EFFICIENT,
ALUM. FRAMED WINDOWS
W/ CLEAN LINES

SITE RETAINING WALLS,
CLAD IN STONE
SITE RETAINING WALLS,
CLAD IN STONE

CLOSED SOFFIT EAVE

METAL FRAMED GARAGE DOORS
W/ OPAQUE GLASS LITES

RECTANGULAR METAL GUTTER

INTEGRAL COLOR, SMOOTH STUCCO FINISH

HORIZONTAL METAL RAILING

SITE RETAINING WALLS,
CLAD IN STONE

DEC. HORIZONTAL AWNING

PVC MEMBRANE ROOFINGHORIZONTAL WOOD SIDING

METAL FRAMED GARAGE DOORS
W/ OPAQUE GLASS LITES

RECTANGULAR STONE VENEER & PILASTERS

HORIZONTAL WOOD SIDING

RECTANGULAR METAL GUTTER

METAL FIN @
TRANSOM LINE

430.00'
MAIN FLOOR

430.00'
MAIN FLOOR

442.17'
SECOND FLOOR

442.17'
SECOND FLOOR

454.00'
HIGHEST RIDGE

454.00'
HIGHEST RIDGE

13
'-
10

"

9'
-1

"

2
2
'-
3
"

11
'-
7"

LIGHTWELL

8
'-
3

1/
4
"

RECTANGULAR STONE VENEER

HORIZONTAL WOOD SIDING

RECTANGULAR
METAL GUTTER

CLOSED SOFFIT EAVE

HORIZONTAL WOOD SIDING

INTEGRAL COLOR, SMOOTH STUCCO FINISH

ENERGY EFFICIENT,
ALUM. FRAMED WINDOWS
W/ CLEAN LINES

CORNER WINDOW W/ MATCHING
METAL WRAPPED CORNER

PVC MEMBRANE ROOFING

METAL FIN
@ TRANSOM LINE

PARAPET CURB

442.58'
PLATE

451.25'
PLATE

452.25'
PLATE

25' HEIGHT LIMIT

430.00'
MAIN FLOOR

RECTANGULAR STONE VENEER

SITE RETAINING WALLS,
CLAD IN STONE

PAIR METAL FRAMED DOORS
WITH LITES, SIDELITES AND TRANSOM

DEC. HORIZONTAL AWNING

Front Elevation

Material Area Specification LRV LRV x Area

Stucco 137 BM-Balboa Mist 67.4 9229.69
Fascia & Gutters 165 Weathered Zinc-Pac Clad 25 4125
Wood Siding 400 Stained Cedar-Expresso 3.94 1576
Stone Veneer 528 Earthwood Tailored Ledge 21.6 11388.96
Glass 737 11 8107
D/W Frames 212 Fleetwood-Black Anodized 3.3 699.6

Total = 2179 Total = 33550.25

LRV = 15.39709

Left Elevation

Stucco 314 BM-Balboa Mist 67.4 21154.18
Fascia & Gutters 113 Weathered Zinc-Pac Clad 25 2825
Wood Siding 257 Stained Cedar-Expresso 3.94 1012.58
Stone Veneer 231 Earthwood Tailored Ledge 21.6 4982.67
Glass 369 11 4059
D/W Frames 127 Fleetwood-Black Anodized 3.3 419.1

Total = 1411 Total = 34452.53

LRV = 24.4171

Rear Elevation

Stucco 179 BM-Balboa Mist 67.4 12059.23
Fascia & Gutters 36 Weathered Zinc-Pac Clad 25 900
Wood Siding 250 Stained Cedar-Expresso 3.94 985
Stone Veneer 4 Earthwood Tailored Ledge 21.6 86.28
Glass 103 11 1133
D/W Frames 30 Fleetwood-Black Anodized 3.3 99

Total = 602 Total = 15262.51

LRV = 25.35301

SCALE: 1/4"   =    1'-0"

FRONT (NORTH) ELEVATION

SCALE: 1/4"   =    1'-0"

LEFT (EAST) ELEVATION
Page 109



OF

REVISIONS

DATE:

SCALE:

51
 U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 A

V
E.

 "L
" •

  L
O

S 
G

AT
O

S,
  C

A
. •

  9
50

30
  •

  (
40

8)
 3

95
-2

55
5

S H E E T

A
  N

EW
 R

ES
ID

EN
C

E:

T
H

E
 D

IE
P

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

C
E

15
92

5 
Q

U
A

IL
 H

IL
L 

R
O

A
D

   
   

LO
S 

G
AT

O
S,

 C
A

AS SHOWN

A-10

04/23/20

-18

RIGHT &
REAR

ELEVATIONS

442.17'
SECOND FLOOR

442.17'
SECOND FLOOR

454.00'
HIGHEST RIDGE

454.00'
HIGHEST RIDGE

11
'-
7"

6
'-
5

3
/4

"
INTEGRAL COLOR, SMOOTH STUCCO FINISH

RECTANGULAR
METAL GUTTER

HORIZONTAL WOOD SIDING

CLOSED SOFFIT EAVEPVC MEMBRANE ROOFING

ENERGY EFFICIENT,
ALUM. FRAMED WINDOWS
W/ CLEAN LINES

ENERGY EFFICIENT,
ALUM. FRAMED DOORS
W/ CLEAN LINES

PARAPET CURB

451.25'
PLATE

452.25'
PLATE

452.25'
PLATE

Front Elevation

Material Area Specification LRV LRV x Area

Stucco 137 BM-Balboa Mist 67.4 9229.69
Fascia & Gutters 165 Weathered Zinc-Pac Clad 25 4125
Wood Siding 400 Stained Cedar-Expresso 3.94 1576
Stone Veneer 528 Earthwood Tailored Ledge 21.6 11388.96
Glass 737 11 8107
D/W Frames 212 Fleetwood-Black Anodized 3.3 699.6

Total = 2179 Total = 33550.25

LRV = 15.39709

Left Elevation

Stucco 314 BM-Balboa Mist 67.4 21154.18
Fascia & Gutters 113 Weathered Zinc-Pac Clad 25 2825
Wood Siding 257 Stained Cedar-Expresso 3.94 1012.58
Stone Veneer 231 Earthwood Tailored Ledge 21.6 4982.67
Glass 369 11 4059
D/W Frames 127 Fleetwood-Black Anodized 3.3 419.1

Total = 1411 Total = 34452.53

LRV = 24.4171

Rear Elevation

Stucco 179 BM-Balboa Mist 67.4 12059.23
Fascia & Gutters 36 Weathered Zinc-Pac Clad 25 900
Wood Siding 250 Stained Cedar-Expresso 3.94 985
Stone Veneer 4 Earthwood Tailored Ledge 21.6 86.28
Glass 103 11 1133
D/W Frames 30 Fleetwood-Black Anodized 3.3 99

Total = 602 Total = 15262.51

LRV = 25.35301

Right Elevation

Stucco 272 BM-Balboa Mist 67.4 18324.64
Fascia & Gutters 124 Weathered Zinc-Pac Clad 25 3100
Wood Siding 282 Stained Cedar-Expresso 3.94 1111.08
Stone Veneer 111 Earthwood Tailored Ledge 21.6 2394.27
Glass 601 11 6611
D/W Frames 103 Fleetwood-Black Anodized 3.3 339.9

Total = 1493 Total = 31880.89

LRV = 21.35358

Total Average LRV

Front Elevation 15.4
Left Elevation 24.4
Rear Elevation 25.4
Right Elevation 21.4

86.5

Average LRV = 22

430.00'
MAIN FLOOR

430.00'
MAIN FLOOR

442.17'
SECOND FLOOR

442.17'
SECOND FLOOR

454.00'
HIGHEST RIDGE

454.00'
HIGHEST RIDGE

2
4
'-
0

"

11
'-
7"

15
'-
71

/2
"

7'
-3

"

5
'-
6

3
/4

" RECTANGULAR STONE VENEER

INTEGRAL COLOR, SMOOTH STUCCO FINISH

CORNER WINDOW W/ MATCHING
METAL WRAPPED CORNER
CORNER WINDOW W/ MATCHING
METAL WRAPPED CORNER

RECTANGULAR
METAL GUTTERHORIZONTAL WOOD SIDING DEC. HORIZONTAL AWNING

SITE RETAINING WALLS,
CLAD IN STONE

ENERGY EFFICIENT,
ALUM. FRAMED WINDOWS
W/ CLEAN LINES

CLOSED SOFFIT EAVE

HORIZONTAL METAL RAILING

HORIZONTAL METAL RAILING

ENERGY EFFICIENT,
LARGE FORMAT, ALUM.
FRAMED SLIDING DOORS
W/ CLEAN LINES

BBQ AREA

HORIZONTAL METAL RAILINGPVC MEMBRANE ROOFING RECTANGULAR METAL GUTTER

CLOSED SOFFIT EAVE

PARAPET CURB

METAL FIN
@ TRANSOM LINE

444.08'
PLATE

451.25'
PLATE

452.25'
PLATE

451.25'
PLATE

25' HEIGHT LIMIT

SITE RETAINING WALLS,
CLAD IN STONE

Right Elevation

Stucco 272 BM-Balboa Mist 67.4 18324.64
Fascia & Gutters 124 Weathered Zinc-Pac Clad 25 3100
Wood Siding 282 Stained Cedar-Expresso 3.94 1111.08
Stone Veneer 111 Earthwood Tailored Ledge 21.6 2394.27
Glass 601 11 6611
D/W Frames 103 Fleetwood-Black Anodized 3.3 339.9

Total = 1493 Total = 31880.89

LRV = 21.35358

Total Average LRV

Front Elevation 15.4
Left Elevation 24.4
Rear Elevation 25.4
Right Elevation 21.4

86.5

Average LRV = 22

SCALE: 1/4"   =    1'-0"

REAR (SOUTH) ELEVATION

SCALE: 1/4"   =    1'-0"

RIGHT (WEST) ELEVATION

Page 110



OF

REVISIONS

DATE:

SCALE:

51
 U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 A

V
E.

 "L
" •

  L
O

S 
G

AT
O

S,
  C

A
. •

  9
50

30
  •

  (
40

8)
 3

95
-2

55
5

S H E E T

A
  N

EW
 R

ES
ID

EN
C

E:

T
H

E
 D

IE
P

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

C
E

15
92

5 
Q

U
A

IL
 H

IL
L 

R
O

A
D

   
   

LO
S 

G
AT

O
S,

 C
A

AS SHOWN

A-11

04/23/20

-19

CROSS
SECTIONS

419.33'
LOWER FLOOR

419.33'
LOWER FLOOR

430.00'
MAIN FLOOR

430.00'
MAIN FLOOR

442.17'
SECOND FLOOR

442.17'
SECOND FLOOR

454.00'
HIGHEST RIDGE

454.00'
HIGHEST RIDGE

3
4
'-
8
"

14
'-
1"

10
'-
7"

9'
-1

"

10
'-
1"

11
'-
1"

9'
-7

"

6
'-

1/
2
"

25' height limit

35' overall height limit

FAMILY ROOM

GARAGE
STORAGE/

MECHANICAL

NOOKKITCHENPANTRY

MASTER BATH MASTER BEDROOMBEDROOM 2

419.33'
LOWER FLOOR

419.33'
LOWER FLOOR

430.00'
MAIN FLOOR

430.00'
MAIN FLOOR

442.17'
SECOND FLOOR

442.17'
SECOND FLOOR

454.00'
HIGHEST RIDGE

454.00'
HIGHEST RIDGE

3
4
'-
8
"2

1'
-3

"

11
'-
0

"

12
'-
7"

9'
-1

"

9'
-7

"

7'
-1

11
/2

"

6
'-
8

1/
2
"

25' height limit

35' overall height limit

DINING ROOMFOYERELEV.
SHAFTSTORAGE

GARAGESTAIR LOBBY

MASTER CLOSETBATH 3SIDE PATIO

DRIVEWAY
OFF STREET PARKING

419.33'
LOWER FLOOR

419.33'
LOWER FLOOR

430.00'
MAIN FLOOR

430.00'
MAIN FLOOR

442.17'
SECOND FLOOR

442.17'
SECOND FLOOR

454.00'
HIGHEST RIDGE

454.00'
HIGHEST RIDGE

3
4
'-
8
"

9'
-7

"

11
'-
0

"

12
'-
7"

9'
-8

1/
2
"

11
'-
1"

10
'-
1"

2
1'
-3

"

5
'-
91

/4
"

7'
-1

1"

25' height limit

35' overall height limit

LIVING ROOM

GARAGEWINE STORAGE

GUEST SUITE
GUEST
BATH

HALLBEDROOM 4 BEDROOM 5

FOYER

DRIVEWAY
OFF-STREET PARKING

SCALE: 1/8"   =    1'-0"

SECTION A-A

SCALE: 1/8"   =    1'-0"

SECTION B-B

SCALE: 1/8"   =    1'-0"

SECTION C-C
Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



5'

1'-2"

4'

8' 8'

6'

Wood and Wire Fence

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

1/2"=1'-0"

5' 14'-10" 8'

Automatic Entry Gate Elevation
1/2"=1'-0"

Date

Scale

Drawn

Job

Of

Sheet

Sheets.

Th
e 

D
ie

p 
R

es
id

en
ce

15
92

5 
Q

ua
il 

H
ill 

R
d

Lo
s 

G
at

os
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

C
al

ifo
rn

ia

DRF

Diep

40
8-

76
1-

02
12

 p
ho

ne
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  d
av

id
@

fo
xl

a.
ne

t
11

88
 k

ot
en

be
rg

 A
ve

nu
e 

  s
an

 jo
se

   
  9

51
25

D
av

id
 R

. F
ox

  &
  C

om
pa

ny
La

nd
sc

ap
e 

Ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
e

D
et

ai
ls

4-10-20

1"=2'-0"

L2.1

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

REFERENCE NOTES SCHEDULE

Page 116



3
Page 117



Page 118



 

PREPARED BY: JENNIFER ARMER, AICP 
 Senior Planner 
  
   

Reviewed by:  Planning Manager and Community Development Director   
   
 

110 E. Main Street Los Gatos, CA 95030 ● (408) 354-6872 
www.losgatosca.gov 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
REPORT 

MEETING DATE: 09/09/2020 

ITEM NO: 3 

DESK ITEM  

 
   

 

DATE:   September 9, 2020 

TO: Planning Commission 

FROM: Joel Paulson, Community Development Director 

SUBJECT: Requesting Approval for Demolition of an Existing Single-Family Residence 
and Detached Accessory Dwelling Unit, and Construction of a Two-Story 
Single-Family Residence on Property Zoned HR-1. APN 527-02-007.  
Architecture and Site Application S-19-012.  Located at 15925 Quail Hill Drive.  
Applicant: Gary Kohlsaat.  Property Owner: John and Allison Diep.     

 
REMARKS: 
 
Exhibit 26 includes public comments received by 11:00 a.m., Wednesday, September 9, 2020. 
 
EXHIBITS: 
 
Previously received with December 11, 2019 Staff Report: 
1. Location Map 
2. Required Findings and Considerations 
3. Recommended Conditions of Approval 
4. Project Description 
5. Materials Board 
6. Letter of Justification, dated November 21, 2019  
7. Consulting Architect’s Report, received March 26, 2019 
8. Applicant’s Response to Consulting Architect’s Report, dated May 22, 2019 
9. Applicant’s Response to Consulting Architect’s Recommendations, dated November 20, 

2019 
10. Consulting Architect’s Second Report, received November 7, 2019 
11. Consulting Arborist Report, dated April 18, 2019  
12. Applicant’s neighbor outreach efforts 
13. Public comments received by 11:00 a.m., Friday, December 6, 2019 
14. Development Plans  
 

Page 119



PAGE 2 OF 2 
SUBJECT: 15925 Quail Hill Drive/S-19-012 
DATE:  September 9, 2020 
 
Previously received with December 11, 2019 Addendum Report: 
15. Correspondence from the Applicant 
 
Previously received with September 9, 2020 Staff Report: 
16. Revised Conditions of Approval 
17. Revised Findings and Considerations 
18. Revised Project Description and Justification Letter 
19. Supplemental Justification Letter 
20. Revised Project Data Table 
21. Revised Grading Exception Site Plan  
22. Consulting Architect’s Third Report, received May 14, 2020 
23. Applicant’s Response to Consulting Architect’s Recommendations, dated June 15, 2020 
24. Revised Color Board 
25. Revised Development Plans 
 
Received with this Desk Item Report: 
26. Public comments received by 11:00 a.m., Wednesday, September 9, 2020 
 
 
 
 

Page 120



From: Bernard-Marcia Coullahan  

Sent: Tuesday, September 8, 2020 3:04 PM 

To: Planning Comment <PlanningComment@losgatosca.gov> 

Subject: 15925 Quail Hill Road site building application 

 

My wife Marcia and I are in complete agreement with the Diep's proposed building 

application. 

we live on the adjacent property at 100 Drysdale Drive. 

 

thanks, Bernie Coullahan  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT 26 

Page 121

mailto:PlanningComment@losgatosca.gov


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page  
Intentionally  

Left Blank 
 

 
 

Page 122



 

PREPARED BY: ERIN WALTERS 
 Associate Planner 
  
   

Reviewed by:  Planning Manager and Community Development Director   
   
 

110 E. Main Street Los Gatos, CA 95030 ● (408) 354-6872 
www.losgatosca.gov 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
REPORT 

MEETING DATE: 09/09/2020 

ITEM NO: 4  

 
   

 

DATE:   September 4, 2020 

TO: Planning Commission 

FROM: Joel Paulson, Community Development Director 

SUBJECT: Consider a Request for Approval for a Variance from the Town Code to Exceed 

the Maximum Allowable Sign Area and an Exception from the Commercial 

Design Guidelines to Exceed the Maximum Letter Height for a Wall Sign 

(Sephora) on Property Zoned C-2:LHP:PD, Located at 50 University Avenue, 

Suite B260.  APN 529-02-044.  Variance Application V-20-001.  Property Owner: 

SRI Old Town LLC.  Applicant: Peter Liu.  

 
Deemed complete:  July 30, 2020 
Final date to take action:  January 30, 2021 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Consider a request for approval for a Variance from the Town Code to exceed the maximum 
allowable sign area and an exception from the Commercial Design Guidelines to exceed the 
maximum letter height for a wall sign on property zoned C-2:LHP:PD, Located at 50 University 
Avenue, Suite B260.   
 
PROJECT DATA: 
 
General Plan Designation:   Central Business District 
Zoning Designation:  Central Business District, Landmark and Historic Preservation 

Overlay, Planned Development, C-2:LHP:PD 
Applicable Plans & Standards:  Master Sign Program, Zoning Code; Commercial Design 

Guidelines 
Parcel Size:  4.15 acres 
  

Page 123



PAGE 2 OF 10 
SUBJECT: 50 University Avenue, Suite B260/V-20-001 
DATE:  September 4, 2020   
 
Surrounding Area: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
CEQA: 
 
The project is Categorically Exempt pursuant to the adopted Guidelines for the Implementation 
of the California Environmental Quality Act, Section 15301: Existing Facilities. 
 
FINDINGS:  
 
 As required, the project is Categorically Exempt pursuant to the adopted Guidelines for the 

Implementation of the California Environmental Quality Act, Section 15301: Existing 
Facilities.  

 As required by Section 29.20.170 of the Town Code for granting a Variance application to 
exceed the maximum allowable sign area.  

 That the project is in conformance with Planned Development Ordinance 2025. 
 That the project is in conformance with the Old Town Master Sign Program.  
 That the proposed project is consistent with the applicable Commercial Design Guidelines 

with the exception of the maximum letter height for a wall sign in the C-2 District.    
 
ACTION: 
 
The decision of the Planning Commission is final unless appealed within ten days. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The subject site is located on the east side of University Avenue (Exhibit 1).  The subject 4,668- 
square foot tenant space is located on the first floor of the Old Town Shopping Center and is 
currently under construction with a retail tenant improvement (Sephora).  The subject tenant 
space is a portion of a former restaurant space (The Catamount).    
 
On January 14, 2020, the applicant applied for a sign permit (SN-20-002) for the subject tenant 
space.  Staff reviewed the sign permit application package and determined that the proposed 
total sign area would exceed the maximum allowable sign area per Section 29.10.135 (c), Rules 
1 and 2, of the Town Code, and the proposed letter height would exceed the maximum  letter  
 

 Existing Land Use General Plan Zoning 

North Residential  Medium Density Residential   R-1:8:LHP 

East Los Gatos Creek 
and Highway 17 

N/A   N/A 

South Commercial  Central Business District   C-2:LHP 

West Commercial  Central Business District    C-2:LHP 

Page 124



PAGE 3 OF 10 
SUBJECT: 50 University Avenue, Suite B260/V-20-001 
DATE:  September 4, 2020   
 
BACKGROUND (continued): 
 
height for a wall sign per Section 6.2.5 of the Commercial Design Guidelines.  On March 11, 
2020, the applicant applied for a Variance application. 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
 
The project is being considered by the Planning Commission as the applicant is requesting 
approval of a Variance to exceed the maximum allowable sign area and an exception from the 
Commercial Design Guidelines to exceed the maximum letter height for a wall sign located in 
the C-2 District.   
 
A. Location and Surrounding Neighborhood 

 
The subject property is located on the east side of University Avenue (Exhibit 1) and is 
developed with the Old Town Shopping Center commercial buildings.  The subject 4,668-
square foot tenant space is located on the first floor of the shopping center’s main building.  
The property abuts commercial properties to the south and west, residential properties to 
the north, and the Los Gatos Creek and Highway 17 to the east.    

 
B. Project Summary 
 

The applicant is requesting approval of a Variance to exceed the maximum allowable sign 
area and an exception from the Commercial Design Guidelines to exceed the maximum 
letter height for a wall sign located in the C-2 District. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
A. Project Summary 

 
The applicant proposes a wall sign and awning signage on the exterior building of the 
subject tenant space.  The proposed signage meets the Old Town Shopping Center Master 
Sign Program, but exceeds the maximum allowable sign area per the Town Code and 
exceeds the maximum letter height for wall signs located in the C-2 District per the 
Commercial Design Guidelines.  The applicant has provided a scope of work and letter of 
justification for the proposed project (Exhibits 4 and 5).  The proposed development plans 
are provided in Exhibit 9.   
 
Total Sign Area 
The applicant proposes 70.2 square feet of wall sign area and 2.62 square feet of awning 
sign area resulting in a total proposed sign area of 72.82 square feet where the maximum 
allowable sign area is 51.66 square feet per Town Code (Exhibit 9, Sheets 1.2 and 2.0).  Per  
 

Page 125



PAGE 4 OF 10 
SUBJECT: 50 University Avenue, Suite B260/V-20-001 
DATE:  September 4, 2020   
 
DISCUSSION (continued): 

 
the Commercial Design Guidelines (Chapter 6, page 5), a six-inch margin around all words 
has been included to calculate the total sign area.  
 

Total Sign Area 

Proposed  Maximum Allowable  

72.82 square feet 51.66 square feet 

 
The project business frontage is 51 feet, 8-inches.  Per Town Code Section 29.10.135 (c), 
Rules 1 and 2, the maximum allowable signage area for the subject business frontage is 
51.66 square feet.  A Variance from the Town Code is required to exceed the maximum 
allowable sign area.  
 
Wall Sign Letter Height 
The applicant proposes a 30-inch letter height for the wall sign, when a maximum letter 
height of 12-inches is allowed per the Commercial Design Guidelines (Exhibit 9, Sheets 1.2 
and 2.0).  
 

Wall Letter Height 

Proposed  Maximum   

30-inches  12-inches 

 
Per the Commercial Design Guidelines- Chapter 6.2 Wall Signs:  
Section 6.2.5 - Maximum letter height:  
 
Sign height and width should be appropriate to the building on which it is placed and the 
distance of the sign from the fronting streets.  Generally, wall sign letter heights should not 
exceed the following:  
C-1 District, 12 inches 
C-2 District, 12 inches 
LM District, 12 inches 
Los Gatos Boulevard, 18 inches 
Exception:  Auto dealership wall signage will be considered in the context of the overall Sign 
Program.  
 
The subject site is located in the C-2 District and subject to a maximum letter height of 12-
inches.  An exception from the Commercial Design Guidelines is required to exceed the 
maximum letter height.  

 
  

Page 126



PAGE 5 OF 10 
SUBJECT: 50 University Avenue, Suite B260/V-20-001 
DATE:  September 4, 2020   
 
DISCUSSION (continued): 
 
B. Variance – Exceed Maximum Sign Area 

 
Section 29.10.135 (c) of the Town Code states that Rules 1 and 2 govern the calculation of 
the area of attached signs.  The maximum sign area for attached signs on any frontage may 
not exceed the area derived from the calculation for that frontage.  
 
Rule 1.  Allowed sign area is one (1) square foot for each lineal foot of primary business 
frontage plus one (1) square foot for each lineal foot of secondary business frontage 
provided that the sign area generated by each secondary business frontage cannot exceed 
fifty (50) percent of the sign area generated by the primary business frontage.  
 
Rule 2.  Allowed sign area is one (1) square foot for each lineal foot of primary business 
frontage plus one-half square foot for each lineal foot of secondary business frontage.  
 
The maximum allowable sign area for the subject business frontage is 51.66 square feet as 
the primary business frontage is 51 feet, 8-inches.  The applicant is requesting a Variance to 
exceed the maximum allowable sign area to allow a sign area of 77.82 square feet.  The 
applicant has provided a letter of justification for the request (Exhibit 5), citing the need to 
exceed the maximum allowable sign area due to the requirement of the Commercial Design 
Guidelines 6-inch sign area margin and due to the project’s proposed letter height of 30-
inches.  An exception from the Commercial Design Guidelines is also required to exceed the 
maximum letter height of 12-inches in the C-2 District.  

  
 As required by Section 29.20.170 of the Town Code, the deciding body, on the basis of the 

evidence submitted at the hearing, may grant a Variance if it can make the following findings.   
 

1. Because of special circumstances applicable to the property, including size, shape, 
topography, location or surroundings, the strict application of the ordinance deprives  
such property of privileges enjoyed by other properties in the vicinity and under 
identical zone; and 

2. The granting of a variance would not constitute a grant of special privileges inconsistent 
with the limitations upon other properties in the vicinity and zone which such property 
is situated. 

 
The applicant has submitted a letter of justification outlining the request for a larger wall 
sign area than permitted by the Town Code and taller letter height than permitted by and 
the Commercial Design Guidelines (Exhibit 5).  The applicant states that vehicular and 
pedestrian visibility to the subject tenant’s sign would be compromised as the building is 
setback 188 feet from the public right of way, creating a unique challenge.  The applicant 
also states that the mature trees and the shopping center’s sign would block visibility to the 
tenant’s signage.   

Page 127



PAGE 6 OF 10 
SUBJECT: 50 University Avenue, Suite B260/V-20-001 
DATE:  September 4, 2020   
 
DISCUSSION (continued): 
 

The letter of justification states that the 12-inch letter height would not be seen by vehicular 
traffic along University Avenue and would prevent the tenant from being adequately 
identified.  The letter states that a larger letter height would help identify the tenant to 
vehicular traffic, possibly preventing traffic incidents.  The applicant states that the tenant 
space is unique to other tenant spaces as it is larger and has a pitched roof over the entry.  
The applicant provides that a larger sign would be visually more aesthetic than a smaller 
sign, and compliment the scale of the building’s architecture.  
 
The applicant also states that other businesses in the shopping center and in surrounding 
shopping centers appear to have signage that exceed the letter height as shown in the 
provided site photographs (Exhibit 6).   The applicant states that the granting of the 
Variance would not grant a special privilege that other properties do not also enjoy.  

 
C. Old Town Shopping Center Sign Letter Height - Neighborhood Compatibility 

 
The following table provides a summary of sign letter height for wall signs located on the 
subject building in the Old Town Shopping Center.   
 

Tenant Name Sign Letter Height 

White House Black Market 12-inches 

Thread Up 11-1/2-inches 

Talbots 30-inches  

Anthropologie 8-inches 

Chico’s 12-inches 

Wine Cellar 17-inch letter “W” and 24-inch letter “C” 

 
Existing sign letter heights range from eight inches to 30 inches.  There are two examples of 
larger sign letter heights that exceed the Commercial Design Guidelines.  Wine Cellar has a 
17-inch “W” and 24-inch “C” and Talbots has a 30-inch sign letter height.  The Talbots and 
Wine Cellar signs were approved prior to the approval of the Commercial Design Guidelines. 

 
D. Neighborhood Outreach 
 

The applicant reached out to the surrounding tenants of the Old Town Shopping Center 
regarding the proposed project.  The applicant has provided a summary of the outreach and 
the feedback (Exhibit 7).  A majority of the tenants were supportive of the proposed signage 
and two tenants provided feedback that a 24-inch letter height would be preferable.  
 

 
  

Page 128



PAGE 7 OF 10 
SUBJECT: 50 University Avenue, Suite B260/V-20-001 
DATE:  September 4, 2020   
 
DISCUSSION (continued): 

 
E. Sign Letter Height and Total Sign Area Alternatives 
 

Staff requested that the applicant provide a summary of sign letter heights and total sign 
area alternatives for the subject project to provide a comparison.  The total sign area 
column includes both the wall sign area and the awning sign area.  The applicant provided 
the following table:  
 

Wall Sign Letter 
Height 

Wall Sign Area (s.f.)  
(includes the required 6-
inch margin) 

Awning Sign 
Area (s.f.) 

Total Sign 
Area (s.f.) 

Variance 
Required 

12-inch 18.43 2.62 21.05 No 

18-inch 31.03 2.62 33.65 No 

24-inch 49.56 2.62 52.18 Yes 

Proposed 
30-inch 

Proposed 
70.2 

Proposed 
2.62 

Proposed 
72.82 

 
Yes 

Max. allowed per 
Commercial 
Design 
Guidelines 
12-inch 

  Max. allowed 
per Town 
Code 
51.66 s.f. 

 

 
The table above provides four different wall sign letter height options: 12-inch, 18-inch, 24-
inch, and 30-inch.  Either the 12-inch and 18-inch wall sign letter height option would result 
in a total sign area (including the awning sign area) which would not require a Variance 
from the Town Code.  Either the 24-inch and 30-inch wall sign letter height option would 
result in a total sign area (including the awning sign area) which would require a Variance 
from the Town Code.   

 
F. CEQA Determination 
 

The project is Categorically Exempt pursuant to the adopted Guidelines for the 
Implementation of the California Environmental Quality Act, Section 15301: Existing 
Facilities. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
 
At this time, the Town has not received any public comment. 
 
  

Page 129



PAGE 8 OF 10 
SUBJECT: 50 University Avenue, Suite B260/V-20-001 
DATE:  September 4, 2020   
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
A. Summary 
 

The applicant is requesting approval of a Variance from the Town Code for a sign area of 
72.82 square feet, where 51.66 square feet is allowed based on primary business frontage, 
and approval of an exception from the Commercial Design Guidelines for a 30-inch wall sign 
letter height, where the maximum is 12-inches in the C-2 District.   
 

B. Recommendation 
 
If the Planning Commission finds merit with the proposed project, it should: 
 
1. Make the finding that the proposed project is Categorically Exempt, pursuant to the 

adopted Guidelines for the implementation of the California Environmental Quality Act, 
Section 15301: Existing Facilities (Exhibit 2); 

2. Make the findings as required by Section 29.20.170 of the Town Code for granting a 
Variance to exceed the maximum allowable sign area (Exhibit 2); 

3. Make the finding that the project is in conformance with Planned Development 
Ordinance 2025 (Exhibit 2);  

4. Make the finding the project is in conformance with the Old Town Master Sign Program 
(Exhibit 2);  

5. Make the finding that the project complies with the applicable Commercial Design 
Guidelines with the exception of exceeding the maximum letter height for a wall sign in 
the C-2 District (Exhibit 2); and 

6. Approve Variance application V-20-001 with the conditions contained in Exhibit 3 and 
the development plans in Exhibit 9. 
 

C. Alternatives 
 

Alternatively, the Commission can: 
 
1. Continue the matter to a date certain with specific direction; or 
2. Approve the application with additional and/or modified conditions; or 
3. Deny the application. 

 
EXHIBITS: 

1. Location Map 
2. Required Findings and Considerations  
3. Recommended Conditions of Approval 
4. Project Description, received June 26, 2020 
5. Letter of Justification, received June 26, 2020 

Page 130



PAGE 9 OF 10 
SUBJECT: 50 University Avenue, Suite B260/V-20-001 
DATE:  September 4, 2020   
 
6. Site Photographs, received March 11, 2020 
7. Neighborhood Outreach, received June 26, 2020 
8. Old Town Center Master Sign Program 
9. Development Plans, received July 23, 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 131



PAGE 10 OF 10 
SUBJECT: 50 University Avenue, Suite B260/V-20-001 
DATE:  September 4, 2020   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page  
Intentionally  

Left Blank 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 132



UN
IVE

RS
ITY

 AV

W MAIN ST

SB HIGHWAY 17

N CREEK TRAIL

NB HIGHWAY 17

ELM ST

MILES AV

N S
AN

TA
 CR

UZ
 AV

ED
EL

EN
 AV

VIC
TO

RY
 LN

BEAN AV

ST
AT

IO
N W

Y

MULLEN AV

LUNDY LN
MILL ST

PA
RK AV

GRAYS LN

MON
TE

BE
LLO

 W
Y

50 University Avenue, Suite B260

0 0.250.125 Miles

°

Update Notes:
- Updated 12/20/17 to link to tlg-sql12 server data (sm)
- Updated 11/22/19 adding centerpoint guides, Buildings layer, and Project Site leader with label

Project Site

EXHIBIT 1Page 133



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 
 

Page 134



 

 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION – September 9, 2020 
REQUIRED FINDINGS FOR: 
 
50 University Avenue, Suite B260 
Variance Application V-20-001 
 
Request for approval for a variance from the Town Code to exceed the maximum 
allowable sign area and an exception from the Commercial Design Guidelines to 
exceed the maximum letter height for a wall sign (Sephora) on property zoned  
C-2:LHP:PD, Located at 50 University Avenue, Suite B260.  APN 529-02-044.  
Property Owner: SRI Old Town LLC.  Applicant: Peter Liu. 
 

FINDINGS 
 

Required findings for CEQA: 
 
■ The project is Categorically Exempt pursuant to the adopted Guidelines for the 

Implementation of the California Environmental Quality Act, Section 15301: Existing 
Facilities.  

 
Required findings for granting a Variance application to exceed the maximum allowable sign 
area: 
 
■  As required by Section 29.20.170 of the Town Code for granting a Variance application: 
 

(1) Because of special circumstances applicable to the property, including size, shape, 
topography, location or surroundings, the strict application of this ordinance deprives 
such property of privileges enjoyed by other properties in the vicinity and under identical 
zone; and 
 

(2) The granting of a variance would not constitute a grant of special privileges inconsistent 
with the limitations upon other properties in the vicinity and zone which such property is 
situated. 
 

Planned Development Ordinance: 
 
■  The project is in conformance with Planned Development Ordinance 2025. 

 
Master Sign Program: 
 
■  The project is in conformance with the Old Town Master Sign Program.  
 

EXHIBIT 2 

Page 135



 

 

 

 
Commercial Design Guidelines: 
 
■ The proposed signage is consistent with applicable provisions of the Commercial Design 

Guidelines with the exception of exceeding the maximum letter height for a wall sign in the 
C-2 District.  

 
 

 
N:\DEV\FINDINGS\2020\University Avenue, 50 Suite B260  - Findings - PC 09-09-20.docx 

Page 136



 

C:\Users\AzureAdmin\AppData\Local\Temp\tmp8DA1.tmp 

PLANNING COMMISSION – September 9, 2020 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 
50 University Avenue, Suite B260 
Variance Application V-20-001 
 
Request for approval for a variance from the Town Code to exceed the maximum 

allowable sign area and an exception from the Commercial Design Guidelines to 

exceed the maximum letter height for a wall sign (Sephora) on property zoned C-

2:LHP:PD, Located at 50 University Avenue, Suite B260.  APN 529-02-044.  Property 

Owner: SRI Old Town LLC.  Applicant: Peter Liu. 

TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT: 
 
Planning Division 
1. APPROVAL: This application shall be completed in accordance with all of the conditions of 

approval and in substantial compliance with the approved plans.  Any changes or 
modifications to the approved plans and/or business operation shall be approved by the 
Community Development Director, DRC or the Planning Commission depending on the 
scope of the changes. 

2. EXPIRATION: The approval will expire two years from the approval date pursuant to Section 
29.20.320 of the Town Code, unless the approval has been vested. 

3. BUILDING PERMIT: Obtain building permit for signage prior to installation.  
4. TOWN INDEMNITY: Applicants are notified that Town Code Section 1.10.115 requires that 

any applicant who receives a permit or entitlement from the Town shall defend, indemnify, 
and hold harmless the Town and its officials in any action brought by a third party to 
overturn, set aside, or void the permit or entitlement.  This requirement is a condition of 
approval of all such permits and entitlements whether or not expressly set forth in the 
approval and may be secured to the satisfaction of the Town Attorney. 

5. COMPLIANCE MEMORANDUM: A memorandum shall be prepared and submitted with the 
building plans detailing how the Conditions of Approval will be addressed.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 3 

Page 137



 

C:\Users\AzureAdmin\AppData\Local\Temp\tmp8DA1.tmp 

 

Page 138



Description of Proposed Signage 

Main Entry (Primary frontage) 

Installation of “SEPHORA” Back-lit Channel letters (70.2 square feet, sign FL.1 on drawings) on primary 

frontage at a proposed letter height of 2’6” and a length of 20’ 11/16”, including the required 6” border 

around sign copy.  

Installation of two new awnings above the windows to each side of the entry way doors with 

“SEPHORA” copy (signs AW.1 on drawings) on the primary frontage. Awning copy for each sign is 1.31 

square feet with a proposed letter height of 5” and a length of 3’ 2 1/8”. 

The proposed sign area of the wall sign is 70.2 square feet and the proposed sign area of the awnings 

are 2.62 cumulative square feet for a total of 72.82 square feet.  

EXHIBIT 4Page 139



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 
 

Page 140



4-7-2020

City of Los Gatos 
Planning Commission 
110 E. Main St.  
Los Gatos, CA 95030 

ATTN: Community Development Department 

RE: Letter of Justification for a Variance from the Town Code and an Exception to Commercial Design 
Guidelines for 50 University Ave. #B260, for wall sign area and letter height. 

To Whom It May Concern, 

This Letter of Justification is respectfully submitted for your consideration, in the installation of the proposed wall signage for 
Sephora at 50 University Ave, Suite B260.  

A variance is requested from the Town Code Section 29.10.135 (c)(2) to exceed the maximum allowable sign area. This code 
section states, “Allowed sign area is (1) square foot for each lineal foot of primary business frontage plus one-half square foot 
for each lineal foot of secondary business frontage.” The maximum allowable sign area is 51’8” The proposed sign area is 
72.82 square feet included a 70.82 square foot wall sign and 2.62 square foot in awning letters. A special exception is 
requested from the Commercial Design Guidelines Chapter 6.2.5, Maximum Letter height to allow the proposed signage to 
exceed the maximum allowed letter height. The Commercial Design Guidelines Chapter 6.2.5 require a maximum 12” letter 
height in the C-2 district is allowed where the proposed letter height is 2’ 6” (30 inches).  

Including the city’s mandated 6” border around the copy of the proposed sign, this signage is proposed at an overall length of 
20’ 0 11/16” with an overall letter height of 3’6” and an overall square footage of 70.2 square feet. The business frontage 
measures 51’8”, which would permit 51’8” square feet for allowable sign area. The actual square footage of the sign is 47.64 
square feet; however, the required 6” border, per the Commercial Design Guidelines, around the sign copy added an 
additional 22.56 square feet of counted sign area, which cause the proposed signage to exceed the allowed square footage 
prescribed by code.  

This building is set back from University Boulevard approximately 188 feet and proposes a unique challenge for visibility due 
to the multitude of mature trees and shopping center signage that blocks clear view from the roadway. The trees are fully 
grown and the foliage is full and blocks the visibility of any signage for this site. In addition, there is a shopping center sign 
that sits at the roadway in front of the tenant space the Sephora is occupying that prevents visibility of signage for drivers on 
University Boulevard.  

This tenant space is unique from the other tenant spaces as it is a larger tenant space and has a pitched roof over the 
entryway that most of the other tenants do not have. This design feature provides a unique opportunity to showcase a well-
designed sign that is in proportion to the open space that the pitched roof provides. The larger sign is visually more aesthetic 
than a smaller sign would be and fits the overall scale of the building face and pitched roof design. A smaller sign would look 
out of place amongst the large pitched roof space over the entryway. 

Standard 12” letters would not be able to be seen from vehicular traffic passing along University Boulevard because of these 
two factors, which would prevent Sephora from being able to adequately identify their business location to vehicular traffic. 
One of the purposes of signage is to be able to help travelers quickly identify the location of stores as they travel so as to 
prevent traffic incidents. In this case, it would be difficult for a traveler to identify Sephora’s location with the required 12” 
letter height as the sign would not be easily visible from the roadway. Sephora’s proposed larger letter height of 2’6” would 
provide a sign that is more easily visible through the foliage of the trees and existing shopping center sign.  

EXHIBIT 5
Page 141



There are other businesses in the area, both in the shopping center and in surrounding shopping centers that have signage 
that appears to exceed these same allowances. Photographs have been provided as reference. The granting of this variance 
for Sephora’s signage would not grant special privileges that other surrounding properties do not also enjoy. Instead, it would 
allow Sephora to be able to adequately identify their business to vehicular and pedestrian traffic traveling along University 
Boulevard where the strict application of the code would inhibit this ability and deprive Sephora of the ability to advertise 
their business to this pedestrian and vehicular traffic. 

With your approval of the additional letter height and sign area, the signage would be able to provide vehicular traffic the 
opportunity to more quickly and safely identify Sephora’s location in order to be able to safely arrive at the destination 
without causing traffic delays or cause additional risks for vehicular traffic. The signage is still tasteful and aesthetically 
pleasing at the proposed letter height and will not detract from the overall look of the building, but rather enhance the 
purpose of the shopping center by allowing Sephora to be able to adequately advertise their business while maintaining a 
visibly pleasing exterior appearance that other businesses in the shopping center and nearby shopping centers enjoy. 

Thank you for your time and consideration. 

Sincerely, 

Peter Liu 
SR Store Design Manager 
Sephora USA 

Page 142



EXHIBIT 6
Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 

Intentionally 

Left Blank 
 

Page 146



EXHIBIT 7

Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



EXHIBIT 8Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



Page 182



AREA OF WORK

E. MAIN ST.

N.
 S

AN
TA

 C
RU

Z A
VE

.
W. MAIN ST.

UN
IV

ER
SI

TY
 A

VE
.

 V I C I N I T Y  P L A N K E Y  P L A N

JOB #: 243023_R7VARIANCE

DATE: 05.30.2019

DESIGNER: J Sotka

SALES REP: ---

PROJ MGR: L Crass DESIGN PHASE: CONCEPTUAL

LOS GATOS PALMS
OLD TOWN CENTER
50 UNIVERSITY AVE., #B260
LOS GATOS, CA  95032

DATE

DATE

QC

LANDLORD APPROVAL 

CLIENT APPROVAL

11.07.19
12.09.19
01.23.20
02.04.20
02.11.20
02.13.20
00.00.00
00.00.00
00.00.00

JS
JS
JS
JS
JS
JS
XX
XX
XX

UPDATED ARCHS - FLOOR PLANS/ELEVATIONS / ADD VI.1 & VI.3
ADD ELEVATION SECTION / ADD VI.4 BEAUTY STUDIO GRAPHIC
ADD AWNING COPY DIMS AND SQ FT
ADD AWNING SPECS PG
CLEAN UP ELEVS / REMOVE PG 1.3 / UPDATE SQ FT FOR AWNING
UPDATE NOTES PER SUB
XXXX
XXXX
XXXX

2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10

SHEET NUMBER
09.12.19 TS CREATE PERMIT DRAWING & VARIANCE DRAWING1

0.0
EXHIBIT 9

Page 183



CONCEPTUAL RENDERING

1.0
JOB #: 243023_R7VARIANCE

DATE: 05.30.2019

DESIGNER: J Sotka

SALES REP: ---

PROJ MGR: L Crass DESIGN PHASE: CONCEPTUAL

LOS GATOS PALMS
OLD TOWN CENTER
50 UNIVERSITY AVE., #B260
LOS GATOS, CA  95032

DATE

DATE

QC

LANDLORD APPROVAL 

CLIENT APPROVAL

11.07.19
12.09.19
01.23.20
02.04.20
02.11.20
02.13.20
00.00.00
00.00.00
00.00.00

JS
JS
JS
JS
JS
JS
XX
XX
XX

UPDATED ARCHS - FLOOR PLANS/ELEVATIONS / ADD VI.1 & VI.3
ADD ELEVATION SECTION / ADD VI.4 BEAUTY STUDIO GRAPHIC
ADD AWNING COPY DIMS AND SQ FT
ADD AWNING SPECS PG
CLEAN UP ELEVS / REMOVE PG 1.3 / UPDATE SQ FT FOR AWNING
UPDATE NOTES PER SUB
XXXX
XXXX
XXXX

2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10

SHEET NUMBER
09.12.19 TS CREATE PERMIT DRAWING & VARIANCE DRAWING1

CONCEPTUAL RENDERING
SCALE: NTS

Page 184



1.1

FLOOR PLAN

JOB #: 243023_R7VARIANCE

DATE: 05.30.2019

DESIGNER: J Sotka

SALES REP: ---

PROJ MGR: L Crass DESIGN PHASE: CONCEPTUAL

LOS GATOS PALMS
OLD TOWN CENTER
50 UNIVERSITY AVE., #B260
LOS GATOS, CA  95032

DATE

DATE

QC

LANDLORD APPROVAL 

CLIENT APPROVAL

11.07.19
12.09.19
01.23.20
02.04.20
02.11.20
02.13.20
00.00.00
00.00.00
00.00.00

JS
JS
JS
JS
JS
JS
XX
XX
XX

UPDATED ARCHS - FLOOR PLANS/ELEVATIONS / ADD VI.1 & VI.3
ADD ELEVATION SECTION / ADD VI.4 BEAUTY STUDIO GRAPHIC
ADD AWNING COPY DIMS AND SQ FT
ADD AWNING SPECS PG
CLEAN UP ELEVS / REMOVE PG 1.3 / UPDATE SQ FT FOR AWNING
UPDATE NOTES PER SUB
XXXX
XXXX
XXXX

2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10

SHEET NUMBER
09.12.19 TS CREATE PERMIT DRAWING & VARIANCE DRAWING1

FLOOR PLAN
SCALE: 3/32” = 1’

COMMON OUTDOOR (E) RAMP ACCESS

BL
K.

 C
AB

IN
ET

BULLETIN BOARD

30
"X30

"

BR
EA

K

CHAIRCHAIR

CHAIR CHAIR

5'-0"

CLEAR

S

ADJACENT
TENANT
(N.I.C)

ADJACENT
TENANT
(N.I.C)

(E) STAIR
(N.I.C)

(E) ELEVATOR
(N.I.C)

(E) LOBBY
(N.I.C)

ADJACENT
TENANT
(N.I.C)

S

CH
AR

G
.

CA
RT D

D
D

D

KEURIG

D
EC

A
L

C
HA

LK

CO
AT

 R
AC

K
4'

SAFE
(SMALL)

LP MONITOR 3' HAZMAT 48" RECEIVING

3 DWRS

TTT

36"x24"
PRINTER

SHELF
PRINTER

3' HAZMAT

2 DWRS

36"x24"
PRINTER

SHELF
PRINTER

3'-0"

48"x18"

48"x12"

48"x12"

48"x12"

48"x12"

48"x12"

48"x12"

48"x12"

48"x12"

3'-0"

48"x18"

48"x12"

48"x12"

48"x12"

48"x12"

48"x12"

48"x12"

48"x12"

48" OFFICE UNIT

2 DWRS

48" EDU

(E) STAIR
(N.I.C)

COMMON OUTDOOR
WALKWAY

(N.I.C)

28
'-1

"
HO

LD
 D

IM
EN

SI
ON

S 
IN

SI
DE

 P
AN

EL
 T

O 
IN

SI
DE

  P
AN

EL
14

'-3
 3/

8"
BE

AU
TY

 S
TU

DI
O 

W
AL

L
3'-

6 7
/8"

65
'-4

 1/
8"

HO
LD

 D
IM

EN
SI

ON
S 

FI
NI

SH
 W

AL
L T

O 
FI

NI
SH

 W
AL

L

7'-
5"

3'-2 1/2"

2'-3" 7'-3" 11'-9 1/4"
HOLD DIMENSIONS INSIDE PANEL TO FINISH WALL

3'-0"11 5/8"

ON ALL SIDES

6'-
3 5

/8"

18
'-1

0 1
/2"

HO
LD

 D
IM

EN
SI

ON
S 

IN
SI

DE
 P

AN
EL

 T
O 

IN
SI

DE
  P

AN
EL

9

3'-1" V.I.F. 11'-8" V.I.F. 13'-1 1/2" V.I.F. 16'-3 1/8" V.I.F. 14'-11 5/8" V.I.F.

4'-
11

 3/
8"

  V
.I.F

.
9'-

9 1
/8"

 V
.I.F

.
9'-

7 7
/8"

  V
.I.F

.
15

'-0
 3/

8"
  V

.I.F
.

5'-
6"

  V
.I.F

.

73
'-4

 1/
4"

 LE
AS

E 
LIN

E 
TO

 LE
AS

E 
LIN

E 
V.

I.F
.

1'-
6 3

/8"
V.

I.F
.

2'-7 1/2"
V.I.F.

5'-8 3/8" V.I.F.1'-9 3/8" V.I.F.

5'-10 1/2" V.I.F.

11
 3/

4"
V.

I.F
.

10
'-0

 5/
8"

  V
.I.F

.

2'-10 1/2"
V.I.F.

1'-5 1/2"
V.I.F.

2'-
0"

V.
I.F

.
8'-

6 1
/2"

  V
.I.F

.

73'-10 3/8" V.I.F.

1'-8 3/8"

15'-7 3/4"
HOLD DIMENSIONS INSIDE PANEL TO INSIDE  PANEL

2'-3"

4'-
7"

2'-
3"

5'-
4 1

/8"
  V

.I.F
.

1'-2 3/4"

1'-
2 3

/4"

1'-2 3/4"

1'-
6"

1'-3 1/4"

1'-
6 3

/4"

1'-3 1/4"

1'-
6 3

/4"

1'-2 3/4"

1'-
2 3

/4"

1'-2 3/4"

1'-
2 3

/4"

1'-2 3/4"

1'-
6"

1'-2 3/4"

1'-
2 3

/4"

3'-5" 3'-4"
CLR

3'-
2"

CL
R

FL.1

Page 185



STOREFRONT ELEVATION

1.2
JOB #: 243023_R7VARIANCE

DATE: 05.30.2019

DESIGNER: J Sotka

SALES REP: ---

PROJ MGR: L Crass DESIGN PHASE: CONCEPTUAL

LOS GATOS PALMS
OLD TOWN CENTER
50 UNIVERSITY AVE., #B260
LOS GATOS, CA  95032

DATE

DATE

QC

LANDLORD APPROVAL 

CLIENT APPROVAL

11.07.19
12.09.19
01.23.20
02.04.20
02.11.20
02.13.20
00.00.00
00.00.00
00.00.00

JS
JS
JS
JS
JS
JS
XX
XX
XX

UPDATED ARCHS - FLOOR PLANS/ELEVATIONS / ADD VI.1 & VI.3
ADD ELEVATION SECTION / ADD VI.4 BEAUTY STUDIO GRAPHIC
ADD AWNING COPY DIMS AND SQ FT
ADD AWNING SPECS PG
CLEAN UP ELEVS / REMOVE PG 1.3 / UPDATE SQ FT FOR AWNING
UPDATE NOTES PER SUB
XXXX
XXXX
XXXX

2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10

SHEET NUMBER
09.12.19 TS CREATE PERMIT DRAWING & VARIANCE DRAWING1

 WHITE AWNING LETTERS
.41’ x 3.21’ = 1.31 SQ FT

VALANCE 12”
LETTERS 5”

 WHITE AWNING LETTERS
.41’ x 3.21’ = 1.31 SQ FT

VALANCE 12”
LETTERS 5”

70.2 SQ FT CHANNEL LETTERS + 2.62 SQ FT AWNING LETTERS = 72.82 SQ FT SIGNS
51’-8” LEASE LINE TO LEASE LINE

PARTIAL PLAN VIEW
SCALE: 1/8” = 1’

CL OF SIGN & ENTRY DOOR

LEASE LINE

51'-8"
LEASE LINE TO LEASE LINE

(E) OPENING V.I.F.

ADJACENT
TENANT
(N.I.C)

COMMON
OUTDOOR

WALKWAY
(N.I.C)

SALES

ADJACENT
TENANT
(N.I.C)

LEASE LINE SHOWN AT CENTERLINE OF
NEW INTERIOR SHARED DEMISING WALL

LEASELINES SHOWN AT POINT OF
ROTATION IN BUILDING PERIMETER AND
FAR SIDE OF WALL SHARED WITH
ADJACENT FACILITY

FINISH FLOOR
0'-0" AFF

CL OF SIGN & ENTRY DOOR

EQ EQ

B.O. LETTER SET
17'-0" AFF V.I.F.

T.O. LETTER SET
19’-6" AFF V.I.F.

19’-0 11/16”
EQ. EQ.

OF AWNING & WINDOWCL

EQ.EQ.

3'-
11

"
1'-

0"
6'-

4 1
/2"

1'-
6"

CL

EQ.

6'-6"

EQ.

3'-
11

"
1'-

0"
6'-

4 1
/2"

1'-
6"

6'-6"

OF AWNING & WINDOW

FL.1

5"

3'-2 1/8"

5"

3'-2 1/8"

AWNINGS BY OTHERS

2'-
6"

T.O. MALL ROOF
27'-3 1/16" AFF V.I.F.

7'-
9 1

/16
"

17
'-0

"

20’-0 11/16"

3’-
6"

CHANNEL LETTERS
3.5’ x 20.08’ = 70.2 SQ FT

STOREFRONT ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/8” = 1’

INSTALLER TO CONFIRM ACCESS 
AND POWER PROVIDED FOR  
THIS LETTERSET

AWNINGS BY OTHERS

Page 186



2.0
JOB #: 243023_R7VARIANCE

DATE: 05.30.2019

DESIGNER: J Sotka

SALES REP: ---

PROJ MGR: L Crass DESIGN PHASE: CONCEPTUAL

LOS GATOS PALMS
OLD TOWN CENTER
50 UNIVERSITY AVE., #B260
LOS GATOS, CA  95032

DATE

DATE

QC

LANDLORD APPROVAL 

CLIENT APPROVAL

11.07.19
12.09.19
01.23.20
02.04.20
02.11.20
02.13.20
00.00.00
00.00.00
00.00.00

JS
JS
JS
JS
JS
JS
XX
XX
XX

UPDATED ARCHS - FLOOR PLANS/ELEVATIONS / ADD VI.1 & VI.3
ADD ELEVATION SECTION / ADD VI.4 BEAUTY STUDIO GRAPHIC
ADD AWNING COPY DIMS AND SQ FT
ADD AWNING SPECS PG
CLEAN UP ELEVS / REMOVE PG 1.3 / UPDATE SQ FT FOR AWNING
UPDATE NOTES PER SUB
XXXX
XXXX
XXXX

2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10

SHEET NUMBER
09.12.19 TS CREATE PERMIT DRAWING & VARIANCE DRAWING1

20’-0 11/16"

3’-
6"

FRONT VIEW
SCALE: 3/8”=1’-0”

19’-0 11/16”

2’-6” 2’-4 5/8”

BACK VIEW
SCALE: 3/8”=1’-0” 8

9

ETL LABELS TO BE PLACED 
ON TOP OF LETTERS

NIGHT VIEW
SCALE: Not to Scale

FRONT VIEW
SCALE: Not to Scale

SIDE VIEW
SCALE: Not to Scale

3"

1"

BACK VIEW
SCALE: Not to Scale

ISOMETRIC VIEW
SCALE: Not to Scale

COLORS/FINISHES

P-2
P-3

GLOSS CLEAR TOP COAT - 42-208SP 
MATTHEWS WHITE

P-4 MP TO MATCH BM #2143-70 'SIMPLY WHITE' (WALL COLOR)

P-1 MATTHEWS BLACK - SOA929SP

V-1 GLOSS BLACK - 3M 7725-12
V-2 WHITE LIGHT ENHANCEMENT - 3635-100

  1. 1/8” FLAT CUT ALUMINUM OUTER FACE MOUNTED TO ACRYLIC SUB-FACE w/ THREADED STUDS
      AS WELL AS ADHERED w/ ADHESIVE, PAINTED P-1, P-2 / ACRYLIC SUB-FACE IS .118“ THICK EVONIK WRT31
      w/ SECOND SURFACE V-2 / CHEMICALLY BONDED TO RETURNS
  2.  .118” EVONIK WRT31 WHITE ACRYLIC RETURNS ATTACHED TO BACKS w/
       COUNTERSUNK SCREWS INTO .080” ALUMINUM STRIP
  3.  VINYL BORDER APPLIED TO REAR OF RETURNS V-1
  4.  CONTINUOUS .080” THK X 3/4” WIDE ALUMINUM STRIP WELDED TO LETTER BACKS,
       ACRYLIC RETURNS SLEEVE AROUND THE OUTSIDE
  5.  BITRO BANTAM PLUS 4000K WHITE LEDs
  6.  .080” ALUMINUM BACK, INSIDE PAINTED P-3, OUTSIDE PAINTED P-1
  7.  RUBATEX GASKET
  8.  POWER OUT (1 PER LETTER)
  9.  1/4” THREADED ROD / THRU-BOLT ATTACHMENT / ACCESS (4 PER LETTER)
10.  LED POWER SUPPLY INSIDE VENTED TRANSFORMER BOX w/ TOGGLE SWITCH (REMOTE)
11.  STANDARD 12’ WHIP LENGTH UNLESS STATED OTHERWISE
12.  1/2” OD x 1 1/2” PVC SPACERS PAINTED P-4 
13.  EXISTING FACADE
14.  1/4” DRAIN HOLE w/ LIGHT BAFFLE LOCATED IN BACK OF LETTERS

NOTES
- FACES DO NOT LIGHT
- THRU BOLTING CAN ONLY BE USED WHEN THERE IS ACCESS BEHIND WALL
- ALL PENETRATIONS, FASTENERS, WIRING TO BE CONCEALED, CAULKED
  AND WEATHER-TIGHT
- TIME CLOCK REQUIRED

SPECIFICATIONS

FLAT LETTER DETAIL VIEW
SCALE: Not to Scale

1"

1 1/2"3"
3

5

6

8

2

12

10

11

1

MOUNTING DETAIL
SCALE: Not to Scale

13

4

9

14

7

BACK- LIT LETTERS - EXTERIOR  (Qty 1)  FL.1
3.5’ x 20.08’ = 70.2 SQ FT CHANNEL LETTERS

Page 187



2.0
JOB #: 243023_R7VARIANCE

DATE: 05.30.2019

DESIGNER: J Sotka

SALES REP: ---

PROJ MGR: L Crass DESIGN PHASE: CONCEPTUAL

LOS GATOS PALMS
OLD TOWN CENTER
50 UNIVERSITY AVE., #B260
LOS GATOS, CA  95032

DATE

DATE

QC

LANDLORD APPROVAL 

CLIENT APPROVAL

11.07.19
12.09.19
01.23.20
02.04.20
02.11.20
02.13.20
00.00.00
00.00.00
00.00.00

JS
JS
JS
JS
JS
JS
XX
XX
XX

UPDATED ARCHS - FLOOR PLANS/ELEVATIONS / ADD VI.1 & VI.3
ADD ELEVATION SECTION / ADD VI.4 BEAUTY STUDIO GRAPHIC
ADD AWNING COPY DIMS AND SQ FT
ADD AWNING SPECS PG
CLEAN UP ELEVS / REMOVE PG 1.3 / UPDATE SQ FT FOR AWNING
UPDATE NOTES PER SUB
XXXX
XXXX
XXXX

2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10

SHEET NUMBER
09.12.19 TS CREATE PERMIT DRAWING & VARIANCE DRAWING1

.41’ x 3.21’ = 1.31 SQ FT WHITE AWNING LETTERS
VALANCE 12”
LETTERS 5”

AWNINGS PROVIDED BY OTHERS  (Qty 2)  AW.1

  1. STEEL AWNING STRUCTURE PAINTED P-1
  2. FIRESIST #82008-0000 BLACK AWNING FABRIC

SPECIFICATIONS
COLORS/FINISHES

P-1 MATTHEWS BLACK - SOA929SP

NOTES
- AWNINGS PROVIDED BY OTHERS

(E) TUBE. PRIME & PAINT TO
MATCH AWNING FABRIC; TYP

AWNING FABRIC - REFER TO
ELEVATION(S)

(E) STEEL RAFTER. PRIME &
PAINT TO MATCH AWNING
FABRIC

AWNING ATTACHMENT POINT -
ATTACHMENTS DESIGN AND
DETAILED BY AWNING
FABRICATOR; GC TO PROVIDE
BLOCKING AS REQUIRED

FRONT VIEW
SCALE: 3/4”=1’-0”

6'-6"

3'-
11

"
1'-

0" 5"

SIDE  VIEW
SCALE: 3/4”=1’-0”

3'-0" VERIFY

1’-
0"

3'-2 1/8"

1’-
5"

4’-2 1/8"

Page 188



 

PREPARED BY: ERIN WALTERS 
 Associate Planner 
  
   

Reviewed by:  Planning Manager and Community Development Director   
   
 

110 E. Main Street Los Gatos, CA 95030 ● (408) 354-6872 
www.losgatosca.gov 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
REPORT 

MEETING DATE: 09/09/2020 

ITEM NO: 4  

DESK ITEM 

 
   

DATE:   September 9, 2020 

TO: Planning Commission 

FROM: Joel Paulson, Community Development Director 

SUBJECT: Consider a Request for Approval for a Variance from the Town Code to 
Exceed the Maximum Allowable Sign Area and an Exception from the 
Commercial Design Guidelines to Exceed the Maximum Letter Height for a 
Wall Sign (Sephora) on Property Zoned C-2:LHP:PD, Located at 50 University 
Avenue, Suite B260. APN 529-02-044. Variance Application V-20-001. 
Property Owner: SRI Old Town LLC. Applicant: Peter Liu. 

 
REMARKS: 
 
Exhibit 10 includes the applicant’s wall sign photo simulations received on Wednesday, 
September 9, 2020. 
 
EXHIBITS: 
 
Previously received with the September 9, 2020 Staff Report: 
1. Location Map 
2. Required Findings and Considerations 
3. Recommended Conditions of Approval 
4. Project Description, received June 26, 2020 
5. Letter of Justification, received June 26, 2020 
6. Site Photographs, received March 11, 2020 
7. Neighborhood Outreach, received June 26, 2020 
8. Old Town Center Master Sign Program 
9. Development Plans, received July 23, 2020 
 
Received with this Desk Item Report: 
10. Applicant Photo Simulations, received September 9, 2020 
 
 

Page 189



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page  
Intentionally  

Left Blank 
 

 

Page 190



CONCEPTUAL RENDERING

1.0
JOB #: 243023_R4PERMIT

DATE: 05.30.2019

DESIGNER: J Sotka

SALES REP: ---

PROJ MGR: L Crass DESIGN PHASE: CONCEPTUAL

LOS GATOS PALMS
OLD TOWN CENTER
50 UNIVERSITY AVE., #B260
LOS GATOS, CA  95032

DATE

DATE

QC

LANDLORD APPROVAL 

CLIENT APPROVAL

12.09.19
02.24.20
08.25.20
00.00.00
00.00.00
00.00.00
00.00.00
00.00.00
00.00.00

JS
JS
JS
XX
XX
XX
XX
XX
XX

ADD ELEVATION SECTION / ADD VI.4 BEAUTY STUDIO GRAPHIC
UPDATE PERMIT PCKG WITH SQ FT INFO & AWNING INFO
ADD FL.1 SIZE OPTIONS
XXXX
XXXX
XXXX
XXXX
XXXX
XXXX

2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10

SHEET NUMBER
09.12.19 TS CREATE PERMIT DRAWING & VARIANCE DRAWING1

CONCEPTUAL RENDERING
SCALE: NTS

EXHIBIT 10

Page 191

nshorten
Text Box
12"



STOREFRONT ELEVATION

1.2
JOB #: 243023_R4PERMIT

DATE: 05.30.2019

DESIGNER: J Sotka

SALES REP: ---

PROJ MGR: L Crass DESIGN PHASE: CONCEPTUAL

LOS GATOS PALMS
OLD TOWN CENTER
50 UNIVERSITY AVE., #B260
LOS GATOS, CA  95032

DATE

DATE

QC

LANDLORD APPROVAL 

CLIENT APPROVAL

12.09.19
02.24.20
08.25.20
00.00.00
00.00.00
00.00.00
00.00.00
00.00.00
00.00.00

JS
JS
JS
XX
XX
XX
XX
XX
XX

ADD ELEVATION SECTION / ADD VI.4 BEAUTY STUDIO GRAPHIC
UPDATE PERMIT PCKG WITH SQ FT INFO & AWNING INFO
ADD FL.1 SIZE OPTIONS
XXXX
XXXX
XXXX
XXXX
XXXX
XXXX

2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10

SHEET NUMBER
09.12.19 TS CREATE PERMIT DRAWING & VARIANCE DRAWING1

1'-
0 9

/16
"

17
'-8

 1/
16

"

 WHITE AWNING LETTERS
.41’ x 3.21’ = 1.31 SQ FT

VALANCE 12”
LETTERS 5”

 WHITE AWNING LETTERS
.41’ x 3.21’ = 1.31 SQ FT

VALANCE 12”
LETTERS 5”

18.43 SQ FT CHANNEL LETTERS + 2.62 SQ FT AWNING LETTERS = 21.05 SQ FT SIGNS
51’-8” LEASE LINE TO LEASE LINE

PARTIAL PLAN VIEW
SCALE: 1/8” = 1’

CL OF SIGN & ENTRY DOOR

LEASE LINE

51'-8"
LEASE LINE TO LEASE LINE

(E) OPENING V.I.F.

ADJACENT
TENANT
(N.I.C)

COMMON
OUTDOOR

WALKWAY
(N.I.C)

SALES

ADJACENT
TENANT
(N.I.C)

LEASE LINE SHOWN AT CENTERLINE OF
NEW INTERIOR SHARED DEMISING WALL

LEASELINES SHOWN AT POINT OF
ROTATION IN BUILDING PERIMETER AND
FAR SIDE OF WALL SHARED WITH
ADJACENT FACILITY

FINISH FLOOR
0'-0" AFF

CL OF SIGN & ENTRY DOOR

EQ EQ

B.O. LETTER SET
17'-0" AFF V.I.F.

T.O. LETTER SET
19’-6" AFF V.I.F.

EQ. EQ.

OF AWNING & WINDOWCL

EQ.EQ.

3'-
11

"
1'-

0"
6'-

4 1
/2"

1'-
6"

CL

EQ.

6'-6"

EQ.

3'-
11

"
1'-

0"
6'-

4 1
/2"

1'-
6"

6'-6"

OF AWNING & WINDOW

FL.1

5"

3'-2 1/8"

5"

3'-2 1/8"

AWNINGS BY OTHERS

2'-
6"

T.O. MALL ROOF
27'-3 1/16" AFF V.I.F.

7'-
9 1

/16
"

17
'-0

"

8’-11 15/16"

2’-
0 9

/16
"

CHANNEL LETTERS
2.05’ x 8.99’ = 18.43 SQ FT

STOREFRONT ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/8” = 1’

INSTALLER TO CONFIRM ACCESS 
AND POWER PROVIDED FOR  
THIS LETTERSET

AWNINGS BY OTHERS

7'-11 15/16"

Page 192

nshorten
Text Box
12"



2.0
JOB #: 243023_RENDERINGS

DATE: 05.30.2019

DESIGNER: J Sotka

SALES REP: ---

PROJ MGR: L Crass DESIGN PHASE: CONCEPTUAL

LOS GATOS PALMS
OLD TOWN CENTER
50 UNIVERSITY AVE., #B260
LOS GATOS, CA  95032

DATE

DATE

QC

LANDLORD APPROVAL 

CLIENT APPROVAL

00.00.00
00.00.00
00.00.00
00.00.00
00.00.00
00.00.00
00.00.00
00.00.00
00.00.00

XX
XX
XX
XX
XX
XX
XX
XX
XX

XXXX
XXXX
XXXX
XXXX
XXXX
XXXX
XXXX
XXXX
XXXX

2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10

SHEET NUMBER
00.00.00 XX XXXX1

STOREFRONT RENDERING OPTION - 12”

Page 193



4.0
JOB #: 243023_RENDERINGS

DATE: 05.30.2019

DESIGNER: J Sotka

SALES REP: ---

PROJ MGR: L Crass DESIGN PHASE: CONCEPTUAL

LOS GATOS PALMS
OLD TOWN CENTER
50 UNIVERSITY AVE., #B260
LOS GATOS, CA  95032

DATE

DATE

QC

LANDLORD APPROVAL 

CLIENT APPROVAL

00.00.00
00.00.00
00.00.00
00.00.00
00.00.00
00.00.00
00.00.00
00.00.00
00.00.00

XX
XX
XX
XX
XX
XX
XX
XX
XX

XXXX
XXXX
XXXX
XXXX
XXXX
XXXX
XXXX
XXXX
XXXX

2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10

SHEET NUMBER
00.00.00 XX XXXX1

STOREFRONT RENDERING OPTION - 30”

Page 194


	Top
	2.	14225 Walker Street
	Staff Report
	Exhibit 10 - Public comments received between 1101, August 26, 2020 and 1100, September 4, 2020
	Desk Item
	Exhibit 11- Public comments received between 1101, September 4, 2020 and 1100, September 9, 2020

	3.	15925 Quail Hill Road
	Staff Report
	Exhibit 16 - Revised Conditions of Approval
	Exhibit 17 - Revised Findings and Considerations
	Exhibit 18 - Revised Project Description and Justification Letter
	Exhibit 19 - Supplemental Justification Letter
	Exhibit 20 - Revised Project Data Table
	Exhibit 21 - Revised Grading Exception Site Plan
	Exhibit 22 - Consulting Architects Third Report
	Exhibit 23 - Applicants Responses to the Consulting Architects Report
	Exhibit 24 - Revised Color Board
	Exhibit 25 - Revised Development Plans
	Desk Item
	Exhibit 26 - Public comments received by 11 a.m., September 9, 2020

	4.	50 University Avenue, Suite B260
	Staff Report
	Exhibit 1 - Location Map
	Exhibit 2 - Required Findings and Considerations
	Exhibit 3 - Recommended Conditions of Approval
	Exhibit 4 - Scope of Work, received June 26, 2020
	Exhibit 5 - Letter of Justification, recieved June 26, 2020
	Exhibit 6 - Photographs, recieved March 11, 2020
	Exhibit 7 - Neighborhood Outreach, received June 26, 2020
	Exhibit 8 - Old Town Center Master Sign Program
	Exhibit 9 - Development Plans, recieved July 24, 2020
	Desk Item
	Exhibit 10 - Applicant Photo Simulations, received September 9, 2020

	Bottom

